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Our aim 1s to be recognised as the nation’s
leading housebuilder, creating communities

where people aspire to hive

A clear set of
priorities to rebuild

profitability
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PERFORMANCE
HIGHLIGHTS

+ Total completions, including joint
ventures, were 11,171 (2010 11,377)

* Private average selling price
(excluding jot ventures) up
7 4% 10 £198,900 (2010 £185,200)
due to active management of mix

¢+ Overall underlying selling prices

comnachion wih thi repor shall be Butyect to tha
tmatabors snd retrichiors provided by such b

were stable for the period, but
with regional variations

* 50% increase n operatng profit
before operating exceptional items
to £135 0m (2010 £50 1my, with full
year operating margin before
operaiing exceptional items
mncreasing to 6 6% (2010 4 4%)

+ Second half housebuild cperating
margmn' of 8 0% against 5 9% for
the previous year

* Profit from operations was
£1273m (2010 £74 3m) after
operating exceptional items
of £77m (2010 £15 8m)

« The Group returned to profit before
exceptional costs for the full year
of £427m After exceptional costs
the Group made a loss before tax
of £11 5m (2010 £162 9m)

* Refinancing package 1n place
providmg the Group withc £1bn
of committed facilihes and private
placement notes 1mproving
balance sheet efficiency

« Net debst of £322 6m (2010 £366 9m)

outiock mury ba influencad by tackons that
coud e SCTUN OUICOMOS and reslts.
10 b mater ady detierem.

1 Housebuld mangin b profit irom operaticna before operatng
excaptonal costs for the houssbuldng segment draded by
nevertus for the houssbulicding segment
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP OVERVIEW

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

THE WAY WE WORK

Barratt Developments PLC 1s one of the nation’s largest
housebuilders with over 4,000 employees and 25 divisions
throughout Britain In 2010/11 we scld over 11,000 homes

We operate across a broad spectrum of the market from
flats to fammily homes and urban regeneration schemes

We also have a focused commercial developments business

Where we sell

1 Northernregion
Number of completions
2,054 (18 4%%)

2 Central region
Number of completions
1,734 (15 5%4)

3 Eastregion
Number of cormnpletions
2,057 (18 4%9)

4 Southern region
Number of cormpletons
2,009 (18 0%)

5 London
Number of completions
1,240 (11 1%%)

6 Westregion
Nurmber of completions
2,077 (18 6%4)

Our land (> ] | | Planning and communities ®© I
Accquinng the nght land 1s crihcal to our business We are comrritted to working closely wath local
and 1ts future profitabiity Our experienced land communities and councils to ensure that we can
teams use their local knowledge to 1dentify land provide the housing that is required to lugh
suitable for development and secure planning environmental and design standards
permussion to enable new homes to be built
Agreed terms land purchases i 2010411 Detaled ptannmg conserts for 2011/12

expected completions
Owned and controlled
land bank plots Detaled planning consents for 2012/13

expected completions
00,083 709
(2010 62,340) O

Percentage of completions i 2010/11
Owned and controlled land bank years based unt»rum;.:?f:iaidIt.l?s;]J )

upoq 2011 complebon vohumes

54 0/%

(2010 56) {2010 70%)
Acres of stratege fand Howses buiit to Code Levet 3" or above
c. 11,400 3071

{2010 1,765)

Wa am to sacurne 4 pasticn as (he lowest cost prownder complyng with The Code for Sustanabla Hormes

{the ‘Code’) - see page 11
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Our brands

Our housebwlding business irades under the Barratt Homes,
David Wilson Homes and Ward Hornes brands Barratt Homes
13 the best known housebuilding brand in Britamn focusmng on
tradiional housing, flats and urban regeneration David Wilson
Homes has a reputation for producing larger farmily homes

We aiso have a strong regional brand, Ward Homes, operating
1 Kent and the South East Commercial developments are
dehvered by Wilson Bowden Developments

Our homes

© | lOurcustomers

We build a variety of homes under our brand
names ranging from those for first-me buyers,
family homes, high-nse flats and so¢ial housing
We seek to match our products with customer
demand and local regulation

Average number of active stes

304

(2010 360)

Total completions®

111/

(2010 11,377)

Average sefling pnce

r1/8,300

(2010 £174,300)

Number of NHBC Prde in the Job® Quality Awards

38U

{2010 82)

Customer service and satisfaction are of
paramount importance to us and our local
teams seek to ensure that our customers
are satsfied with their new homes

Propoction of our customers who would
‘recommend us to a fend’

5%
{2010 97%)

Percentage of legal complebons in 201011
wiuch were sockal housing

23.8%

{2010 16 5%)

Total cor 18 Safnec as hoy % w (2011 11078 XNHE 1,325) plus compietons

from ot yenturas n which the Group has & share (2011 83 2010 52
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP OVERVIEW

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FOCUSED ON OUR
PRIORITIES

This has been a further year of recovery
for the Group We have remained focused
on our key priorities and have delivered
a significant improvement in the
profitability of the Group whilst continuing
to see further progress in quahty
and customer service

he housing market in
the UK has remaned
constrained The key
restnction on the new
build industry remains the
avallability of adequate mortgage
finance, pariicularty with higher
loan to value products
With continung low levels of
new build actnvity, there remans a
fundamental imbalance between
annuat housing demand and
supply which will continue to
widen unless the undertying
causes are acidressed Thereis
considerable demand for housing
but the mortgage market 15 not
supporting this and it wall clearty
take ttme for the market to
function N a more nommal way
As a rasult of Govemment
policy, we are seemng changes
nthe planning process and the
mplementation of ‘localism’,
empowenng Communiies to
have more control aver local
deveiopment We have responded
positively to these changes and
each of our businesses continues
to engage directly with thewr
local communities
Wa welcome tha introduction
of the Govermiment's FirsiBuy
scheme, designed to stimulate
the market by providing equity
share loans to first-time buyers,
nthe absence of more normal
mortgage lending

“With continuing
low levels of new
build activity,
there remains
a fundamental
imbalance
between annual
housing demand
and supply
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Our response
Our response to the current market
restncttons has been clear and
consstently pursued Qur pnonsies
have been optimising sellng pnees,
improving operational efficiency
and targeted land spend As a
result, we have dnven significant
rmargn improverment n each of
the last two years

Importantly, improvements n
operational efficiency have not
been at the expense of qualty
The Group has, for the second
consecutive year, achigved Home
Builders Federation {HBF') Frve
Star status This is the highest
achievable level in terms of
customer satisfacton and whether
they would recommend us to
afnend Addiionally, under
the National House-Buwiding
Council (NHBC) ‘Prde in the
Job' scheme, our site managers
have won more quality awards
than any other housebuider for
the seventh year running

Thus hegh level of quality
15 central to our pricing policy
We are committed to achieving
an appropnaie retum for the
outstanding homes that we
buikd and we have the nght
sales and marketing capabilities
to achweve this

Private average seling price
ncreased by 74% to £198.900
dumng the year compared with

2010 Thes was driven by the
busress actvely changng the
profie of the products we buld —
more family houses and less flats

Longer term financing
arrangements
We were pleased to compiate our
debt refinancing n May 2011 This
provides the Group with around
£1 bilion of committed facilities
and prvate placement notes to
May 2015, with some of the
Group's arangements extending
as far as 2021

Our mproved cperational
performance and strong cash
management contnbuted toa
turther reduction m debt levels
by the year end

No dwvidend will be paid In
respect of the 2011 {financial year
However, the Board remains
committed o renstating the
payment of dvdends when
it 1s appropnate to do so

New land to improve

margins further

Since we re-entered the land
market i mid-2009 we have

had two good years of land buying
and invested a total of £981 3m
We have secured terms on around
22,000 plots and this will represent
the foundation of our future
business and margin growth

Wa have mantaned our long-term

“We were pleased
to complete our
debt refinancing
in May 2011
This provides
the Group with
around £1 billion
of commutted
facilities and
private placement
notes to May 2015,
with some of
the Croup's
arrangerments
extending as
far as 2021

Below The 0Id Cider Works near Taunton
The regeneration of a former cider plant at
the foot of the Quantack Hils

refabonships with and vencdiors, and
also developed new relatonships,
through a very difficutt penod for the
ndusiry We have martaned a
disciplined approach Wheraver
possible wa are acquinng land on
deferred terms and dunng the vear
we increased our hurdle rates to
ensure that we are Increasingly
selective about the opportunities
wg Secun

Our employees

In the year | have visited many

of our local offices and housing
developments | am always
impressad by the enthusiasm
and ability of our employees Itis
through therr etforts that we lead
the industry on senvice, qualty
and the standard of our sites

The efficiency and qualty of our
operaton would not be possible
without the skills and commitment
of our employees and | dowish to
record the Board's thanks to all
our people

The future

We have retumed to profit
before exceptional iterns which
IS an imporiant miestone

We racognise that economic
uncertainty and mortgage
avallability will continue to
Influence the housing market
However, we have a skilled
workforce, an evolving land
bank and a strengthened financal
position We are at the forefront
of addressing many of the
changes that will shape the
Industry i future years evolving
custorner dermand, design and
environmental standards, and
changes in planning With
these strengths wea reman

well equipped to compete

Bobon~
Bob Lawson
CHAIRMAN
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
CROUP OVERVIEW

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

GOOD PROGRESS
IN CHALLENGING
TIMES

This has been a year of good progress
against a challenging backdrop,
particularly in the first half of our

financial year

e have achieved a
80% ncrease n profit
from operations before
operating exceptonal
itens, agreed terms on 8,861
plots of land, were awarded
HBF Five Star status for a second
consecutve year, and refinanced
our business until 215
We are well placed 10 securs
further margin growth although
the housing market 1s lkely to
remain challenging

Performance

We ncreased profit from operations
before operating exceptional tems
by 50% from £30 1m to £135 0m
with a significant iImprovemnent in
operating rmargin before operating
exceptional tems 10 6 6%

O10 4 4%)

Ouwr second haif housebuild
operating margin before operating
exceptional iterns improved to
80% aganst 5 9% the previous
year, demonstrating the strength
of our margin Improverment over
the penod

The Group returmned to
profitabilty in the year with a profit
before tax and excepbonal tems
of £42 7m (2010 loss of £33 O0m)
Qur improvad operational efficiency
and contmued tight control over
the timing of land expenditure and
working caprtal, enabled us to
reduce net debt to £322 6m at
30 June 2011 (30 June 2010
£366 Om)

Qur pnorities

Qur overmding otyective 1s to rebuild

profitabylity and we have set out

three clear pncnties to achiave this

* optirmising selling pnces,

«improving operationat efficiency,
and

* targeted land buying

We have made considerable
progress in each of these areas
Qur intent 1s to deliver these
pronties, whilst tightly controting
the balance sheet, thereby
managng overzll levels

of debt given the uncertan
economic environment

u BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2011




Optimising selling prices
Dumng the year we have focused
on secunng the best pnce for
avery sale Across the Group
wa have focused on maximising
value rather than drving volumes
Procedures are n place to ensurg
stnct pncing disciplines in
avery development

Avarage selling pnce {xciuding
roint ventures) rose by 2 3% to
£178,300 (2010 £174 300), with
private average selling pnces
increasng by 7 4% to £198,900
(2010 £185,200) These ncreases
waere manly as a result of changes
N mix ncluding from flats
to houses

‘The first half of the year was
sgnificantly affected by weak
consumer confidence, particularty
around the Govemment's

Comprehensive Spending Review
n October 2010 The net prvate
reservation rate per active site
per week for the first half was
039 (H1 2010 049} Inthe
second half of the year we saw
a significant improvernent with
a net private reservation rate per
actwve site per week of 048 (H2
2010 0 52) As aresutt, the net
private reservation rate per actve
site per week dunng the year
reduced from an average of
050 to an average of 0 44

We are buiding a higher
proportion of houses to satisfy
customer dermand and in the
last twelve months we have
redesignad both our Barratt and
David Wilson house types In the
year, 66% of comptetions were
houses compared with 80%

"We increased
profit from
operations
before operating
exceptional items
by 50% from
£90 Im to £135 Om
with a sigmificant
Hmprovement in
operating margin
before operating
exceptional items
to 6 6% (2010 44%)"

durnng the pnor year Improvements
1 our marketng capability have
been an mportant factor n driving
sales New leads generated from
our websites have continued to
ncrease and our centralised call
centre, which was established in
the last financial year, 1s operating
wall At the pont of sale, further
resources have been invested
N IMproving conversion rates
through the enhanced
presentation of our sales centres
and on-site sales technology
Qur unique five-year warranty
contnues to provide a pont of
difference from our competitors
This covers fixtures and fittings
and rs additonal to the ten-year
NHBC warranty on the fabnc of
the bulding Durnng the year this
feature has been working

A clear set of priorities to rebuild profitability

Our overniding objective 1s to rebuild
profitability and we have set out three
clear priorities to achieve this

Optimising
selling prices

We remain focused upon
margin improvement
through optimising
setling prices.

Defvering our pnontes s surnmansed on page 12

Operational
efficiency

Targeted
land buying

We coniinue to focus
upol improving operational
efficiency including
conirolling costs throughout
the business.

\We are invesiing in land

from which we expect 1o

cieliver attractive returns
in the future.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP OVERVIEW

effectively as an incentive for
the customer

Operational efficiency
Drving operational efficiency
has remained a significant
focus for the Group Our supply
contracts for matenals continue to
be reviewed and renegotiated as
approprate and we purchase an
ncreasingly significant proportion
of our matenais centrally

We continue to review our
supply chamn to create efficencies
by introducing new suppliers and
altenng build specifications where
appropnate  Standard house-type
costs are benchmarked across
the Group every six months to
ensure the lowest cost s achieved
whilst maintaming the quality
of our homes Overall, we have
seen total housebutlding costs
{including nfrastructure) reduce
by 14% per square foot in the
year Going forward, i 1 Ikely
that some pressure will continue
to be felt as raw matenal prices
nse due to undertying commodity
prce ncreases

Further efficiency savings and
reductions in operating costs
have been achieved through the
ongoing focus on our Quality and
Cost programme which promotes
and shares best practice n the
build process across the Group

We have further reduced our
administration expenses m tha
year and will continue 10 review
thase going forward

Land and planning

Qur strategy continues to be

o optimise our existing land
holdings by getting the best
possible pnces for our products
whilst replanning sites and
reducig builld and associated
costs In the last twelve months
we have replanned a further

80 sites In parheular, we have
continued to be successful

at replacing flats with new
purpose-designed house types
This ensures that we are bulding
the nght mix of products for our
customers, particulary gven the

tending restnctions which still
favour houses over flats

Dunng the year we continued
to invest n land which met our
clearty defined hurdle rates in
terms of profitabiity and retum
on capital, providing attractive
retums at current selling prices
Recently acquwed hugher margin
land 15 now dmang margin
improvement The Group’s
strategy 1s focused on acquinng
land in pnme locations, (for
exarmple with excellent transport
Iinks), and on land that 1s relatively
advanced n terms of gaming
planning consents Wa have
saen pnces for land firming n
the South East as other
housebutiders are targeting this
area We have maintaned our
discipline of not chasing prices

“We remain
committed to
working closely
with local
communities and
councils to ensure
that we can provide
their required
housing to high
environmental and
design standards "

up and have contnued to adopt
an acquisiton strategy that 1s not
uriduly focused on any specific
geographic area

For the full ysar we agreed terms
on £454 1m of land purchases, the
najonty of which wa will acouie on
the bass of defemed payment This
equates to 88 sites and 8 861 plots
of which 86% are for houses The
forecast average seliing pnce on
thes land s ¢ £205,000 based on
curment pnces

Total cash expenditure on
{and In the year was £261m
{2010 £253m)

Land creditors as at 30 June
2011 were £700 7m (2HO
£566 8m) The year on year
increase in land creditors reflects
the significant proportion of newly
acquired land that has been

n BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2011




acquired on deferred terms
Land creditors due within the
next twelve months total £349 1m
(2010 £266 6m}, with £351 6m
{2010 £300 2m} due thersafter
in the penod to 31 December
2011, we expect land creditors
will rernain fairty constant,
dependent upon the satisfaction
of contractual conditions, for
example planning permission

At 30 June 2011, the Group’s
owned and unconditional iand
bank stood at 47,917 plots (2010
50,948 plots) with an adcitional
12,166 plots (2010 11,392 plots)
under conditional contracts,
gving a total of 60,083 plots
(2010 62,340 plots) Thus equates
to approximatety 5 4 years
{2010 5 6 years) of owned
and controlled land based on

2011 completion volumes We
antcipate reducing our owned
and uncondihional land bank,
based on prior year completion
volumes over the next couple of
years to around four years supply
and the condstional land bank
o around one years supply

Of the Group's owned and
unconditonal plots (47,917 plots),
less than 24% by value 1s made
up of imparred land 47% by
value consists of non-impaired
land where the average gross
margin 15 ¢ 10% and the
rernaining 29% consists of land
acquired since re-entenng the
land market N mid-2009 with
an average gross margin of
more than 20% based on
current house pnces

QOur underiying assumptions

Left The Maythoms 15 a scheme of 95 new
homes that hes on the north east side of the
poputar market town of Biggleswade
Bedfordshire

Top nght Hamry and Atdrey Van de Noort
purchased a foor bedroom detached house at
the Dawd Wilson Hormes Hartswood Mews
developmentin Takeley Essex This was the
second home that they had purchased from
the Company In six years

for imparment calculation
purposes are for low singte digtt
seling pnce and cost nfaton in
the past year, we have only seen
a small improverment n underying
prices, but wa have contnued to
deliver further cost reductions We
recognise that the Group 1s not
immune to future pncing trends in
the wider housing market and we
will continue to review the trading
environment and our mparment
assumptions dunng the year to
30 June 2012

At the end of June 2011,
the Group had detatled planning
consent for 96% of budgeted
volumes for the curent financial
year with a further 3% having
outhne planning conseni For
FY 2012/13 70% of forecasted
volumes has detaled planning
consent, with a further 12%
hawing outline planning consent

In addibon, we have c 11,400
(2010 ¢ 11,000) acres of strategic
land which are regulany
reassessed untf the necessary
planning consents are obtaned
They are camed at the lower
of cost and net realsable value
MINIMESEG CUr exposurs to risk.
Strategc fand 15 expected 1o
produce an Ncreasng proporion
of our operabional land m future

years Inthe next few years
plannng consents are expected
on sites contaning around
15,000 units

Government policy
In May 2010 the Govemiment
announced proposals to change
signficantly the planning process
and mplement ‘localism’ thereby
empowerng the local communities
to have more control over and
consequantly derve financial
berefit from local development
Al the same time, tt was confirmed
that there would be cuts In public
expenditurs m areas such as socal
housing Aganst this backdrop
there has been soma disruption
to the planning and housing
development landscape but the
short-tenmn impact on our busmass
has been imted A high
percentage of our land bank
has outline or detatled planning
consent and we have a significant
level of contracted Government
funding for affordable housng
More recently the
Government has focused
on growth strategies and in
recognising the economic
rmulticher effect of housng
developrment they have
encouraged local development,
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP QVERVIEW

with a move towards a ‘planning
presumpton i favour of
sustanable development’

The 2011 Budget
announcements contaned a
number of positive measures for
housebuidars The introduction
of a new Govemment backed
shared equity scheme, FirsiBuy,
provides an important selling toct
for the ndustry given the imited
avalabiity of higher loan to value
{LTV'y mortgages, particutarty for
the ngw buld sector The Group
has a strong track record of
maximising the benefits of the
previous HorneBuy Direct scheme
and this new initiative 15 ikely to
reduce the requirement for our
own shared equity products going
forward We have recawved an
allocation of £24 9m of funding
under the FirstBuy scheme which
will fund the purchase of around
1,400 homes, with Bamratt and the
Homes and Communities Agency
(HCA jointly providing up to 20%
shared equity on each home
purchased from us

The 2011 Budget also included
proposals to Increase the supply
of new housing through the
accelerated release of public land,
the reduction of regulatory cost
and improvements in planning
We have already been successful
N secunng land through the
aasting Delivery Partner Panel
(DPP") nitiative and expect this
further commitment to be an
important source of land for
the Group going forward

Wae remamn committed to
workng closely with local
communiires and councils
to ensure that we can provide
therr requwed housing o high
environmental and design
standards This will need genuine
partnerships and new ways of
collaborating marny of which are
glready emerging We are
detarmmed to be at the forefront
of any changes

The mortgage market
The avallabrity and affordability
of mortgages I1s a key catalyst for

underying housing demand The
level of mortgage approvals has
reduced dramatically in the past
four years from the peak seen
n 2007

The mortgage market for new
bulld housing 1s dominated by a
hrmited number of lenders There
have been some changes in the
respective market shares dunng
the year pnmarily driven by the
retumn of Bulding Societies and
the changes in lending cntena
from certan lenders Some
lenders stit provide a lower LTV on
new build houses when compared
to second hand houses There is
typically a LTV of 90% on second
hand but onty 80% on new build
There does not appear to be any
justification for this differential
and it clearly disadvantages
housebulders and their
customers This discrepancy 1s
a dnver of lower demand for new
homes Shared equity schemes
including Govermment schemes
such as HomeBuy Dwect and the
new FirstBuy scheme have proved
popular dus to this discrepancy

Partner of choice
Dunng the year we have made
progress In secunng land through
Innovative arrangements and
partnerships

Cur speciahst Urban
Regeneration team, working with
our dvisions, contracted 1,147
units on six sites through public
sector partnerships with a gross
denelopment value of ¢ £180m

We have been actvely bidding
for stes throught the three area
based DPPs that were established
n 2010 by the HCA To date,
we have been successful on four
bids accounting for up to 734 plots
and are actvely involved in ten
ongong bids

We believe the Govermment's
recent announcernent of its
ntention to ncreass the release of
public land to buikd up to 100,000
new homas s a positve step
Barrait has a good track record
of working with public sector
partners and should be weil

"The outlook for
the housing
market remains
challengqingasa
result of continuing
constraints on the
avadabulity of
mortgage finance
and overall
economic
uncertainty”

Top The Farways Camberley Surrey

A coflection of ten 5 and 6 bedroom homes
backing onto Camberfey Heath Gotf Course
Bottom Garden robm extension offering a
Ight and spacacus agdion to the Wooobndge
&t Safiron Gardens Sawbndgeworth
Hertfordshire

positionad 1o capitalise on this
nitatve We are already workng
on anumber of pubbc sector
partnership sites Including North
Prospect in Plymouth Hentage
Park in Sitverdale, Staffordshire
and Elba Park near Sunderiand

Joint venture and partnership
opportunities
We continue to explore jont
venture (V') and partnership
opportunities which allow us
to access projects that may not
otherwise be available or reduce
the investmant required and
improve the retumn on capital
employed through construction
managerment or marketng fees
We have established Jvs with
London & Quadrant, one of the
country's largest Residential
Social Landlords, to develop
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two London residental sites
* a 27-storey residential tower
at Al Street on the edge
of the City of London This
devetopment will delver
235 units of which 64 will
be affordable housing, and
* 375 new pnvate flats besde
Arsenal’s Emirates stadum
The development wil comprise
three residential towers with
uruts ranging from studios
to penthouses
Barratt will recene a fee for
construction and marksting
services as well as 50% of
the net profit
We have also established two
additional JVs, in East Gnnstead
and Worthng, with the Wates
Group {Wates"), cne of the UK's
largest bulding and construction
companies This bnngs our total
JVs with Wates to four

Commercial developments
Commercial development revenue
was £49 2m (2010 £35 1m) This
included ravenue from the design
and buiict for a major retaler of
an 867,000 sq ft distnbution
centre In Rochdale This project
was completed in Apnl 2011
The Group's commercial
development operations made
a profit from operations of £0 8m
(2010 loss of £61m)

The Group's commercral
development operation was
also successful during the year
n securing a redavelopment
agreement {or Basildon town
centre, In parmership with our
housebuilding operations

Quality, serwice and design
Dunng the last year we have
updated both the Baratt and
Dawvid Wilson Homes brands with
ntermal layouts designed around
modem Ivng The new designs
were waell receved by consumers
and we are starting to rofi out
both new rangas ~ '‘County” and
‘Classic' Our commitment to
delvenng the highest quality
product and excellent customer
service has been acknowledged

Loy our custornars both through
our intemal survey whers 98%
(2010 97%) of customers woulfd
recommend us to a mend and
our achievement of HBF Frve Star
housebuilder status for a second
successtve year High quality
products have contnbuted to
the dnve for profitabilty through
achieving optimurm seling pncas
and reducing costs

Health, safety and the
environment
We continue to place a high
pnority on the safety of our
employees, contractors,
customers and the wider
community withun which we
operate Dunng the financial year
our Inury Incidence Rate (IR")
was 539 2010 582) per 100,000
persons employed which 1s a
7 4% decrease on last year's
figure We remamn commited
to improving health and safety
and have an Executive Heaith
and Safety Committes, which
reports 10 the Board, 10 dhve
further improvement

We aim to secure a position
as the lowest cost provider
complying with the Code for
Sustamable Homes (the Code’)
Dunng the year we built 3,071
homes to Code Level 3 or above
and we are already starting to
build developments at tugher
Cods levels where required We
are establishing Improved and
lower cost methods which are
allowing us to reduce the cost
of comphance We are well
advanced with the development
of ways of buiding a Code Level 4
house to satisfy the cnteria
without the need for renewable
sources of energy

We are progressing our
development at Hanham Hall,
the UK's first large-scale zero
carbon housing development
We have cleared the site, built the
first two zero carbon houses and
commenced the renovation of the
ongnal isted Hanharm Hall buildng

As well as seskng technological
solutions, we will continue to

discuss with Goverment the most
cost-effectve way of meetng the
enmaronmental chalenges

facing the ndustry

Refinancing
We underiook a complete debt
refinancing n May 2011 This
provides the Group with around
£1 bilion of committed faciities
and prvate placement notes
to May 2015, with some of the
Group's arangements extending
as faras 2021 The effectve cost
of barrowing will be reduced as a
result of improwving the batance of
the faciities between term debt
and that needed to mest our
working capital requirements,
with the terrm debt reducing from
£903m o £311m

The covenant package 15
similar to before, and the faciines
provide appropnate headroom
above our current forecast debt
requirements Net debt as at
30 June 2011 was £322 6m
{2010 £366 9m) Exceplional
costs of £46 5m, relating to the
refinancng and the cancellation
of interest rata swaps, have been
charged o the income statement

Outlook
The outleok for the housing
market remans challenging as a
result of continuing constrants on
the avalabilty of morigage finance
and overall economic uncertainty

Whiist we saw greater stabity
In the second half, trading
condibons reman challenging m
some areas outside the South
East Our London busness
continues to perform pariculany
well, reflecting its strong postion
across the capital

We will continue to dnve
profitability through optimising
the value of the homes we sell
defvenng additional outlets
from our new higher margin
land whifst mamntamng a bght
control over costs and IMproving
operational efficency

Since the end of the last
financial year, sales performance
has been r-line with normal

seascnal trends Given the
increase n active sitas this has
meant we saw weekly net private
raservations increase by 10 2%
over the previous year Net pnvaie
reservations have averaged 0 49
{2010 0 48) per active site per
week Cancellation rates have
remaned fow at an average of
12 4% {2010 12 1%) for the year
to date

We are targeting an increase in
total completions for this financial
year, driven by increasing
numbers of gutlets rather than
higher sales rates We expect
average actve site numbers to
be around 400 (2011 364) for the
year as a whole Forward sales at
11 September 2011 were £8557m
{2010 £865 1m) representing
5,541 plots (2010 5,404 plots)

Qur pnmary focus continues
1o be on optimising seling pnices
We expect to see a further shiftin
product mix, with houses likely
o represent around 70% of total
volumes, resulting n a further
ncrease in prvate average selling
price In addition, the percentage
of our completions that will be
delvered from newar higher
margin sites 1s set to ncrease to
around 35% ths year which wall
enable us to continue to dive

ﬂﬂrgxns{l«t/_

Mark Clare
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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REPOCRT OF THE DIRECTORS
GROUP OVERVIEW

OUR PROGRESS

The overndmng objective that we have set for the
bustness 1s 1o rebuild our profitability We will
do thus through focusing upon three key priontes

PRIORITIES

optimsing sellmg price, operational efficiency
and targeted land buymg At the same time we will
contire to focus upon our continuing objectives
of customer service and quality, investing i our
people, the homes that we builld, environmental
and social responsibility and managing cash flow
Our progress upon these areas 1s set out below

Key priorities to rebuild our profitability:

Optimising selling pnce
We are focused upon
margmn mprovernent
through optimising
selling prices not
pursung volurmes

Operational efficiency
We continue to focus
UpOon ensuring operationat
efficiency including
controliing costs
throughout the busineas

Targeted land buying
‘We are nvesting m
land whuch we expect
to dehver attractive
returns in the future

Comments | | Progress

The average seling pnce of our homes n the year was
£178,300 (2010 £174,300) The average prvate selling
pnce of our homes was £198,800 (2010 £185,200) an
ncrease of 74% due to changss n geographical mx and
further changes 0 product mix with houses representing
66% (2010 60%) of our housebulding complations

Profit frorn operations before operating exceptional
items was £135 0m (2010 £901m), an increase of
509 on the prior year After operating exceptional
temns of £7 7m (2010 £15 Brn), profit from operations
was £127 3m (2010 £74 3m)

Operating margin before aperating exceptional
tems was 6 6% {2010 4 4%). Operatng margin was
63% (2010 37%)

Dunng the year, we have agreed terms on £454 1m
of land purchases, the majority of which are on deferred
terms This equates to 88 sites and 8,861 plots of which
B6% are for houses

tand additions dunng the year wers £395m
(2010 £339m)

Cur owned and controfled land bank consists of
60,083 plots (2010 62,340) which equates to 5 4
(2010 5 6) years supply at 2011 completion volumes
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Our continuing objectives:

Customer service

and qualty

We are commutted to
bulding quality homes
and our teams seek to
ensure that our customers
are satisfied wrth thewr
new home

Investing in our peaple
We recogmise that one of
our key strengths1s cur
people and have therefore
conhnued to mvest 1n themn
and their expertise

The homes that we build
We serve all sectors

of the market, creating
homes for sale and
shared ownership and
work with many partners
on a range of urban
regeneration schemes

Environmental and
social responsibility

We seek 1o manage
environmental, social
and governance rsks
throughout our business

Managing cash flow
We continue to focus upon
managing our cash flow

| Comments

] | Progress I

Wa continue to make progress in improving customer
sarvice and 98% (2010 97%) of our customars
independently surveyed sad they would recommend
us to a friend

We have mantained our maximum Five Star rating
for customer satisfaction awarded by the HBF

Qur site managers won 80 2010 82) NHBG ‘Pride iy
the Job' Quality Awards, more than any other housebuilder
for an unprecedentad seventh consecutve year

During the year many of our employees have benefited
from our sales and marketng, construction and
leadership development programmes

Our wide product range vanes from homes for first-time
buyers, family homes and flats to social housng We also
have a focused commercial developments busness

Total completions for the year were 11,171 (2010 11,377}
nciuding 93 (2010 52} JV complebons in which the Group
had a shae Social housing accounted for 23 8% (2010
16 5%) of completions excluding JVs The proporton of our
completons which were houses in the financial year was
66% (2010 60%)

We continue to make progress developmg lower cost
solutions to meet mcreasing environmental standards
During the year we built 3,071 (2010 1,765) homes
that meet Code Level 3 or above

67% (2010 70%) of our completions In the year
warg built on brownfield land

Health and safety is of paramount importance for our
employess, customars and the public Durng the year
our Inury Incidence Rate (1IR") was 539 {2010 582) per
100,000 employees

Net debt at 30 June 2011 was £322 6m, £44 3m lower
than the pnor year
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BUSINESS REVIEW
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OUR PERFORMANCE

DELIVERING IN
CHALLENGING
TIMES

This was another year of recovery

We have made good progress 1n terms
of rebuilding the profitability of the
Group against a tough market backdrop

Left Copper Quarter, Swansea A development of aver 550 homes featenng the Bamratt
1-pad apartment set alongside the Aber Tawe The development afso compnises 1 2 and
3 bedroom houses utrlising our Aspirations renge and prowides a cantemporary range of
preduct in an histonc lecation a few mules from Swansea city centre

Below The kitchen/dining avea m the Holden show home at the Dawid Wilsen Homes
development at Teignfields, Chudlexgh

he first half was
particularty challenging
with the end of the
Government HomeBuy
Direct scheme and reduced
custormer confidence 0 ight
of the Govemnment’s
Comprehensive Spending Review
in October 2010 Whilst we saw
greater stability dunng the second
hatf of our financial year, trading
condiions rermeaun challenging n
some areas outside the Scuth
East Our London business
continues to perform particulary
well, reflecting our strong position
across the caprtal
We delivered a profit from
operations before operating
exceptional tems of £135 O0m
{010 £90tm) at a margin of
6 6% (2010 4 4%} After operating
exceptional itemns of £7 7m
(2010 £15 8m), our profit
from operations was £127 3m
{2010 £74 3m)
The rcrease in operating
margin before operatng

excepbonal tems 1S explaned by
anumber of factors We achieved
a 1 1% mprovement upon revenue
per square foot on housebulding
compistions and a 1 4% reduction
per square foot on housebuilding
buld costs (including nirastructure)
These coupled with other tems
resulted n a gross margmn of 11 2%,
a 2 4% ncrease on the pnor year
Administratve costs before
exceptional restructunng costs
reduced year-on-year from £94 7m
1o £92 8m Overall wo achieved a
50% improvement IN operating
margin before operating
exceptonal tems n the year

Housebuilding
Dunng the year, we operated from
an average of 364 (2010 360)
actve sites

Total completions were 11,171
(2010 11,377) nclucing 93 (2010
52) from joint ventures in which
we have a share Housebuilding
completons totalled 11,078 (2010
11,325), a decrease of 2 2%
reflecting the lower reservation
rate durng the year, especially
in the first half Housebulldng
revenue totalled £1,986 2m (2010
£2,0001m) Of the housebuiding
completions, private were 8,444
{2010 9,455), and sccial were
2,634 (2010 1,870) Socia
housing completions represented
23 8% of completions in the year,
versus 16 5% in the pnor year
reflsctmg the tugher level of site
openings during the percd and
the phasing of social delivery
frorm existing sites

Net private reservations per
active site per week in the second
half were 0 48 (H2 2010 052),
a significant improvement on the
first half performance {Hi 2011
039) For the full year, net pnvate
reservations per active site per
week were 0 44 (2010 0 50)
The cancellation rate for the full
year was 20 6% {2010 18 0%)

Our average seling pnce
increased by 2 3% to £178,300
(2010 £174,300) as a result of
changes mmix Overall, underiying
sales pnces were broadly flat In
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

the financial year However, we
have seen vanation by region,
with relative strength in the South
East and in particular London

Private average selling pnces
mncreased by 7 4% to £198,900
(2010 £185,200) pnmanly due
to a number of mix changes
ncluiding an increased proportion
of houses compared 10 flats
and a shift n geograptical mix
Sesking to denve the optimum
sales price on every ploi that we
sell has rematned a kay focus for
the business dunng the year
On private completions, we
achieved a 4 5% increase in
the average ravenue per square
foot to £200 3 (2010 £1917)

Qur socidl average selling pnce
decreased by 6 0% to £112,300
{2010 £119,500) due to changes
n mix offset by an ncrease n the
average square footage of our
social completions of 14% to 810
square foot 2010 799 square foot)

Whilst the availability of
mortgage finance at higher ican

to value ratios remamns constraned,

shared equity products continue

to be an important sales tool for

the Group Dunng the year, 22 0%

(2010 27 0%) of our completions

used shared equity products

Of these completions, 609

(5 5%} {2010 1,735 (15 3%)

used HomeBuy Direct and

the remamder used our own

Headstart or Dreamnstart schames
We welcome the launch of

the Govemment's new shared

aquity scheme, FirstBuy, in which

wa have sacured an allocation

of £24 9m and seen good earty

nterest Undear FirstBuy, qualifying

purchasers will be offered a loan

of up 10 20% of the value of the

property, jointly funded by

Barratt and the HCA
Part-exchange has remained

an effective selling tool, with 14 6%

(2010 96%) of our completions

m the year supported by this

We continue to manage carefully

our comritment and axposure to

part-exchange properties which

stood at £78 9m (2010 £47 6my)

at 30 June 2011

Dunng the year we have
contnued to dnve operational
efficiencias from strong build
controls, the use of standard
house types, waste reducton,
central procurement, value
engingering and re-planning
of sites Cverall, we have seen
a reduction n total buld costs
{including infrastructure) with the
cost per square foot reducing by
1 4% We will continue to work In
partnership with our supphers
1o find ways to mihigate increases
In matenal costs, drving for lower
{otal cost solutions whilst
continuing to mantain our very
high build standards We wil
also continue to target further cost
rectuctions and efficiency savings
by further standardisabon of
our specifications without
compromisng brand differentiators
or the high gualty and safety
standards that we operate to

The benefits of our strategies
of optimising the sales pnce of
every plot, controling our costs
and targeted land buying can be
seen in the year with a significant
improvement in our housebulding
operating margin before cperating
exceptional tems to 6 8% (2010
4 6%) and 8 0% (2010 59%) for
the second half of the financial
year Qur housebuilding profit
from operations before operating
excephonal terms for the year
was £134 2m 2010 £914m}
After operating exceptional itarns
of £77m (2010 £11 Om), the
housebuilding profit from
operations was £126 5m
{2010 £8O 4m)

Commercial developments
Conditions in the commercial
property market outside London
reman challenging, with both
weak economic growth and a
constraned lencing envwonment
limiting demand  However, despite
this, the operating performance
from our commernaial developrment
segment improved

Revenue from the commercial
developments business tolalled
£49 2m 2010 £35 1m)with

a profit from operations before
operating excepbonal tems of
£0 8m (2010 loss of £13m)
There were no exceptional items
{2010 £4 8m) resulting in a profit
from operations of £0 8m (2010
foss of £6 1m)

During the year, n addilion
to delvenng 45,000 square fool
of stock property disposals, we
completed construction of a
867,000 square foot warshouse
and distnbution centre in
Rochdale for JD Sports and we
completed the sale of a 73,000
square foot foodstore in South
Shields, occupied by Momsons,
to a private Investor We have
also exchanged contracts with
Sainsbury’s to provids a 35,000
square foot foodstore at a site
at Chapelford, Wamngion, which
15 scheduled for completion in
spnng 2012

On the retail front, we continue
{0 progress our town centre
redevelopment schemes nciuding
secunng a redevelopment
agreement for Basiidon town
centre, n partnershup with our
housebuilding operations

Total completions

11/

Private average sellng pnce

7198900

Average sellng pnce

2 1/8.300

Above The Martowe frve bedroom show home
at De Balliol Chase Bedford A development
to the west of Bedford, it features 52 homes
offenng a complete range of properties from

1 bedroom apartments through to executve

5 bedroorn detached homes

Reght Kelly Cooper Sales Adwiser with 2
model of Hayes Mews A developement of

45 hames 1n Stony Stratford, Milton Keynes
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CASE STUDY SALES AND MARKETING

CUSTOMER
SERVICE

We are committed to offering the highest standards of
customer senace tadored o the needs of our customers
Throughout our busingss our sales and marketing agtvity
15 locused upon each customer and thew journey from
endury thiough to sale and future recommendation

Our brands are clearly differentiated withm the
marketplace and both our Barratt Homes and David
Wiison Homes branding have been updated in the last
twelve months We are currently rolfing out new product
ranges with nternal layouts dessgned around custormer
preferences for modern fvng

We use focused marketing campaigns based upon
the values of each brand to drive customer enqures
aboutour sites These are carefully targeted to each
audience and mclude the use of the nternet, radio and
directmai Duning the year we have further devetoped
our pnine capabulity to provicte enbancements such as
& brochures which today's customers expect

Qur customer call centre enables us to provde a
consistent standard of sennca and deal with high call
volumes helping customers to easily contact us Once
a customer has contacted our call centre ther details
are passed o the relevant Sales Adwviser to enable
them to quickly start to help the customer with ther
home purchase

In order to offer each customer the fughest standards
of customer senice we have continued to invest in
trammg our Sales Adwsers Each Sales Adwser has a
personalised Sales Development Tracker to ensure that
they contmually develop and learn new skills We have
also invested i the 1T mitastructure for our sales centres,
which are all equipped with | Sales prowiding website
capability and access to owr customer database enabling
efficient and tmely follow up of a customer's enqury

Once a customer has chosen thew future home,
we offer a range of targeted discounts and incentves
mnchudng FrsiBuy, our own shared equity products,
part exchange, armed forces discounts and parental
help schemes They can ako personabise therr new
home using our Chosces scheme This offers options
rangmg from carpets and curtans to our m-house
manifactured fitted bedroom furmiture

Every customer 15 ndependently contacted nne
weeks after legal completon and asked to complete a
survey to enabile us to monitor thew sabisiaction In the
year ended 30 June 2011, 98% {2010 97%) of our
customers would ‘Recommend us to a Friend'
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

OUR PERFORMANCE

CREATING NEW
COMMUNITIES

Qur aim 1s to be recognised
as the nation's leading housebuilder
creating comrmunities where people

aspire to live

& operate throughout
Britain under the
Barratt Homes and
Dawid Wilson Homes
brands, and n Kent and elsewhere
in the South East under the Ward
Homes brand At 30 June 2011,
wo were sefling from 377
{2010 339) actve sites across
25 dmsions

We contnue to operate across
a broad spectrum of the market,
creating homes for sale, shared
ownership and affordabte rental
propertes Wa also work with
Government agencies and
housing associahons on a diverse
range of urban regeneration
schemes Private seling prnces
dunng the financial year ranged
{rom £31,500 to £1 5m, with
a prvate average selling pnce
for the year of £198,900
{2010 £185,200)

Dunng the year, we completed
609 (2010 1,735) homes under
the HomeBuy Direct schema
including 448 from the inal
allocation of HomeBuy Diract,
which ceased at the end of
September 2010 In aciditon to this
scheme, we also supporiad 1,823
{2010 1,325) purchasers with our
own shared equity schemes

The provision of social housing
mmans a kay component of our
actvibies with 2,634 (2010 1,870)
homes complated dunng the
financal year ended 30 June 2011
at an average selling pnce of
£112,300 (2010 €119 500)

Above The intenor of ‘The Galsworthy’
afive bedroom family home at St Mary's
Park Hartiey Wintney
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CASE STUDY LONDON

DALSTON SQUARE:
CREATING A COMMUNITY

In London our expertise enables us {0 detver techntcally challenging schemes wiich
create new communibies An excellent example of this is Dalston Square where
we are delivering 553 units, of whrch 90 were fegally completed m the 2010/11
financial year We expect that the entire scheme wll be completed by summer 2013
Thes site was acquired from the London Development Agency { LDA) and
Hackney Borough Councth in comjuncuon with Transport for London We were
selected on our track record for delvery and good working relationship with the
LA Itis achallenging site mcluding four towers constructad on top of a new
raiway station. In order to minmise any vibiatons from the: trams below, vibrabion
pads have been mstafied and the towers haw been constructed usmg steed rather
than congete
The development provdes much needed atiprdable housing and 1, 2, 3 and
4 bedroom fiats ncorporating energy efficiency measures mehuding green roofs
and combined heat and power Many of the flats incorporate wanter gasdens The
development provides a lasting legacy for the community ncluding the constructon
of a mayw new public square and commercial space ncluding a new kbrary
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

LAND AND PLANNING

PLANNING TO
DELIVER FUTURE

Land approvals since mid-2009

Year ended Mid-2009 to
30 June 2011 30 June 2010

£527.2m

GROWTH

Our strategy has remained to replan
existing sites and undertake targeted
land buying to deliver future margin growth

& have detaled years In the next few years
planning consents in planning consents are expected
place on 96% (2010 on¢ 15000 unts

95%) of land requared At 30 June 2011, our land

for 2012 forecast completions and
outline consent in respect of an
additional 3% 2010 3%)

Our land bank

Qur land bank consists of both
owned and controlled plots Al
30 June 2011, we had 60,083
(2010 62,340) owned and
controlled plots consisting of

47 317 (2010 50,948) owned and
unconditional plots and 12,166
(2010 11392} plots under
condibonal contracts This
amountstoca 54 year (2010 56
year) owned and controlled land
bank at 2011 financial year
completions volumes In addition,
we havec 11,400 (2010

¢ 11,000) acres of sirategic land
which are regularty reassessed
until the necessary planning
consents are obtained, and
camed at the lower of cost and
net realsable value mnimising

bank had a carrying value of
£2,189 7m {2010 £2,308 7m)
with an avaerage housebuilding
cost per plot of £43 600 (2010
£43,100) The average ssling
price of the plots within our land
bank s currently expected io be
¢ £183,000 giving an average
plot cost to average saling pnce
ratio of 24% (2010 24%)

Qur land bank carmying
value has been reviewed for
impairment at 30 June 2011
and no additional net excaptional
impairment charge was required
The imparrment review includes
an allowance for low single digit
howse price and build cost
inflation Dunng the year ended
30 June 2011 we have
expernanced vanation in house
price movements by region and
should the actual house pnce
movements for the current
financiat year differ from that

our exposure to nsk from these expected in the umparment
strategic land holdings raview then further imparrments

Strategic land 1s expectad to or raversals in impairments of the
produce an ncreasing proportion | carrying value of our iand bank
of our operational land n future may be required

Total approved £454.1m
Total number of (Hots 8.861
Location

- South : North (by vak:e) 49%

S51%

- South : North (by plots) 41% : 59%
Vendor

- Government : Private (by plots)  10% : 90%
Type

-Houses : Flats {by plots)

86% : 14%

13.359

£86%

34% :

1 34%

S1% :
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Land acquisttion
Each dmision has a dedicated
land buying team with local
knowledge and expenence These
teams entify land suitable for
development and secure planning
parmission to enable new homes
o be built Thus capability,
combined with our strategic land
portfolio, 15 designed to ensura
that we have sufficient land
to meet customer demand

Our future growth and
profitability s nfiuenced by the
qualty of the land that we purchase
and develop During the year we
continued to Invest m land wihich
rmet our clearty defined hurdie rates
N terms of profitabiity and retum
on capital, providing attractive
retums at current selling pncas
For the full year we agreed termms
on £454 1m of land purchases, the

maonty of which we will acquire on
the basis of deferred payment This
equates to 88 sitas and 8,861 plots
of which 86% are for houses The
forecast average seling pnce on
this land s ¢ £205,000, based on
current pnces

Dunng the financa! year,
land additions were £395m
(2010 £339m} and £261m (2010
£253m) was spent on land
resulting in land creditors at
30 June 2011 of £700 7m 2010
£566 8mj of which £348 1m (2010
£266 6m) fall due within one year

We expect our cash
expenditure for land to increase
dunng our 2012 financial year
reflacting the payments, as they
fall due, of deferred amounts upon
the land purchasas acquired since
re-entenng the land market in
mid-2009

Planning
In the year to 30 June 20098
we started the replanning of a
number of our sites to replace
flats with houses, a process
which has contnued in the current
financral year The proportion
of our complstions which were
houses i the financial year was
66% (2010 60%) Outside
London, houses were 74%
(2010 66%) of complshons

At 30 June 2011, detalled
planning consents were in place
on 86% (2010 95%) of land
required to meet our forecast
actnity for the 2012 financial
year In addition, we had outline
planming consents on a further
3% (2010 3%} of our forecast
completion vohumes

“Our future growth
and profitability 1s
influenced by the
quality of the land
that we purchase
and develop
During the year we
continued to invest
n land which met
our clearly defined
hurdle rates in
terms of
profitability and
return on capital,
providing attractive
returns at current
selling prices "

Left Ashdown Place sits in the pretty
willage of Frve Ash Down near the market
town of Ugkhield and the open expanse of
Ashdown Forest
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

SUSTAINABILITY

COMMITTED
T0 OUR
PHILOSOPHIES

We have previously reported under the

title of Corporate Responsibility However,
during the year we have moved to operating
under a sustainability policy wiich is
avalable at www barrattdevelopments co uk
and therefore this year we report under

that heading

e have dentfied and
assessed the key
sustainability nsks
facing the business,
which include Ervironmental,
Social and Govemnance (ESG’)
nsks, and have grouped these into
four key phiosophies so that we
can manage them effectvety
The four philosophies People,
Partners, Planet and Customers
are underpinned by our
commitment to financial
performance and Health and
Safety Eachis led by a member
of the Executve Committes who
is responsible for developing and
implementing sustainatity related
objectives and targets to achieve
the overall sustanability strategy
set by the Board This ensures
that sustamabiity ssues are
embedded in the nommal course

of business and decisions
affecting sustanability 1Issues
can be mplemented swiftly at
an operational level This process
ensures that adequate mformation
n relation to ESG matters is
available to the Board Significant
£SG nsks that could impact on
the future of the business are
ncluded in the principal risks
and uncertanties section

We publish a sustainability
report each year that explans our
approach and our management of
sustamnabilty, govemance and nsk,
and includes the actons we have
taken during the year to irmprove
sustainability performance
Sustainability disclosures in this
Report and the Sustanability
Report, ncluding disclosures
on ESG matters, are based on
nformatton colfected annually
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and from regular management
nformation This nformation i1s
subject 10 ndependent review
and intemal audit

People
One of our kay strengths s
our people Despite the current
BCoNOMIC envwonment 1S
important to continue to develop
their experise Accordingly, we
have continued to nvest n our
vocational and leadership training
programmes as well as employee
development, engagement
and recognition

The Barratt Academy (the
‘Academy’} combines professional
training {on-site and in the
classroom) across three separate
roles apprentices, site managers,
and techricalcommencial
disciplines The core elements
of the Academy include a
dedicated coach for each
delegate, departmentat rotations,
and support for continuous
professionat development, which
leads to a nationally accredited
Construction Skills award

The apprenticeship scheme
compnses both trade and
technical apprenticeships
Apprenticestups last for two
years The qualty of our
apprenticeship scheme was
recognisad in June 2011, when
it was haghly commended in the
Apprenticeshups Natonal Awards
2011 for Large Employer of the
Year We are debghted that one
of our 2010 apprantices was
awarded Apprentice of the
Year for the North East region

We hawe a graduate
development programme which
aims to recruit high potentiat talent
wito the business The programme
iasts for two years and graduates
are gven the opportunity to spend
time in each of our operaticnal
departments, whilst attending
business and parsonal
development courses Alengside
the formal training programme,
graduates are encouraged to
undertaks voluntary projects in
therr local community and as part

of ther project management
module Our current graduates
are working on projects with the
hormelass chanties Centrepomt
and Broadway

In addition we offer specialist
skills training in core areas, such
as health and safety, construction
and design and deliver a suite of
ntemally designed and delivered
management and leadership
training courses These are
designed to assist employees
to develop the skills required
to progress from middle
management through to seruor
management and other high
parformance leadership roles

Dunng the year we have
remamed focused on employee
engagement with our fourth
annual engagement survey
being undertaken n 2011 These

“We work with
Governumnent
agencles and
private landowners
to identify and
bring forward land
for development,
often improving
Its environmental
condihion in
the process”

Left Smon Jones Regrona! NHBG award
winner 2010

Below top Luke Rawdins and Lauren Dawis
purchased at Lancaster Gardens Witham
St Hughs with the help of our armed forces
discount scheme

Below bottorn: Chuldren from Qakwood
Community Piay Group watching a
demonstration by machine operators

bespoke voluntary surveys allow
us to develop engagement plans
throughout our business to seek
to drive further improvermnent We
continue to recognise outstanding
performance of our employees
through quarterly and annual
dmsional awards and annual
national awards for Site
Managers, Sales Adwvisers,
Apprentices, Indmidual Excellence
and Team Excellence In addition,
we continue to operate an instant
recogrnition scheme and in the
year ended 30 June 2011 have
given 1,200 pnzes or an extra
day’s holday to some employess

The expertise of our
construchon teams has again
been recognised extemally, with
80 (2010 82} of our Site Managers
winning ‘Pnde in the Job' quality
awards from the National
House-Bullding Council This 1s
more than any other houssbuilder
for an unprecedentad seventh
consecutive year

Qur targst is to have a
fully certified Construction
Skilis Certification Scheme
{CSCS) warkforce, ncluding
subcontractors At 30 June 2011,
97% (2010 97%) of the Group's
workforce, including
subcontractors, was fully
CSCS certified

Partners
Wa recognise that we cannot
achieve our long-termn goals
actng independently from
our stakeholders and therefore
we sirve {o create and mantamn
partnerships with stakeholders buit
on trust, loyalty and mutual respect
We work with Government
agencies and privata landowners
todentify and bring forward land
for development, often ImMproving
its ervironmental condion in the
process Wa work with suppliers
io help them bnng forward the
new tachnologes that we need
1o meet increasingly challenging
buiiding standards and with
subcontractors to help them
Improve their emvaronmental
and safety standards
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REPCRT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

We aim to create communities
where people aspire to live
and we can only achieve this
by working with existing
communities We engage in
dialogue with local people and
local authonties in order (o seek
to address any ynpact that our
developments may have on
the local environment ang
nfrastructure We regularty
hold public exhbitions for our
developments where we invite
the community and local
authorty to talk to our specialist
planners and architects about
thewr concerns and aspirations
for developments We also
hold an nternal annual design
compebiion which promotes
high standards of design focused
on the layout of developments
the creation of places where
our customers want to live
and compliance with our own
and national design standards

We have always been
concemed with housing
affordabiity 1Issues and have
worked closely with financial
institutions and Govermment for
a number of years {o improve
access to mortgage funding for
customers As aresult we arg
currently working with a number
of partners to help people gain
access 1o appropnate housing

We behave the Govermment's
recent announcement of its
intention to Increase the release
of public land to bulld up to
100,000 new homas 13 a positive
step Bamatt has a good track
racord of working with public
sector partners and should be
well positioned (o capitalise on
this rmitiative We are already
working on a number of public
secior partnership sites including
North Prospect in Plymouth,
Hentage Park in Silverdale,
Staffordshire and Eitba Park
near Sunderiand

We continue to uild the
majonty of our developments on
brownfield sites, with 67% (2010
70%) of our legal completons iy
the year being on brownfisld land

Joint venture and
partnership opportunities
We continue to explore JV and
partnership opportunities which
allow us to access projects that
may otherwise not be available,
or reduce substantially the
investment required

Work on site at Barratt's first
major partnership with London &
Quadrant, the 27-storey residental
tower at Alie Street on the edge of
the City of London, started eartier
this year This development will
deliver 235 units of which 64 will
be affordable housing

We are pleased to have
recently announced our second
major 50 50 JV with London &
Quadrant fo buid 375 new pnvate
homes beside Arsenal’'s Emirates
stadum Tha development will
compnse three residental towers
with units ranging from studios
to penthouses

Barratt will recerve a fee
for construction and marketing
services as well as 50% of the
net profit

Planet
Our development activities have
the potential to impact significantly
on the environment and we are
subject to a stnngent regulatory
regime, including planning and
technical requirements Wa follow
an ervironmenial agenda which
focuses on managing our
emaronmental impact, by helping
our customners to understand this
and mproving the environmentai
standards of what we build and
making our supply chain more
sustanable

Cunng 2010 we worked with
The Carbon Trust to review how
wg control energy consumption
and following this review have
introduced an energy efficiency
programme to seek to reduce
the energy use of our business
without impacting upon
production Qur recently launched
‘Green Tearn ams to focus all
of our dvisions and offices m this
area with the aim of reducng our
energy usage and cost

“We are committed
to offering the
highest standards
of quality and
customer service
We seek to develop
our quahity and
service standards
by hstenmng to
customers,
monioring
performance and
adopting best
practice throughout
the Group "

We monitor the proportion
of construction waste segregated
for recycing on site which this
year improved to 95% (2010
91%) In addition all dwvisions
within the Group continue to
operate an environmental
management system certified
t0 18014001 which is subject
to regular monitonng and audit

Customers

Wa are commutted to offenng the
highest standards of quality and
customer service We seek

to develop our quebty and
service standards by listening

10 customers, monitonng
parformance and adopting best
prackca throughout the Group

Policies

We seek to Iisten to our
customer’s needs, whilst providing
the highest standards of service
ard quality, as well as prowiding
value for money This, along with
our 10 pont ‘Customer Care
Charter’, ensuras we mantamn our
commutrnent to understand our
customers throughout ther
journey with us
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Proportion of construction waste segregated
for recycling on site

Jo7

Percentage of our customers who would
‘recommend us o a fnend’

J98%

Number of our sste managers winning NHBC
‘Pride in the Job' Quaity Awards

a0

Left Work begins at North Prospect
Plymouth a major regenesation project

in partnership with Plymouth Community
Homes and Ptymouth City Councad,
part-funded by the HCA

Abgve The Fairways 8iddenham Vale the
wanner of our internal design competiion

in the non-standard category, 2010

Above nght top A team of our graduates
reach the sunwit of Ben News the first
mountain in the Three Peaks 24 hour
challenge wiulst raismg money for chanty
Above night below 8en and Vikk Dale used
our part-exchange scheme in thew move to
Ashdown Place Uckfield, East Sussex

New product range
Wa have carefully considered
customer preferences in the
development of the Barratt and
Dawd Wilson product ranges
Both brands have been updated
In the last year with intemat layouts
designed with modem Iving I
mind, providing free flowing Inving
areas and natural ight The new
designs were well received by
consumers and we are starting
to roll out both new ranges

Customer feedback indicates
that Barratt homes remain value
for mongy and offer customers
high quakty practical Inang space
The room proportions have been
designed to ensure that they are
larga enough to accommodats
our typrcal customer’s furmiture
requirements whilst ensunng our
extamal designs are aesthetically
pleasing Due o smart,
argonomic design a Barratt
customer can expect a wide
range of features, creating great
value for money

Followng customer feadback,
our David Wilson farmuly hormes
have been provided with more
ganerous circutation space that
delvers an overall sensa of
grandeur and nciudes features

such as more ‘induigent’ kitchens,
en suite bathrooms with targer
baths and the use of muttiple

roof ights in bedrooms

Commumicating with our
customers
Qur sales and marketing team has
continued to promote our brands
throughout the year using focused
marketing campawgns This
included use of the intemet,
racho and direct mail, targeted
incentives and discounts for
customers as well as tools such
as shared equity products and
part-exchange

We recognise that the oniine
market continues to change
at a rapid pace We will gontinue
to enhance our online user
expenence and gualty of
content through greater use of
a-brochures, video, 360 degres
tours, imagery of planned
developments and house types
N addiion to comprehensve
niormation about the local area
In the last year we have
significantly ncreased the
information provided ontine and
this approach 1s sat to continue

We have already invested
heawly In our online capabiities

and technology at cur sales
centres and we continue to
upgrade this 10 seek to ensure
that our Salas Advisers can maka
the sales process as smooth and
simple as possible

Assisting with mortgage
products
Wa also recognise the importance
of assisting custormers to seek to
find suttable financial products to
purchase ther new homes
The Group's Lender Relations
Manager works closely with
mortgage lenders n order to
assure them that the homes bult
by the Group are of aigh qualty
which they can confidently lend on

Ali our dsions and brokers
have implemented our Group
wide processes for dealing with
tenders and surveyors These
ensure that we provde them wath
transparency in relation to our
products and the financeal
amangements between the Group
and our customers These
standards exceed the ndustry
requrements as specified by the
Council of Mortgage Lenders
and the processes are subject
to regular intemal audit

In addition to existing lenders,
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CASE STUDY REGENERATION

ELBA PARK: WORKING

IN PARTNERSHIP

Al Elba Park, Sunderland we are working, m partnership, with
the Homes and Communibies Agency {HCA'), Sunderland City
Coungil, andl 1505 Housing Group 1o deliver a groundbreaking,
sustamable, meed community The site 1s located on the former
Lambton Cokeworks, a 65 heclare site that was in continuous
heavy ndustrial use for over 360 years and & the home to the
finest preserved example of one of the world's ofdest railways

As part of the National Coaltields Regenerabion Scheme
the HCA mvested £25m in reclaimeng the land o create not only
the development platform but a new 52 hectare Country Park
contaming water features, 77,000 new trees, public artworks
and memonals and 3,700 metres of new footpaths

We were chosen as the HCA's preferred partner wia the

Competinve Dialogue Process where the Group demonstrated 1ts
commitment to the development and its partners by sharing their
visions ik terms of Design, Bud Standard, Health and Safety,
Materials Procurement, Tranmg and Employment intiatves,
Community Engagement, Ecology and Sustainable Living,
Programme Delivery and Performance

We are currently on itz with His groundbreaking partnership
delivering a total of 359 contemporarily designed new homes
under the Dawd Wilsonbrand These compnse of a mix of 2, 3, 4
and & bedroom houses inchading executive homes, family homes
and affordabie homes Al homes are constructed to HCA Space
Standards, Lifetime Homes Standard and at Level 4 of the Code
for Sustainable Homes
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"We consider health and safety to
be of paramount importance for
our employees, customers and the
public All our divisions are
cerified to the health and safety
standard OHSAS 18001 "

we actively pursue relationshups
with new fenders to the UK new
buidd market in order to support
the developrnent of new financal
products Most recently this

has taken the form of affordable
‘top up loans' on a secured and
unsecured basis which give
customers access o altermatve
means of brdging the deposit gap

Customer satisfaction
QOur high qualty homes have been
recognised independently by the
achievermant for the second year
running of Five Star bullder status
in the HBF annual customer
satisfaction survey This shows
that over 90% of our customers
questioned were satisfied with the
qualty of their new horme and
would recommend us to a fnend
We montor customer
satisfaction with all of our
customers being ndependently
contacted nine weeks after legal
completion and asked to
complete a survey Over the last
five years these surveys have
shown increases n cusiomer
satsfaction and we are pleased
that in the year ended 30 June
2011 98% (2010 97%;) of our
customers would ‘Recommend

us to aFnend” We monitor the
results of the survey on a monthly
basis throughout cur business

Five-year warranty

We ara the only volume
housebuilder to offer a five-year
warranty which covers fixtures
and fithrgs that 1s additionat to
the ten-yaar NMBC warranty
on the fabnc of the bullding

Health and safety

We considler health and safety to
be of paramount iImportance for
our emplayess, customers and
the puble All Gur dvisions are
certified to the health and safety
standard OHSAS 18001 which
15 venfied by a programme of
internal and external audits

This ensures that we have
consistent and appropnate
standards in place and Is
complemented by our own
comprehenswve Safety, Health
and Ermronmentat Management
System We continually monitor
our performance by carrying out
regular complance audits on all
sites and by regular management
and Board reviews Dunng the
year we camed out over 4,000
mentonng visits and achieved

an average of 96% complance
{2010 98%)

We use our reportable Injury
Incidence Rate ('IR’) as a key
performance indicator to measure
health and safety performance on
a monthly and yearly basis Dunng
the financial year ended 30 Juna
2011 our #R reduced by 7 4%
to 539 (2010 582) per 100,000
persons empioyed We are
committed to seeking to reduce
the lIR year-on-year and we are
working with our suppliers,
partners and local communities
to mmimise the nsk of nury

At the NHBC Health and Safety
Awards 2011 our site managers
were recognised ior high health
and safety performance - 14 site
managers recened commended
awards of whom seven recened
highly commended awards and
Tony Bird, Site Manager from our
Brstol Dmvision was also awarded
the Regionat Award for the
Central Region

The prosecution is proceeding
aganst third parties ansing from
the medent at Bedfort, London
n February 2008, whare carbon
monceada poisoning from a
gas hesting system nstalied by
contractors caused the death of

one person and left another
senously il 1s procesding We
continue to work closety with
the authonties

Above A stunming mixed-use regeneration
project transformung the 1930 s Art Deco
Wallis House and creatmg 787 homes
shaps, offices, hotel and a landscaped
piazza in Brentford, Hounslow
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REPCRT CF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REVIEW

DRIVING
PROFITABILITY AND
REDUCING NET DEBT

The Group has returned to making a profit
before exceptional terns and has reduced
1ts net debt against the backdrop of a
challenging market with continung
constrained mortgage availability

arformance metncs weare
as follows

* Reovenue was £2,035 4m
(2010 £2,035 2m)

* Total completions' decreased by
18% to 11,171 (2010 11,377}

« Profit from operations before
operating exceptional items?
ncreased by 50% to £1350m
(2010 £901m)

* Operatng exceptional items?
compnsed reorganisabon costs
of £7 7rm (2010 £110m) and an
impaimment of inventones of £nil
(2010 £4 8m)

* Profit from operations was
£127 3m (2010 £74 3m)

» Operatng margn befora
operating exceptional items?
was B 6% (2010 4 4%)

* Loss before tax was £11 5m
(2010 £1629m)

* Adjusted profit per share before
exceptional tems® was 2 7p
(2010 loss of 2 9p)

» Basic loss per share was 14p
{2010 14 5p)

Segmental analysis
The Group's operations comprse
two segments, housebuilding
and cormmercial developments
These segments reflect the
diferent product offerings and
market nsks facing the business
The table cpposite shows
the raspectve contnbutions for
these segments to the Group
An analysis of the operationat
performance of these
sagments 15 provided within
the Business review

Exceptional items

The Group incurred exceptional
items befors tax in the year of
£54 2m (2010 £1299m) This
compnsed operating exceptional
tems of £7 7m (2010 £15 8my
and exceptional finance costs

of E46 5m (2010 £114 1m}

Operating exceptronal items

i} Restructunng costs

Dunng the year, the Group
contnued to adjust its operations
inight of current trading
conditions resutting in £77m
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Segmantal analysis

Commaercial
Housebuilding developments Total
£m £m £m
Revenug 1,986 2 492 2,0354
Profit from operatons
before operating
exceptonal tems? 1342 08 1350
Profit from operations 126 & 08 1273

{2010 £11 0m) of rearganisation
and restructunng costs

1} Imparrment of land and
work in progress
The Group has completed a
site-by-site impairment review
using valuatons Incorporating
forecast sales rates and average
sefing pnces that reflect both
current and antcipated trading
conditons The impaimment
reviews nchuda low sngle
digit house pnce and build
cost mflation assumptions
In future penods

Since overall gross margin
achieved across the Group's
developments were pnmarily
in-ine with those incomporated
into prior penod impairment
reviews no further exceptional
imparment was required at
30 June 2011, aithough there
WEre gross Impaiment reversals
and charges of £85 0m (2010
£57 4m) due to vanations in
market conditions across
housebutking sites Changes
ansing from normal trading, such
as planning status, resulted ina
net mventory iImpainment charge
of £5 4m (2010 £7 4m) ncluded
withm profit frorm operatons

Durng the year ended
30 June 2011, we have
axperenced vanation in house
price movements by region and
should the actual house price
movements for the current
financial year differ from that
expected in the imparment
revigw then further impaimments
or reversals In imparments of the
carrying value of our land bank
may be required

We recogrise that the Group
15 not immune to future pneing
trends n the wider housing
marke! and we will continue to
review the trading environment
and our Impaimment assumptions
dunng the year to 30 June 2012

Financing exceptional tem
On 11 May 2011 the Compary
announced the agreement of
a complete debt refinancing
package As a resuit of this,
and the cancellation of £288m
of interest rate swaps due
to the reduction in term debt
and revision of interest rate
hedging policy, the Company
ncurred £46 5m of exceptionat
refinancing costs

In the pnor financal year, the
amendment of the Company’s

Operating prafit before operating
excaptional items

2 1300m

Operating profi

12/73m

Adusted profit per share before
excephonal tems

20D

Total completions of 11 171 2018 11.377)
GOMYDMSE Orivaze complatons of & 444 2010
8 455), soca! compietons of 2.634 2010 1 870
and jont venture completions of 93 (2010 52
Operating excaptonal nems, comprisng
restructunng costs and n 2010 exceptonal

mj were £7 7m (2010 £15 8m)
of whch £7 7m (2010 £11.0m} refated 1o the
housabuidng busness and Sl {2010 £4 8m)
mated [ the sommensial daveioprments Dusnals.
E al toems % exceptonal
toms of £7 7 (2010 £15.8m), exceptional fnance
costs ansng from the refinancing of £46 Sm 2010
£114 1m arang from Ihe amencied fnancing
ATangements) and e related iax creds o
wcapton dems of £14 9m (20100 £35.4m).
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REPCRT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

"During the year, the Group has
successfully driven improvements
in profitability through optimising
sales prices, tight cost control and
reducing the interest charge ™’

finanging amangements resulted
in exceptional costs of £114 1m
The tax benefit of the operating
and financing exceptional items
was £14 9m (2010 £354m)

Finance cost
The net finance charge hefore
exceptional costs for the year was
£92 4m (2010 £121 6m) This
ncluded a non-cash finance
charge of £22 Om (2010 £308m)
After financing exceptional costs
of £46 5m {2010 £114 1m} the net
finance charge for the year was
£138 9m (2010 £235 7m)

For the financial year ending
30 June 2012 we currently expect
that our blended rate of interest
will be between 7 5% and 8%
The cash interest for our 2012
financial year s forecast to be
¢ £70m, a saving of around £5m
pa from the estmated equvalent
cost under our premous financing
arrangements in addition, we are
forecasting a non-cash interast
charge in our 2012 financial year
of¢ £20m

Tax

The Group’s tax charge for the
year was £2 3m (2010 credt of
£44 5m) This differed from the
effectve rate for the year of 27 5%
mainly due to the impact of the
reduction in the corporation tax
rate from 28% to 26% and iis
impact upon the Group's deferred
tax asset and adjustiments retating
{0 procr penods

Dunng the year, the Group
receved tax repayments totaling
£4 5m {2010 £53 8m)

For the financial year ending
30 June 2012 we expect the total
taxation charge to be around the
effective rate of corporation tax of
2575% This excludes the impact
of the charge ansing from the
reduction n the value of the
Group's defarred tax asset dus
1o the reduchon n the standard
rate of corporation tax 10 25%

Dmvidend
The Directors are not
recommending payment of a final
dwvidend in respect of the year
ended 30 June 2011

The Board 1s committed
1o renstating the payment
of dmcdlends, and will, when it
becomes appropnate to do so

Income recognised in equity
Bunng the year ncome of £41 5m
{20610 expense of £3 8m) has
been recognised in equity
predominantly relating to actuanal
gans on the defined benefit
pension scheme and movements
on nterest rate swaps

Balance sheet

The net assets of the Group

increased by £298 9m to

£2,930 im pnmanly reflecting the

actuanal gains upon the defined

benefit pansions scheme and

the loss after tax for the year

of £i3 8m

Net tangible asset value

ncreased by 15% to £2,0379m

{2010 £2,008 Om) and net

tangible asset value per share

at 30 June 2011 was £2 11

{2010 £2 08 per share)

Significant movements in

the balarnce sheet ncluded

* The Group's book value of
land was £2,189 7m (2010
£2,308 7m), a decrease of
£119 0m This decrease included
and additons of £395m offset
by land usage and disposals

+ Group workun progress at
30 June 2011 was £1,023 2m
(2010 £981 4m} The increase
of £41 8m roflects the ncrease
n the Group's site numbers at
the year end Stock and work
n progress has been closely
controlled throughout the year
Unreserved stock units as at
30 June 2011 totalled 2 2 units
{2010 2 2 uruts) per active site

* Group net debt decreased
by £44 3m to £322 6m over
the full year

* Goodwill and intangible assets
emaned at £892 2mas the
annual impairment review of the
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Land bank value

2 190m

Land additions

390

Commtted faciiies and pnvate placement
noles to May 2015

c.57on

entire housebuilkding business
and brand mdicated that no
impairment was required at
the year end

* The Group had a corporation
tax asset of £3 2m (2010 hability
of £2 8m) and a deferred tax
asset of £143 2m (2010
£173 3m} Dunng the year the
Group receved £4 5m 2010
£53 8mj} of tax repayments
The Group's defarred tax asset
decreased by £30 1m mainty
due to the reduction in
corporation tax rate to 26%.
the reduction in defined benefit
pension lability and movements
upon dervative financial
nstruments The changes to
corporation tax rates announced
n the 2011 Budget will further
reduce tha future vatue of the
Group’s deferred tax asset
As the changes were not
substantvely enacted at
30 June 2011, they are not
reflected in the Group's deferred
tax asset The reduction n
corporation tax rate from 26%
1o 25%, which has been enacted
since the balance sheet date,
wilt reduce the Group’s deferred
tax asset by £5 Smto £1377m

* The pension fund deficit on
the Barratt Developments
defined benefit pension scheme
decreased by £34 3mmn the
year to £11 8m mainly due to
contrtbutions to the scheme
and recognition of an expenence
gam upon habilties following
the trustess’ tnennial
actuanal vahation

» Trade and other payables were
£1,378 ’m {2010 £1,313 5m)
including an increase of
£133 9m in land payables from
£566 8m to £700 7m reflecting
increased land acquisiions on
deferred payment terms dunng
the year

Net debt

Group net debt at the year end
was £322 6m (2010 £366 9m}
As we increase site numbers
make payrment for new fand
approvals and budd work n

progress, for completions

in the spnng, particulary in
London, we expeci net debt
as at 31 December 2011 to

be around £850m to £700m
(2010 £5370m} Inhne with
normal seasonal trends we
woulkd expect net debt to reduce
to £400m to £450m as at

30 June 2012

Treasury
in May we announced the
agreement of a complete debt
refinancing package This
provides the Group with around
£1 bilion of committed facilites
and private placement notes to
May 2015, with some of the
Group's amangements extending
as faras 2021 The effectve cost
of borrowing has been reduced as
a result of mproving the balance
of the faciities betwesn term debt
and that nesded to mest our
working capital requirements, with
term debt hawving reduced from
£903m o £311m The covenant
package 1s similar to before and
the faciiies provide appropnate
headroom above our current
forecast debt requrements

As aresult of the reguction in
the level of our term debt, and a
ravision to our nterest rate hedging
pohcy, we have cancelled £288m
of interest rate swaps, leaving a
halanca of £192m n place

The Group has a conservative
treasury nsk management
strategy which ncludes a current
target that 30-60% of the Group's
median gross bormowings
calculated on the tatest three-year
plan should be at fixed rates of
interest Group interest rates are
fixed using both swaps and fixed
rate debt instruments

In concluston

During the year, the Group has
successfully drven Improverments
N profitability through opimising
sales prices, tight cost control
and reducing the interesi charge
These mprovements have
resulted n the Group's profit of
£427Tm 2010 loss of £33 Omy

before tax and excephional costs
After excaptional costs of £54 2m
(2010 £129 9m) the Group made
a loss before tax for the year of
£11 5m {2010 toss of £162 9m).

The refinancing dunng the year
provides the Group with sufficient
committed faciities for its
expected requirements Looking
forward, the Group remans
committed 1o dnving profitabdity
through getting the best possible
prices for its products, delivenng
increased outlets from its new
huigher margn land and continung
o control costs

1,>._J IA\:A-o‘«S

David Thomas
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
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REPCRT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

KEEPING CONTROL
OF OUR BUSINESS

Risk and description I Relevance to strategy

Market
Changes 1n the macroeconomc
environment including
unemployment, buyer confidence,
avallability of mortgage finance,
wmniterest rates, compettor pricing,
falls in house prices or land vahies
or afailure of the housing market to
recover further, may lead to a fall in
the demand for houses which m turn
could result in impairments of the
Group’s inventories, goodwill and
intangible assets

Cost reduction measures may
adversely affect the Group's business
or its abiltty to respend to future
mprovements in market conditions

Liquidity

Unavautahility of sufficient borrowing
facilities to enable the servicing of
liabilihes (including pension funding)
and the mability to refinance facihnes
ag they fall due, obtaun surety bonds,
or comply with borrowing covenanis
Furthermore there are risks to
managemeni of working capial such
as condmonal contracts, buld costs,
jomnt ventures and the cash flows
related to them

The Group's financial and operatonal
performance 1s subject to a number of
nisks The Board seeks to ensure that
appropriate processes are put m place
{o manage, montor and rmitigate these
risks of which the principal risks are
identified inthe table below The Group
recogmnisesthat the managemeni of risk
15 fundamental to the achievement of
Group targets As such management
throughout the Group are involved in
this process

| | Mitigation

The mayority of hormes built by the Group are
purchased by indwduals who rely on the
avalabity of mortgages The confidence of
buyers and ther abiity to obtain mortgages
or other forms of financing are mpacted
by the macroeconomic environment
Accordingly, customer demand s sensitive
to changes In economic conditions

The Group's atulity to grow its business
partly depends on secunng land or options
over sites and having adequate resources
to build sufficrient homes to meet demand
The Group's ability to do this can be
impacted by cash and profit constrants
{see also the Liquidity, Land and
Construction risks sections below)

The Group mantains committed faciities
of different duration that are designed to
ensure that it has sufficient available funds
for operations The Group’s bormowings are
¢yclical during the financial year and peak
amund Apnl/May and October/November
each year as, due to seasonal trends n
income, these are the calendar pomts
when the Group has the highest working
capital requirerments

Tha Group maintains sufficient facity
comrmitiad debt headroom and m addition
has a number of trade finance and surety
faciites that are designed to ensure that the
Group has sufficient bonds available

Aweekly review 15 undertaken of key trading
indicators, ncludng reservations, sales
rates, visitor levels, incentves, competitor
actnity and cash flow projections and,
whera possible, appropnate management
action 1s taken

The Group's Internal systerns clearly
dentify the impact of sales pnce changes
on the margns achievable and as a
mrurnum the Group performs asset
impainment reviews twice a year

The Group works with key mortgage
lenders to ensure that products are
appropriate wherever possibie for
its customers

The Group has developed a 'Plannung
for Recovery' programme to seek to ensure
that approprate systems are in place for
when market condihons further improve,
keeps its cost base tightly controlled and
manages cost reduction measures via the
stewardship of the Executive

The Group has agreed its debt refinancing
which prowidss around £1 bilion of
commutied facihes and prvate placement
notes to May 2015

The Group has in place a
comprehensive regular forecastng process
encompassing profitability, worlang capital
and cash flow that s fully embedded i the
busmiess These forecasts are reguiarty
stress tested to ensure that adequata
headroom withn facikties and banking
covenants s mantaned On a nomnal
operatmg basis the Group has a pobey
of mantaring faciity headroom of up
to £150m
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Risk and description I?e!evance to strategy

Liquidity {conttnued)

People

Inablity to recruit and/or retain
employees with appropriate skill
sets or sufficient numbers of
such employees

Subcontractors and suppliers
Shortages or increased costs

of matertals and skilled labour,

the fatlure of a key supplier or the
mahility to secure supplies upen
appropnate credr terms could
mcrease costs and delay construction

| | Mitigation

The Group airms to attract, retan and
develop a sufficiently skilled and experienced
workforcs in order to mantam high
standards of quality and customer service

The Group uses subcontractors to perform
the majortty of work on stes Thes retams
flexibilty to commence work on new sites and
enhances the Group's buld cost efficiency

The Group has a comprehensive
regular forecasting process for
bond requirements

The Group 1s m compliancs with its
bormowing covenants and at the date
of approval of the 2011 Annual Report and
Accounts, the Group's ntemal forecasts
indicate that it will rernan in compliance
with thase covenants for the foreseeable
future being at ieast twetve months from
the date of signing of the 201 Annual
Report and Accounts

The Group has a comprehensive Human
Resources policy which includes apprentice
schemes, a graduate programme.
successon plannng and traming schemes
tallored to each discipline The Group
continues to target a fully Construction
Skilts Certfication Scheme carded and
qualified workforce

The Group adopts a professional approach
to site management and seeks to partner
with s supply cham The Group has a
policy of having multiple supphers for both
labaour contracts and matenal supphes

and contingency plans should any key
suppher fai
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BUSINESS REVIEW

Risk and description | Relevance to strategy

Land

Inalnity to secure sufficient land
of appropnate size and quality
to provide profitable growth

Government regulation

Inability (o adhere to the increasingly
stringent and complex requilatory
environment, including planning and
techmcal requirements affecting the
housing market and regulatory
requirements more generally

Construction

Failure to1idenbfy and achieve key
construction milestones, ncluding
the impact of adverse weather
conditions, the failure to identify cost
overruns prompily, design and
construction defects, and exposure
10 environmental liabilimes could
delay construction, Increase costs,
recluce selhng prices and result

m Iiigaton and urinsured losses
In addition, large development
projects, including commercial
developments, are complex and
capital itensive and changes may
negatvely impact upon cash flows
Or refurns

l I Mitigation

The Group needs to purchase sufficient
quantities of good qualty land at attractve
prices n order to be ina position to
commence construction and enhance

the Group's abifity to delver strong profit
growth as the housng markst recovers

The Group's land portfoho consists of iand
for the short and medum term as well as
strategic land

The Group seeks to meet regulatory
and planning requirements 1o obtan the
planning permission required to develop
homes and communities

The Group buikds homes and commurities
in Britan ranging from houses to large scale
flatted developments

Potential land acquisiions are subject

to formal apprasal, with those approved
required to achigve an overall Group defined
hurdle rate of retum and to meet the
Compary's strategic cntena for growth
Each dnsion produces a detalled site-by-
site monthly analysis of the amount of tand
currently owned, committed and dentified
These are consolidated for ragular review
at senior managernent and Board level

In addition, each operating dmision holds
weekly land meetings

The Group consults with the Govemment
both directly and through industry bodies
to highilight potential issues and has
considerable n-house techrucal and
planning expertise devotad 1o complymg
with reguiations and achieving
implermentable planning consents

The Group has appropriate policies
and techmical gudance manuals in place
to assist employees to achwave ragulatory
complance and the standards of busness
conduct expected of them

The Group's weekly reporting dentfies
the number of properties at key stages
of constructon Projected construchon
rates are avaluated as part of the monthly
forecasting cycle Davelopment projacts,
inciuding retums and cash flows, are
monitored regulary by dnsional
management teams and the Group
obtans legal and other professional
advice when rquired

The Group regquiarty moniors a number
of anvironmental mpact indicators, the
resuits of which arg disclosed in the
Group's Sustamability Report

Appropnate NSUrance cover 1S
mamntained for the Group's main risks
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Risk and description I Relevance to strategy

Health and Safety

Health and safety breaches can
result in injunes to employees,
subcontractors and suie visitors,
delays in construction, increased
cogts, reputational damage, crimmal
prosecution and civii htigation

Information Technology

Fatlure of the Group's IT systems,
in particular those relating to
surveyng and valuation, could
adversely impact the performance
of the Group

| | Mitigation

Heatth and safety 1s a key issue in the
housebulding sector Given the mherent
nsks assocated with t and managerment
of it, it is of paramount iImportance to the
Group Senior management and the Board
revew heaith and safety matters on a
regular basis and am to reduce nury
Incidence rates by implementing policies
and procaedures aimed at keeping staff
and wisitors free from njury

The ability to be able to optmise prices and
ensura operational efficienicy is essential

to the Group’s perforrnance The Group's
ntegrated management systems enable the
Group to mantam tight control especially
with regards to surveying and valuation

The Group has a dedicated health

and safsty audit department wiich is
mdependent of the management of the
operating divisions  Health and safety
audits are undertaken on a regular basis
and processes are modified as required
with a view to seeking continuous
Improvement Performance 1s reviewed
by the Safety, Health and Ervironment
Committes that meets quarterty Each
month, health and safety reports are
cascaded by each duvision, for review
by the Bxecutive Committee and Board,
which also receves a direct report every
six months from the Safety, Health and
Erwironment Director

A dedicated T team regularty monitors
and mantams Group IT systerns fo ensure
continued functionality A fully tested
disaster recovery programme s in place

Datals of the Group 3 management of iguidity nsk, market rsk credit nsk and capital nsi N relaton o fnancial nstruments are provided N Nota 25 on pages 101 to 106 of ths report.

Detads of the Group 3 contngent kabltes are prowded n note 33 on page 19
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BOARD QF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Robert Lawson
CHAIRMAN

Mark Clare
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Bob Lawson was appointed a Non-Exacutive
Director on 1 June 2008 and Chaimman

on 1 July 2008 He s the Chairman of the
Normination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee Bob s also the
Non-Executve Chairmman of Genus pic and

a Director of Tha Federation of Groundwork
Trusts He was formerly the Chaimman of Hays
plc Managmg Director of the Vitec Group

for three years and Chief Executive of
Electrocompoenents pic for ten years

Robert Davies
SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mark Clare was apponted Group Chief
Exscutive on 2 October 2006 and 1s a member
of the Nominaton Committee He is also
currently a Trustee and Director of the BRE
Trust and UKGBC Limited He was formerty
an Executve Director of Centrica plc and
Managng Director of Centrica’s British Gas
Residential Energy operation He joned British
Gas in 1934, becoming Centnca’s Finance
Director n 1957 and Managing Director of
Bntish Gas Residential Energy in 2002

Tessa Bamford
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Bob Davies was apponted a Non-Executive
Director on 5 May 2004 He s the Charman

of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit and Nomnation Committees He s
curmently the Chaimnan of Eurpports Heldings
Sarl and a member of the Irvestment
Achasory Board for North East Finance Ha was
previously a Non-Exacutave Director of Northem
Rock (Asset Management) plc, Charman of
Brifa, a Non-Executve Director of British Energy
Group pke, the Chief Executve of Armva plc

and the char of the Board of Governors of
Sunderiand Unversity He was also the
Chaimman of the CBI Regronal Councilin the
North East andt a Non-Exacuive Drector of
Sunderiand ARC urban regeneration compary

Tessa Bamford was appainted a Non-
Exgcutve Director on 1 July 2009 and

s a member of the Rermuneration and
Nomination Commitiees Tessa is also

a Non-Executive Director of Wolseley plc,
a consultant at Spencer Stuart and a
Govemor of the Bntigh Institute of Florence
Tessa was formerly a Director of Cantos
Communicatons Limited and a Director
of J Henry Schroder & Co with whom
her career spanned over 12 years in
vanous roles
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Dawvid Thomas
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR

Steven Boyes
GROUP BOARD EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chive Fenton
GROUP BOARD EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dawvid Thomas was appomnted an Exacutive
Director and Group Finance Diractor on

21 July 2009 He was formerty the Group
Finance Director and the Deputy Chief
Executve of The GAME Group pic Before
that he was the Group Finance Drector at
Milenriurn and Copthome Hotels plc and
held senior financial roles with House of
Fraser pic and Forte plc

Roderick MacEachrane
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Steven Boyes was appointed to the Group
Board n 2001 and 1s responsible for the
Group's operations in the Northem, Central
and East regions He also has responsibiity
for a number of Group functions including
procurement, comrmercial, technical and
design and the urban regenseration umit
which specialisas in large scale partnarship
schemes with the public sector and housing
associations Steven joned the Group In
1978, became Technical Director and then
Managing Director of Barratt York before
baing appointed Regional Director for
Barratt Northem n 1999

Mark Rolfe
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Clive Fenton was appointed to the Group
Board n July 2003 and 1s responsible for

the Group's cperatons n the London,
Southem and West regions Hs also has
responsibiity for partnership homes which
acts as the co-ordinator for alt Government
affordable housing indatves  He qualified

as a Chartered Accountant before joning the
Group n 1983 He became Finance Director
of Barratt East London in 1994 and Managing
Directer of Bamatt West London in 1896

Tom Keewvil
GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Rod MacEachrane was apponied a
Non-Executive Cirector on 1 May 2006 and
15 a member of the Audit, Normmation and
Remuneration Committees He s a member
of the Governing Board of the National
House-Butding Councit (NHBC') Foungation,
an independent chantable research
foundation which 15 a jont venture with the
BRE and a Director of the National Centre for
Excellence n Housing He was formerty the
Commercial Director and an Executive
[rrecior of the NHBC Main Board befare
ratinng after 25 years' serce in Apnl 20068

Mark Rotfs was appomted a Non-Executive
Director on 1 May 2008 He s the Chairman
of the Audit Comrmuittes and is a member of
the Nomnation Committee Marks also a
Non-Executve Director of The Sags Group
plc, Homby pic and Debenhams plc and
Chayrnan of Lane Clark & Peacock LLP He
was formerly the Finance Direcior of Gallaher
Group plc for seven years until Apnl 2007
when It was acquired by Japan Tobacco Ing
His career with Gallaher spanned 20 years
dunng wiich tirne he served n vanous
finance and exacutive roles

Tom Keevi was apponted Group General
Counsel and Cormpany Secretary at the
beginring of April 2011 Tom was previously
the Group General Counsel and Comparry
Secretary of United Utibies Group PLC
{2007-2011} and Gallaher Group plc

{2001 -2007), wiich he jomned in 2000 Pror
to this, he was a partner at ntemational law
firm Simmons and Simmons, which he joned
in 1984 Tomis a Non-Executive Director

of the Solicitors Regulation Authority and a
Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
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REPORT CF THE DIRECTORS
GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Introduction from the Chairman

The Board believes that, in terms of the overall direction
and control of Barratt Developments PLC {the 'Company'),
effectve corporate governance comss prncipally from the
establishment and mantenance of values, standards and
discpings the Company seeks to apply in dealings with
shareholders, customers, employees, supplers, contractors
and other stakeholders The Board's stewardship of these
matters and its role N providing appropnate guidance is
prvotal to this ethos Many of the Company's core values and
standands are set out In a range of procedures and practice
gurdelnes commumnicated throughout the Bamatt Group of
companies (the 'Group’) External governance codes also
set the framework for the Group’s ntemal standards and

it therefore seeks to comply with established best practice
n all areas of corporate govemance

Statement of complhiance with Code prowisions

The Cormpany recognises the importance of seekng to
mantan the highest standards of corporate governance

n all areas of its business In June 2010, the Financial
Reporting Counci (the 'FRC’) published the new UK
Corporate Govemnance Code {the 'Coxle’), a copy of whnch
15 avattable from the FRC's website fwww frc org uk) The
Code apphed 1o the Cormparty with effect from 1 July 2010
Being committed to operating n acconiance with the
highest standards of corporate govemnance, the Company
has now impiementad the requirements of the Code,
mciuding those relating to the subnission of all directors for
annual re-glection at the annual general meetng to be held
on 16 November 2011 (the ‘2011 AGM') Throughout the
year ended 30 June 2011 the Company complied with
Section 1 of the Code, detals of wiich can be found below

Risk management and internal controls

A ke focus of the Code i risk managermeant and the
responsibiity of boards to determine the natture and extant
of tha nsks they are willng to take n achieving strategc
cormorate objectives as wall as ncluding an expiicit obigation
for boards to eview the effectiveness of risk management
systems and nternal control For the Group, risk appears n
many forms and can fal nto any one of several categones
such as market, iquadity, peopie, subconiractors and
Health and Safety and IT As thers is no sngie solution for
managng such a diverse range of risks, the Board dedicates
considerable tme to discussing the nsks affecting the Group

and mitgahon agamnst them The principal nskes and
uncertanties of the Group, ther relavance to the Group's
business and the Board's mibgation strategies am set aut
at pages 3210 35

The Company has a clear focus on dentifying and managng
nsk. To enhance this, the management nsk commities,
estabished dunng the 2009/10 financial year, underlook a
reviaw of a number of specific nsks affecting the busness
and reported ts findings to the Audit Commitiee, who took
nto acocount these findings when camying out its revew of

the effectiveness of the Company's nsk management and
ntemal control systems on behalf of the Board

Shareholder engagement

In July 2010 the FRC ntroduced the UK Stewardship Code
wiich ams to enhancs the qualty of engagerment between
the Company and its nstitubonal investors to helpimprove
long-term retumns to sharehokders and the sfficient exarcise
of govemance msponsibities The Board recogrses the
importance of mantaning an ongeing relationship with

the Company's shareholders andg achieves this through
reguiar dialogue with sharsholders on ssues such as the
macroaconomy, the availability of mortgage lending to
custormers, strategy, parformance and govemnance

The Board

In Januery 201 1 the Board met for ts annual strategie revew
to discuss the Company's growth plans and a number

of strategic issues The contnuing reluctance of financng
mnstiutions to prowide third party debt for housebuidng and
commercial projects, the issues created by constrants on
mongage lending and aitemative financng structunes were
amongst the matters explored

The challenges facing the housing market continug but
{ believe that the Company's seruor managerment and
employees reman totaly commutted to deliverng

PeblauG

Robert Lawson
CHAIRMAN
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The Board

Composition

The names, responsibitiies and other detats of the Board Directors are
set out on pages 36 and 37 The Board met on 11 oceasions dunng the
financiat year

Board responsibities

The Company 1s led and controlled by the Board which has overall
responsibility for the conduct of the business of the Group The Board s
respensible for setting the strategic direction of the Group and ensunng
that it has adequats resources and appropnate controls, values and
standards n place to deliver ds strategy Each Board Director s aware of
his/her responsibilities, ndvidually and collectvely, to promote the long
term success of the Company There are a number of matters that have
been specifically reserved #or the Board and these include approval

of the strategy and management of the Group ensunng adequate
financial resources are avalakie, hatf-yearly and annual results, ntenm
management statements and trading updates, dmvdend and treasury
policies, ntemal control and nsk management systerns and processes,
matenal nvestments/transactions, and approval of core policies relating
to, amongst other matters, Health and Safety and Employee Conduct

Board Committees

The Board has established three standng Committees to which it has
delegated specific responsibilities the Audit Committee (pages 44 and
45) the Remuneration Committee {pages 48 to 59), and the Nomnation
Committee (pages 42 and 43) Each Commuttee 1s provided with
sufficient resources to undertaks the duties delegated to them and 1s
able to sesk advice from the Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary and external advisers, as appropnate Membership and
attendance of the Board and of each of its Committees are shown in
Table 1 Each of these Commutiess {and the Board) completed annual
effectiveness reviews (see page 41)

Table 1 - Membership and attendance
at Board and Committee Meetings

Audit Rermumeration  Nomination
The Board Committee Committee Commmttee

Chairman Charrrnan
Bob Lawson 11/ - 55 2/2
Mark Clare® 11/i1 - - 172
Steven Boyes 1M - - -
Clhive Fenton 11/11 - - -
Dawnd Thomas 1111 - - -

Chairman
Bob Davies 11/11 4/4 5/5 2/2
Rod MacEachrang 1111 4/4 5/5 2/2
Tessa Bamiord” 13/11 - a5 2/2
Chairman

Mark Rolfa* 10/11 4/4 - 2/2
Wilkam Shannon** 33 11 272 -

Mark Rofte Teasa Barmford and Mark Clare sapianed the reascn for ther atbisencs o the Chrman prce
1o the meetngs they weara unable 1o a‘tanc
W Srennon resugned rom tha Board and stepped down from hes Commuttes membarshps on
2 Ocwber 20,0

1w wmier of meetngs
aDrector

weriat 2 Drector end /11 indicates numiber of meetngs Mid witst

Board ndependence and balance

At the end of the financial year the Board compnsed nne members,
including the Chairman, four Non Executive Directors and four Executve
Directors The Board therefore believes that it has the appropnate
balance of Executive and ndependent Non-Executive Directors having
regard {o the size and nature of the business and continuing need to
keep its cost base under tight control In addition, the combination of the
rnake-up and calibre of the Non-Executive Directors collectively having
regard to their diverse backgrounds and expenence and therr varying
lengths of service, further enhances this balance

The Board believes that afl of the Non-Executve Directors are
independent in that they have no business or other relationship with
the Group that might influence ther ndependence or jJudgement
Details of their mterests as shareholders are contaned n Table 6

on page 56 of the Remuneration report

Bob Lawson was appointed Non-Executive Chairman of the Comparny
with effect from 1 July 2008 and was considered to be ndependent
on his appontment Bob Lawson's other significant commitments, his
Non-Exacutive Chaymanship of Genus plc and his directorship of The
Federation of Groundwork Trusts, do not impinge upon his availability
to fulfil hus duties to the Company Bob retired from his position as
Non-Executive Charman of Hays pic n Novernber 2010

Rates of Charman, Chref Executve and Semor independent Director
The dvision of responsibility between the Chairman of the Board and
the Group Crief Exacutive 1S clearty defined In wnting and has been
approved by the Board

The Chairman, Bob Lawson leads the Board in the determination of
strategy and in the achieverment of its objectives He 1s responsible for
organising the business of the Board, setting its agenda and ensunng
that adequate time i1s avallable for discussion of all agenda items, n
particular strategic issues, facilitatng the effective contnbution of the
Non-Executve Directors and constructive relations between Executive
and Non-Executve Directors, ensunng that the Board receves timely
and accurate mformation so as to property conduct its busness, and
ensuring effective communication with shareholders The Chairman 1s
supported by the Group Gerneral Counsel and Company Secretary in
carying out these duties

Mark Clare, the Group Chief Executive 1s responsible for the day-to-day
management of the operational actvities of the Group n accordance
with overall strategy and policy as deterrmined by the Board He cames
out duties delegated to him by the Board through an Executve
Commiitee compnsing of the Executrve Directors, the Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary, Tom Keewil, the Managing Director
of Wilkson Bowden Developmients Limited, Nick Richardson, the
Group Director of Corporate Alfars, Patnck Law, the Group People
and Customer Expenence Director, Jayne Mee and the Marketing
Director, Jeremy Hipkiss The Executve Comrmiitee meetson a
weekly basss to review operational matiers and also undertakes

maore n-depth monihly reviews

The current Senior Independent Director, Bob Dawvies, has specific
responsipility for evaluating the performance of the Charrman, at
least annually, with the other Non-Executive Directors {exchuding the

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2011 H




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GOVERNANCE

Chairman) having consutted the Executive Directors beforehand He
15 also responsible for ensunng that, whera required he 15 available to
shareholders to (i) address any matenal issues or concems which the
Charman ancd/or Group Chief Executive have failed 1o resolve, and (i)
Iisten to therr views m order for the Company to gan a balanced
understanding of their 1ssues and concems

Directors’ conflicts of interest

On 1 October 2008, the Companies Act 2006 {the ‘Act’) codified the
duty to avaoid conflicts of interest, by which Directors have a duty to
avoud a situation g3 which they have, or may have, a direct or ndirect
conflict of Interest or possible conflict of interest with the Company
Thes duty applies to the explotation of any property, information or
oppartunity regardless of whether the Company could have taken
advantage of ¢ The Company’s Articles of Association (the ‘Articles’}
were amended at the annual general meeting held on 18 November
2008 to include a general power for the Board to authonse

such conficts

The Board has, in accordance with the Articles and best practice
gudance, authonsed the Nomination Committee to oversee the process
for reviewing and making recommendations to the Board conceming
any actual and/or potential conficts of interest which anse or may anse
n relation to each member of the Board inciuding detarls of any termns
and conditons which it deems necessary to impose on any authonsation
given This process was camed out satisfactonty dunng the year

The Group General Counsel and Company Secretary mantans a
Register of Directors’ confucts of interest which 1s reviewed annually
Following this review the Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary will make recommendations to the Board in respect of any
changes to the authonsahons, or terms and conditions applied, that
may be required Each Director 1 responsible for notfying, and 1s aware
of therr responsibility to notify, the Chairman and/or the Board of any
new conflicts or possible conficts and of any change in circumstances
relating to authonsatons already gven The Board, when authonsing
any confiict or possible confict of ntersst, does not count in the Guorum
the Director whose conflict or possible conflict 1s being discussed and
reserves the nght to excluds a Director from a meeting whilst a conflict
or possible conflict is beng considered  The Board may revoke or vary
any authonsation at any time

Re-appomntment of Non-Executive Directors

Non-Exaecutive Directors are appointed, subject to re-election by
shareholders and statutory provisions refating 1o the removal of
directors, by the Board for an nihial three-year term and normally serve
asecond three-year term Beyond this a third term of up to three years
may be served subjsct to particulary ngorous review and taking

into account the need for progressive refrashment of the Board In
accordance with the Code, any Non-Executive Director who serves nng
years or maore on the Board would be subject to annual appontment

Dunng the year the Board considered and approved the re-appontments
of Bob Lawson, Mark Rolfe, Bob Davies and Roed MacEachrane Bob
Lawson and Mark Rolfe have both completed three years’ service on

the Board this year Bob Davies has comipleted seven years™ service

and Rod MacEachrane has completed five years’ service on the Board
Followang a formal evaluation process ty the Board, i was agreed that

each of Bob Lawson, Mark Rolfe and Rod MacEachrane contnue to be
effective n (and that they sach demonstrate satisfactory commament o)
therr respective roles as Directors Accordingly, the Board re-appointed
each of them, subject to annual re-election by sharenolders, for a further
three-year term Durng this penod gach of them will contnue with the
roles they currently hold upon the Committess of the Board

In hght of having served beyond six years on the Board, the re-
appointment of Bob Davies was subject to parhicularty ngorous review
by the Chaiman and the Nomination Committee The Board believes
that Bob Davies’ performance continues to be effective and that he
demonstrates commitment to his role The Board has therefore agreed
to re-appoint Bobx Davies, subject to annual re-slection, for a further
two-year term, dunng which he will remain as the Senior Independent
Birector and continue n the positions he currently holds upon the
Cornmittees of the Board

The letters of appomtment of the Non Executve Directors are available
for mspection by any person at the Company's registered office dunng
normal office hours and will also be avalable at the 2011 AGM for

15 rminutes before and throughout the meetng The letters of
appointment clearly set out the time commitment expected from each
Non-Executive Director to ensure they sufficiently perform ther duties
and each Non-Executve Director confirms that they are able to allocate
the time commitment required at the tme of appointment and dunng
ther annual effectiveness review

Retirement and re-election of Directors

The Articles currently require Directors to submit themselves for
re-election by shareholders at the first annual general mesting following
their nitial appontment to the Board and thereafter at each subsequent
annual general meeting {AGM') at intervals of no more than three years
The Board has, however, in accordance with the Code and emerging
practice, agreed to submit all of its Dwectors for re-election by the
shareholders at the 2011 AGM, and at subsequent AGMS, imespective
of therr date of appotntment and length of service on the Board Each
of the Directors has been subject to a formal performancea evaluation
process and it 1s believed that they each continue to be effective in and
demonstrate commitment to thesr respective roles Biographies of each
of the Directors and supporting statements for the re-election of all
Directors are set out on pages 36 and 37 of this report and n the Notice
of the 2011 AGM Details of the Executve Directors’ service contracts
can be found N the Remuneration report on pages 54 and 55

The Board recommeends that sharehoiders approve the resolutions to be
put forward at the 2011 AGM relating to the re-election of all Directors

Induction and development

On joning the Company, each new Director 1 provided with an
inducton pack and partcipates m an induction process which includes
site visits, meetmgs with alt Board members and seror and operational
management teams across the business In January of each year the
Board meets for a full day to review and develop the overall business
strategy of the Group which includes presentations from semor
management within the Group as well as external profassionals

The Directors contnue to update therr skifs, knowledge and famiianty
with tha Company by attending appropnate extemal and intsmal serminars
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and traning courses, meetng with senior management and contrung 10
wisit regronal and dvisional operating offices and stes  Additonally, during
the year, guidance on specific mattars such as the steps necessary to put
In place adequate procedures to ensure continung compliance with the
Bribery Act 2010 competition law and the Code, was prowded to the
Board Tha Chairman reqularty reviews and annually agrees traming

and development needs with indmdual Directors

Information and support

The Chairman 1s respansible for ensunng that the Board receves
accurate, imely and clear information Each Director s 1ssued with an
agenda, bnefing papers and comprehensive operating and financial
management reports for the penod under review at least a week

before any Board Meeting The Group General Counsel and Comparty
Secrstary attends all Board and Committee Meetings and all Directors
have access to his advice and f necessary, to ndependent professional
advice at the Company's expense to assist with the discharge of tharr
responsibilities as Directors

All Diractors are provided with a roling three-year schedule of proposed
meeting dates Any Director who 1s unable to attend a meeting 1s invited
to prowide theur views to the Chairman ahead of that meeting, having
reviewed the agenda, bnefing papers and management nformation
Reasons for non-attendance are recorded by the Group General
Counsel and Compary Secretary Thereafter the Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary will, if required, meet with any absent Director
to go through any acton ponts which are of relavance to that Director

Formal mmnutes of each Board meeting are prepared, circulated and
submitied for approval at the next meeting

Performance evaluation

The Board 1s responsible for undertaking a formal and ngorous

annual evaluation of its own performance, that of its Committees

and of ndmidual Directors In 2010 the annual evaluation process was
undertaken by Egon Zehnder Intemational, an external consuttant, who
presented ther findings to the Board n August 2010 and also provided
feedback to each ndvidual Director relating to their respective
performance and coninbution to the Board and ts Committees In
response to these findings, the Board developed an action plan, which
has heen included as a standing Board agenda item dunng 2010/11, to
address the issues entified A number of the 1ssues addressed by the
Board and 1ts Committees (as applicable), dunng the course of the year
sumounded enhancing the effectveness of the Board and Committea
processes and more generally senior succession planning

For the 2010/11 financial year the Board decided to carry out its
performance evaluation ntemally Each Director was asked to complete
separate confidential questionnaires on the effectiveness of the Board
and each of the Committees of which they are a member The Directors
scored the performance of the Board and its Commitiees on vanous
topics ncluding contnbution to strategy; nsk managernent, financial and
operating reporting, matters reserved for the Board, mter-relatonstips
between the Board and its Committees, relations with adwisers and
requiators and Board procedures Responsas were collated by the
Group General Counset and Company Secretary and a non-atinbutable
report on the findings was formally presented to the Board in Jung 2011
for discussion Thereafter the Chaiman conducted one-to-one meetngs

waith indncdual Directors in order to apprasse the performance of each
of them as Board members and explore the performance evaluation
findngs Key outputs nciuded the continued focus on SUCCessIoN
planning at Board and senior management level together with a desire
for an enhanced annual strategc review As a resutt of the performance
evaluation the Board and each of ts Committess reviewed and updated
ther Terms of Reference as appropnate

In accordance with the requirements of the Code  the Charman met
with the Non-Executive Directors ndependently of the Executve
Owectors The Non-Executive Directors, led by the Senior Independent
Director, met without the Chainman being present, to assess the
performance of the Chainman and provided feedback from the process
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GOVERNANCE

Nomunation Commuttee

The Nomination Comimittee compnsas the Chaimman,

the Chief Executive and all four Non-Executive Directors

The Chaiman chairs the meetings of the Nommation
Committee, except when the busmness of the meeting relates
te the appointment of his own successor In accordance

with Code provision B 2 1 the majonty of members (the
Non-Executive Oirectors) are considered by the Company as
beng ndependent The Normmation Committee met on two
occastons dunng the year to explore, amongst other matters,
SENIOr SUCCESSION 1ISSUeS, review Its effectveness and look at
the balance of the Board and ts Cormittess  Attendanoce at
each of these meetings Is shown n Table 1 on page 39

Pnncipal responsibilities

Tha Nomination Comimitiee’s pnncipal esponsibiities nciuds

= regularty reviewing the structure, size and composition
of tha Board, having regard to their balance of skills,
expenence, ndependence and knowledge,

* daveloping succession plans for Dwectors and
senior exgcutves,

+ dentifying and nominating candidates to fill Board
vacancies and evaluating the role and capabilities
required for a particular appointment,

* reviewing the leadership needs of the Group to ensure
continued ability of the Group to compete effectively
in the market,

» annually reviewing, through performance evaluation, the
time required from Non-Executive Directors to fulfit therr
duties, and

* reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the authonsation of conficts of interest of new and
existing Directors

The Terms of Reference for the Nommation Commuttes
are avallable from the Company’s website

J bamattdevelopments co uk.
Bl Jioe

Robert Lawson
CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee leads the process for appomtmants to

the Board and makes recommendations to the Board when suitable
candidates have been identfied When a vacancy anses the Nomination
Committee evaluates the balance of skifls, expenence, ndependence
and knowledge on the Board and on ihat basis prepares a descnption
of the roles and capabiiities required for that appointment The search
for Board candidates 15 camed out, and appointments are made, based
on ment having regard 1o the need to maintain a balance of skills and
experance on the Board, diversity and, where appropnate, refreshment
of Board memberships External recrutment consultants are used
where approprate

The Board cumrently compnses of four Executive and five Non-Executive
Directors (including the Charman) Tessa Bamford was appointed 1o the
Board as a Non-Executive Director in July 2008 Following Lord Davies’
Report Women on Boards, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
the recommendations, as part of ts annual effectiveness exercise The
Committee's pnmary goalis to identify the most appropnate candidates
tojoin the Board and, accordingly, the Committee has formalised its
existing process by amending 1ts Terms of Reference to make it clear
that In considenng succession pranning it has due regard to the benefits
of diversity on the Board, mcluding gender The Nomination Committee
will consider the matter further, once the outcome of the rewew by the
FRC 1s pubhshed

Internal control and approach to nsk management

The Board confirmns in accordance with principle C 2 of the Code
that it has mantained a sound risk management and intemal controls
systems, seekmg to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Group's assets The Board 1s responsible for seeking to determine
the nature and extent of the sigrificant nsks that it 1s appropnate for
the Group to take to achieve s strategic objectives and 1t is the
responsibiity of the Executive Directors and serwor management

to impiement and mamntan the Grouz's ntermal control and nsk
management systems within the govemance and policy framework
approved by the Board The nsk management and ntemal controls
systems have baen i place throughout the year ended 30 June 2011
and up to the date of this report, and ther effectiveness is regularly
reviewed by the Board The nsk management and intemal controls
systerns and their effectiveness accord with the Tumbul gudance
The Group's system of ntemal control s designed {0 manage nsks
that may mpede the achievernent of the Group’s business ctiectives
rathar than to elminate those nsks entirely The systern of intemal control
therefore provides only reasonable, not absolute, assurance agamnst
matenal misstatement or loss  The system of intemal contro! does,
however, prowde reasonable assuranca that potential Issues can

be identified promptly and appropnate remedral action taken

The Group operates intemal controls to ensure that the Group's financial
staterments are reconciled to the underying financial lecigers A review
of the consolidatec accounts and financial statements 1s completed

by management to ensure that the financial position and results of

the Group are appropnately reflected

To enhance the mtemnal control framewark a senior executive Risk
Comumittee was established in the 2008/10 financial year The Risk
Cornmittee consists of standing members compnsing the Group

Finance Director, Group General Counsel and Company Secroetary,
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an Cperationat Executive Director and/or a Regional Managing Director
and the Chief Intemat Auditor Other membiers of the Executive, heads
of function and senior managers attend meetings by iInvitation having
regard to the business areas to be explored Subject to the general
supenasion of the Audit Committee, the Risk Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the Group's intemal control policies and procedures
for the entfication, assessment and reporting of nsks and to assess
individual key nsks on a roling basis

The key aspects of the Group’s system of intemal control and nsk
management framework ara as follows

I} a clear organisational structure with defined levels of authonty
and respangibility for each operating division,
i) financial and management reporting systems under which financial
and operating performance 1s consistently reviewed aganst budget
and forecasts at dmvisional, regional and Group level on a monthly basis,
) identification and review of pnncipal operational nsk areas are
embeddad in the Group's monthly management reporting system,
50 that nsk identification and the controt of nsk are a routine aspect
of management responsibility Amongst other matters, the nsks
reviewed include
* the land and housing markets, including changes in the
rmacroeconomic environment, sales and qualty of product,
* iqudity, including the availabiity of sufficient borrowing faciibies,
* people, ncluding the development of a skiled and
expenenced workforce,
* subcontractors and suppliers,
* land buying,
* Government regulation including obtaning planning permission,
* construction, mcluding achieving key mitestones and the impact
on the environment and social surroundings,
» heaith and safety and
» failure of the Group's IT systems, and
w) comphance with intemnat control and nsk management systems are
supported by the Group's intemal audit team which 1s responsible for
undertaking an annual audit plan and ad hoc audits and reporting to
the Audit Committee, and, If necessary, the Board on the operation
and effectiveness of those systems and any matenal failings with them
The planned programme of audit appraisals across Group operations 15
approved by the Audit Committee and includes full dvisional audits and
targeted audits of key nsk areas such as the land wiability process, land
acquisition control and monitonng, work N progress and subcontractor
payment controls Where the ntemal audit team does nat have the
expertise or resources required to conduct complex audits they use
external expertise

The Group s operations and financing arrangements expose it foa
vanety of financial nsks that include the effects of changes in debt
market prices, credit nsks, iquidity nsks and snterest rates The most
significant of these 10 the Group 15 hquidity nsk and, accordingly there
15 & regular, detalled system for the reporting and forecasting of cash
flows from the operations 1o Group management to ensure that nsks
are prompily identified and appropnate mitigating actions taken These
forecasts ars further stress tested at a Group levet on a regufar basis to
ansure that adequate headroom within faciities and banking covenants
Is mamntained In addibion, the Group has in place a nsk management
programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects of the other nsks on

its financial performance, In particuiar by using financial nstruments,

nciuding debt and dervatives  to hedge interest rates and currency

rates The Group does not use denvative financial nstruments for

speculative purposes The Board approves treasury policies and has

delegated certan day-to-day treasury activities 10 a centralised Treasury

Operating Committee, which in tum regularty reports to the Board ‘
The treasury department implements guidelines that are established

by the Board and the Treasury Operating Commuttee

In accordance with pinciple C 21 of the Code the Board regularty
reviews the effectveness of the Group's system of internal controls,
covenng all matenal centrols including financial, operational and
compliance controls and nsk management systems A nsk framework
has been developed for all business processes by the internal aucit
function and approved by the Audit Commitiee This framewaork forms
the basis of the intermal control audi plan for the year ahead, which
tasts If controls are being apphed effectively n each operating dvision
Matenal 1ssues identified dunng intermal audits and follow-up action
plans are reviewed by the Executve Directors and bty the Board on

a quarterty basis, and necessary actions are immediately taken to
remedy any falings in the intemal control system

Dunng the course of its review of systems of ntemal control, the Boarg
has not identified nor been adwsed of any falings or weaknesses which
It has determined to be significant Therefore, a confirmation of
necessary actions has not been considered appropnate

In addition, the management teams of af operating davisions identify key
nsks i their monthly management reports to the Executive Commuttee
and complete a control self assessment twice a year in which they
confirm that they have applied appropnate levels of control The Aucit
Committee, as a standging agendatem every six months, reviews the nsk
framework 1o determine if the system of nternal control remans effective
and report on therr findings to the Board Dunng the year under review,
the Executve Commuttee pnontised the nsk framework by dentfying

the nsks considered most significant to the Group For each of the nsks
dentified, an assessment has been made of the probatility and potential
smpact on the business and thase nsks are reported on intemally

and reviewed dunng intermal audits and control seif assessments
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
GOVERNANCE

Report of the Audit Committee

Introduction from the Chairman

All members of the Audt Committee, as dentfied in Table 1
on page 39, am independent Non-Executive Directors in
accordance with Code provision C 3 1 Willkam Shannon
stepped down as a member of the Audit Committes on

21 October 2010 The Board is satisfied that | have recent
and relevant financal expenence

The Audit Committee met on four occasions dunng the
financwl year and attendance at each of these meetings

15 set out N Table 1 on page 39 N addition, representatives
from the auditor, Deloitte LLP {'Deloitte’) together with the
Chief Intemal Auditor, attended each of the Audit Committee
meetings dunng the financial year The Group Chief
Executve, the Group Finance Drector and other members
of senior management are also nvited to attend meetngs
(or parts thereof) as required

Mark Rolfe
CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pnncipal responsibilihes

Under its Terms of Reference the Audt Committee’s prncipal

responsibilites, which form part of its annual work programme, Include

* monitonng the integnty of the Group's financial staternents and
reviewing any formal announcements relating to the Group's
financiat performance,

* reviewing and challenging where nacessary the consistency of,
and any proposed changes to, its accounting pokcies,

= monitonng the effectveness independence and objectivity of the
extermal auditor, ther audit and non-audit fees and the effectiveness of
the external audit process,

* making recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment,
re-appantment and remuneration of the extemal auditor,

* monitonng the Group’s financial management and reporting systems
and assessing the integnty and effectiveness of ts accounting
procedures, systemns of nternal control and the process for
identifying and monitonng the matenal nsks facing tha Group,

= reviewing and monitonng the effectiveness of the intemal audit
functron, the annual intemal audit plan and all reports produced by
the ntemal auditor and management’s responsveness 1o the findings
and recommendations of the intermna! auditor, and

« reviewing whistleblowing procedures and ensunng arangements are
n place for proportionate and independent nvestigation and follow-up
acton n respect of any matter raised pursuant to that process

The full Terms of Reference for the Audt Commitiee are available
from the Company's website www barattdevelopments co uk

As well as carying out the work associated with the annual financeal
reporting cycle under its annual work programme, the Audit Commitiee
undertakes other responsibilites dunng the year ncluding reviewing
nsk management processes and framework, the effectiveness of
ntemat control systems, the Audit Committee's Terms of Reference,
non-audit fees policy, the whistieblowing policy, kay accounting
policies, the external audit plan and associated reports

Re-appomtment of Auditor

The Audit Committee considered the re-appointment of Deloitte as

the auditor to the Company n Septermber 2011 Deloitte was apponted
as the auditor of the Company thiough an external tender process n
2007 Taking into account the tenure of the auditor ther objectmty and
independence, the ratic of audit to non-audit fees, therr performance
against the audit plan for the 2010711 financial year, and the quality of
advice and assistance recerved throughout the year, the Committes
conciuded that Deloitte’s performance as auditor to the Company
continues to be satisfactory and recommended {o the Board that a
resolution re-appointing Deloitte a3 the auditor to the Company be
proposed at the 2011 AGM That recommendation was endorsed by
the Board who recommend Deloitte's re-appontment as audttor to
shareholders There are no contractual obligations which restnct the
Audit Committes’s choice of extemal auditor
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Auditor objectivity and independence
The Commsttee reviews the policy the Company has implemented on
Auditor Independence and Non-Audit Fees (the 'Policy’} as part of its
annual work programme  The Policy sets out the duties of the Audit
Committee and the imited range of services which the auditor may
provide without requirng pnor approval of the Audit Committee Any
services outside this scope must be approved by the Audit Committes
In order to rmantan auditor ndependsnce and monitor non-audit fees
meumed by the Group The Policy also sats out a number of services
which the extamal auditor 15 excluded from providing to the Group,
these include
* bookkeeping or other services related to the accounting records

or financial staterments,
« financial Information systems design and implementation relating

to the financial statements or accounting records,
* gppraisal or valuation senaces or faimess opnions,
* actuarial services
= nternal audit outsourcing services, and
* management funchons, legal services or executve racruting

Under the Policy the Company 1s required to, and does, obtan wntten
confirmation from the auditor that they remain independent on an
annual basis

During the 2010/11 financal year Deloitte wera appointed as the Group's
tax advisers following a competitve tender process in which four of the
lsading audit firms took part In making its dacision, the Audit Commitiee
took into account, amongst other factors, the impact of the appointment
on (i) the ratio of audit to non-audit fees, and {ji) auditor ndependence
The Aucit Committee, having constited with the Group Finance Director,
concluded that the audit to non-audit fees ratic remained proportionate
and i ine with bast practice guidelines and, given that the tax advisory
sarvices are managed by a partner who has no rvolvement with the
audit of the Group, 1t was satisfied that the appontment of Deloitte as
tax advisers did not imparr therr ndependence as auditor to the Group
Confirmation of ndependence was also recenved frorm Deloitte pnor to
their appomtment

The Audit Committee confirms that the guidelnes described above
were followed throughout the year; that thers are no mdependence
1ssues In respect of the auditor, and that the Policy has been
appropnately complied with throughout the year under review
Details of the audit related and non-audit fees ncurred by the
Group can be found on page 82

Remuneration Commuiitee

All members of the Remuneraton Committee, as set out in Table 1

on page 39, are considered by the Company to be independent in
accordance with Code provision D2 1 Wilkam Shannon stepped down
as a member of the Remuneration Committee on 21 October 2010

The Remuneration Comimittee met on five occasions during the financial
year Attendance at each of these meetings 15 set out in Table 1 on page
39 The full Terms of Reference for the Rermuneration Committee are
avallable from the Company’s website wwaw barrattdeveloprments o uk

Pnncipal responsibhities

The Rermuneration Committee’s pnncipal responsibiities include

* determining and reviewing the overall remuneration polcy of the
Company with regard to attracting, retaining and motvating directors
and senmior managers of tha expenence and calibre required by the
Company having regard to remuneration pad to employees and
an extemal comparative group of companies

* determining, reviewng and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration package and service contract of the Chairman,

* agreeng targets and benefits in respect of performance related pay
schemes, including long-term performance plans, for all participating
employees which are suthciently chatlenging, fair and highly mobivating,
commensurate with sector practice, and consistent with maximising
shareholder value and the interests and expectations of shareholders,

* agreeing severance amangarments or other compensation for loss of
office or earty retirement for the Chairman, Executive Drectors and
other sanior executves,

» determining, after consultation with the Chief Executive, the total
ndvddual rermuneration package of each executive director and
other senior executives meluding bonuses, INcentive payments
and share options/awards and pension arangements and

» undertaking consultations with institutional investors on remungration
policy and/or other aspects of senior remuneration, as appropnate

The Remuneration Commuttes is also responsible for apponting
consultants to advise on executve remuneration Details of the
consultants appointed dunng the 2010/11 financial year can be
found on page 49 of the Remuneration report

Employment policy and 1nvolvement

The Group 15 committed to seeking to develop the talents of its
amployees so that they can meaxmise therr career potential and

to attempting to provide rewarding careers in an atmosphere that
engenders equal opportunities for all Selection for employment and
promotion 1s based on ment, following an objective assessment

of ability and expenence of candidates after giving full and fair
consideration to all applications {incuding indmduals with disabilities).
The Group 1s also committed to ensunng that its workplaces are free
from uniawiul discnmination of any sort The Group strives to ensure
that its pokcies and practices provide equal opportunities in respect
of issuss such as traning, career development and promoton for all
axsting or potential stalf irespectve of gender, race, ethnic ongin,
colour, religion, physical disability, mantal status sexual onentation
or age Every effort s made to retan and support employees who
bacome disabled whilst working within the Group
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The Board recognises that appropnate employee engagenent 15 a

key factor m the long-term success of the Group |t has, accordingly,
mpiementad a comprehensive employee engagement programime with
the aim of creating a strong, shared cutture Al employees are rited to
take part in an engagement survey each year and the resuits of this survey
are fed back to each operating dwvision, who use the results to formulate
plans for mantaning or improving engagement i the following year

A key part of effective employes engagement 1 communication The
Company seeks to ensure that all significant events, economic factors
and financial updates and the impact of thess on the performance
of the Group are communicated to ermployess through email alerts,
cora bnefings and regular newsletters Additionally the Group Chief
Executive regularty bnefs senior management via conferance calls
which gives themn the opportunity to ask questions and enter nto
dialogue Indvidually and collectively, the Board and the Executve
Committee members visit operating dwvistons and sites frequently

n order to assess operational performance, engage with emplovees
on a one-to-one basis and gan first-hand expenence of employees’
aspirations and concems

The Group runs a graduate Recrutment and Development Programme
consisting of a two-year mulbi-discipinary programme of both on-job
and off-job modules The Group currently has 23 graduates who are
one year Into their two year programme

The Group 1s committed to appropnate employee traning and
development at all lovels of the orgarusation 1 has ntreduced a suite
of lgadership and management development programmes aimed at

all levels within the organisation from graduates to middle management
and through to senior management The programme 15 designed and
delivered internally and is tallored o the needs of the business The
Group also offers the Barratt Acadery, a staged programme to enable
employee development from Apprentice to Site Manager, and also n the
Technical and Commercia! discipkngs Succession planning is in place
across the Group and the leadership development programmes assist
with the development of ndmiduals as part of the succession plan

Iy February 2011 the Company mwited all eligibde employees fo
participate in the third grant under the Savngs Related Share Option
Scheme which was approved by shareholders at the Company’s
2008 AGM (the ‘SRS0S") Thus gave those indwviduals who had
parhcipated n previous grants under the SRSOS  but not used

up all of their enbitlement, the opporturuty {0 INcrease their savngs
and gave other employees the chance to participate n the SRSOS
and become more involved N the Company’s performance

Relations with sharehelders

The Board recognises the importance of having an ongong
relatonship wath its sharehoiders and other stakeholders It fully
supports the pancipies of the Code and the UK Stewardship Code
which encourage open dialogue between companies and their
shareholders The Group has armangements in place which enable

it to communicate effectivety with shareholders in respect of iIssues
such as business strategy, govemance, remuneraton and any senior
management or Board changes

Information about the Group, its Board and its business, ncluding
the annual and intenm reports, Ntenm managernent statements and
trading updates, company announcements and detalls on services
avallable 1o shareholders can be found on the Company's website
www barratidevelopments co uk Information of a pnice sensitive
nature 1Is communicated as required va a Regulated Information
Service and the Grroup strives to ensure that alf key information is
effectivety and clearly communicated

The Group Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director meet
regularly with mvestors and analysts in order to convey an understanding
of the Group’s operations, the market and its management objectives
These meetings take place dunng the year but particularly after the
annual and ntenm resufts announcements The Chairman and other
Non-Executve Directors also have the opportunity to attend meetngs
with major shareholders al the request of either party and the Serior
Independent Dwector s avaltable to mest with major shareholders,

as and when required, to gain an understanding of therr ssues

and concems

The notice of sach AGM and related papers are circulated to all
shareholders at least 20 working days bafore the meeting Al Directors,
including the Chairmen of each of the Commuttees, attend every AGM
and are avalable to answer shareholder questions befare, dunng and
after the meetng The Group Chief Executive also gives a presentabion
on the progress and performance of the Group pnor 1o the formal
business of the meeting

In order to ensure that ak Directors are aware of, and have a clear
understanding of, the views of major shareholders, the Group Finance
Drrector presents regular reports to the Board on the Comparty's
wvestor relations actvities
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Going concern

In determining the appropnate basis of preparation of the financial
staterments, the Directors are required to consider whether the Group
can continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future

The Group's business actmties, together with factors which the
Directors consider are likely to affect its future development, financal
performance and financial position are set out n the Group Chief
Executve’s review on pages 6 10 11 and the Business review on pages
1410 35 The matenal financial and operational nsks and uncertaintes
that may impact the Group’s performance and ther mitigation are
outlned on pages 32 to 35 and financial nsks including fiquidity nsk,
rmarket nsk, credit nsk and capital nsk are outlined in note 25

The financiat performance of the Group is depandent upon the wider
econormic ervironment i which the Group operates As explanad in
the prnaipak nsks and uncertamhes on pages 32 to 35, factors that
partcularty impact upon the performance of the Group include changes
In the macroeconomic environment Including buyer confidence,
availabuity of mortgage finance for the Group's purchasers and

nitergst rates

On 10 May 2011 the Group agreed a complete debt refinancing
package This provides the Group with around £1 billon of committed
facities and private placement notes to May 2015, with sorme of the
Group's amangements extending as far as 2021 The covenant package
15 similar to before and the faciities and private placement notes provide
appropnate headroom above our current forecast debt requirements

Accordingly, after making enquines, the Directors have formad a
Judgement at the tme of approving these Annual Report and Accounts
that there Is a reasonable expectaton that the Company has adequate
resources to contnue i operational existence for the foreseeable future,
bamng at least twelve manths from the date of these Annual Report and
Accounts For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concem
basis in prepanng the Annual Report and Accounts

Oan
Toe— < =

Tom Keewil
CGROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
13 September 2011

L~
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REMUNERATION REPORT

| am pleased to present the Directors” Remunaration

report for the financial year ended 30 June 2011 (the
‘Remuneration report’) on bahalf of the Remuneration
Committes (the ‘Committee’} The Remuneraton report

15 prepared n accordance with schedule 8 of tha Large
and Medum-seed Companies and Groups (Accounts and
Reports) Regutations 2008 (S | 2008/410} {the 'Regulations')
and will be subject to an advisory vote at the 2011 AGM

The Board recognises that the Group's remuneration policy
should seek to attract, etan and motvate directors and
senmior managers of the qualty required to enable successiul
future growth of the Company n a chaflenging market, whilst
ensuring that executive remuneration remans aligned 10

the long-term performance of the Company and the nterests
of sharehoiders In detenmining the levels of remuneration

for Executve Diractors, consideration s given to the overall
performance of the Group, packages offered by comparative
companes N the sector and the pay and employment
condttions being offered to employees throughout

the Group

Details of the Group’s remuneration policy and remunerabon
packages of Executve Dractors can be found on the
foliowng pages of this Remuneration report. Howaver,

key ponts to be aware of this year are

1 Executve Directors will not recene a salary increase
for the 201112 financed year To provide some contaxt,
there has been only one year where an increase was
magde to Executive Drector salaries n the last four years

2 Under the annual bonus scheme, the payment for
on-target performance and maxamum potential remans
unchanged at 75% and 150% respectively Up to
one-third of this masamum bonus 1s payable in Company
shares and will be defermed for three years It should
be noted that prior to 2009 the payment for on-target
perforrmance was 130% with a maximum bonus potental
of 180%

3 A clawback prowsion apphies 10 any annual bonuses pad
and to any share awards granted under the Executive
Sharg Opbon Scheme ('ESOS’) and the Long-Term
Perforrrance Plan (the 'LTPP?), subject, v the case
of HMRC approved options, to such approvat
The Commetiee has retanead s general dscration to
reduce levels of bonus and share vestng whem the

Company's overall financal performance relatve to the
house buikd sactor doss not pustly the ndicated level
of bonus or vesting

4 For the 2011/12 financial year, Executive Directors will
be granted awands under the LTPP Consistent with the
approach taken last year, the Committee has decded not
to revert 1o making awards of 200% of salary, nstsad the
level of the award will ba mamtamed at 150% of bass
salary and will be subject to two performance condtions,
half will be based on retatve Total Shareholder Retum
(TSR} end the other half on Eamings per Share (EPS')
targets to be measured over a three year performance
penod commenaing 1 Juty 2011

5 in December 2009, Executve Drectors were granted
share options under the ESOS (the '2009/10 ESOSY)
Half of these awards ame subject to TSR performance
conditions and the other half are subject to annual EPS
performance conditions measured over a three-year
performance period 9 6% of the award subyect to EPS
vested n 2010 The second third of the award subject to
the BEPS performances condibion was tased on the EPS
performance for the financial year endad 30 June 2011
Actual performance aganst the target was 39 0%
resuftng n 6 5% of the award vesting in total, 16 1%
of the EPS elarment of the award has so far been achieved
{see page 52 for further details)

During the year the Committee complied with those
aspects of the Code relevant to its business and seeks to

demonstrate 1ts accountabdity on executive remuneration to
shareholders through this report and through dialogus with
nstiutional nvestors The Comimuttee wik consider both the
sharsholders’ vote on the report and views expressed by

shareholdersmmedetaﬂofm at the 2011 AGM

Robert Davies
CHAIRMAN GOF
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Remuneration Committee

The Committee operates within terms of reference and govermance
policies approved by the Board The full Terms of Reference are avallable
from the Company’s website at www barattdevelopments co uk

Principal respansibiities

The principal responsibiities of the Committee are

» determining and reviewing the overall remuneration policy of the
Company with regard to attracting, retaining and motivating directors
and senior managers of the expenence and calbre required by the
Company having regard to remuneration paid to ernployees and an
external comparative group of companies,

» determining, reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package and letter of appontment
of the Chatrrman,

* agreeing targets and benefits In respect of performance related pay
schemes, meluding long-term performance plans, for all parbicipating
empioyees which are suffictently challenging, fair and highly
motivating, commensurate with sector practice, and consistent with
maximising shareholder vatue and the interests and expectations
of sharehoiders,

* agreeing severance arrangements or other compensation for loss
of office or early retirement for the Chairman, Executive Directors
and other senior executives,

* determining, after consultation with the Chief Executve, the total
ndvidual remuneration package of each Executive Director and
other senior executives INcluding bonuses, INcentive payments
and share opticns/awards and pension arrangements and

+ undertaking consultations with institutional investors on remuneration
polcy and/or other aspects of senior remuneration, as appropnate

The Committee 1s also responsible for appointing consultants o advise
on executive remuneration  Details of the consultants apponted dunng
the financial year ended 30 June 2011 are set out below

Membership and proceedings of the Remuneration Commuittee
The members of the Committee dunng the financial year were Bob
Davies (Charman), Beb Lawson, Witham Shannon {until he resigned
as a Director of the Company on 21 October 2010), Rod MacEachrane
and Tessa Bamiord The Group General Counsel and Company
Secratary Tom Keewll, acts as Secretary to the Commuttee The
Committee met on five occasions dunng the financial year and
attendance at each of these meetings 1s descnbed In Table 1 on
page 39 of the Corporate Govemance report Al Commitiee members
are considered !0 be ndependent with no financial nterest in the
Committes s decisions, other than as shareholders and the fees

paid to them as Non-Executve Directors No matenal issues arose
fram the annual effectiveness exercise that the Committee undertook
dunng the year ajthough its Terms of References were updated as part
of that process Details of Directors' shareholdings can be found on
page 56 of this Rermuneration report

Advice/Advisers

During the year the Committee has taken advice from mdependent
adwvisers, Hewitt New Bndge Street {'HNBS'), a dwistor: of Acn Hewatt
Limiled HNBS was appomnted by the Commuttee as remuneration
consultants in 2008 and 1s a founder signatory to the Remuneration
Consuftants Group’s Code of Conduct In addidion {o advising the

Committee, HNBS also provided the Company with adwice on
implementing decisions mads by the Committee and remuneration
benchmarking HNBS's fees for providing such adwice amounted to
approxmately £27,000 2010 £61,000) for the year ended 30 June 2011
HNBS and Aon Hewitt Limited did not provide any other services to

the Company dunng the year {except for certan broking services related
10 employee benefits provided by another subsidiary of the Aon Hewtt
Group, Aon Consulting Limited} In ine with best practice, the
Committee assesses, from time to ime, whether the appomtment
remains appropnale or should be put out 10 fender as part of ts
effectveness review The Gommitiee undertook such an assessment
dunng the year and remams satisfied with HNBS's appointment as
advisers to the Committee Mercer Limited has advised the Company
m relation to vanous pension 1ssues and has been apponted actuary

1o the Barratt Group Penston and Life Assurance Scheme since

2004 Slaughter and May are the corporate legal advisers to the
Company and have provided advics In respect of the operation of

the Company’s share incentive and share option plans and the

Group’s debt refinancing

In addition to adwvice from extemnal consultants, the Committee
receved Input to ther decision making from the Group Chief Executive,
the Group Peopie and Customer Expenence Director and the Group
Generai Counsel and Company Secretary None of these individuals
were present at any tme when ther own remunerahion was

being considered

Remuneration policy
The Group's remuneration policy ams to atiract, retan, motvate and
reward Executrve Directors and senicr managers who are fully focused
and incentmvised to sustain the growth and profitabilty of the busmness
Each year the Committes reviews the policy on executive remuneration
mn the context of the business envionment, regulation and best practice,
and market trends for the current and subsequent financial years
The Committee believes that executive remuneration should
* be fully algned with the performance and strategic objectives
of the Company,
* ba aligned with the nterests and expectations of shareholders,
* fake account of pay and employment condons of employees across
the Group,
= reward the sustaned growth and profitability of the business, and
» conform with market-leading best practice and regulations

The executve remuneration package for the following year i1s therefore

based on the following pnnciples

* performance-related remuneration should be Iinked to the
achigvement of demanding performance targets, currently
approximately 70% of the total executive remuneration potential
15 performance based {see Chart 1 on page 50),

* performance-related remunerabion should akgn the interests of
executves with those of shareholders by setting performance targets
based on measures of sharehoider return With the exception of the
share options granted in 2008, which were based on a retum on
capital employed performance metnc, the Committee’s policy 1s
o uss a combmation of TSR and EPS performance condiions
to achieve alignment, and

* total remuneration for outstanding performance 1s competitive with
that avalable efsewhere in the sector
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The Committee has the discretion te and does consider corporate
performance on enwironmental, social and governance nsks and
issues when setting the remuneration of the Executve Directors and
senior management to ensure that remuneration structures do not
nadvertently motiate iresponsible behaviour Tha Comimittes

has considered the structure of Executive Directors’ remuneration
packages from a general nsk perspective and 1s satisfied that
remuneration packages do not encourage nappropnate nsk taking
Risk is also taken into account when setting the targets and when
detarmining entitiements under variable reward schemes The
Commuttee ensures that targets, whilst stretching, are realistic

and attainable, for the long-term benefit of the Company, and not
achievable by taking inappropnate business nsks The levels of pay
and employment conditions throughout the Group are also taken
into consideration when setting Exacutive Directors’ remuneration

Clawback

The Gompany has a power of clawback in respect of any annual

bonus pard and to any share awards granted under the LTPP or ESOS

in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2010 and later years

subject In tha case of HMRC approved options, 1o such approval

The clawback can be nvoked if

{a} it 1s necessary to restate the Company’s accounts used to calculate
aparticpant’s entitlement to bonus or share awards in crcumstances
where the ongnal over-statement has led to a bonus beng paid or
share awards baing granted which would not otherwise have been
pad or granted, or

{b) the participant s found guity of any cniminal actvty N connection
with his employment and this related to an act which ted 10 a bonus
being paid or share awards being granted to him or her

In such creumstances, the Commuittee may determmne that the bonus
and/or share award will be retrospectively recalculated If bonus
monies have been pad the participant will be required to reimburse the
Compary for an amount up to the total amount of the net bonus pad
less ary borws that the Commitiee determines would have been pard
regardless of the event in question |f share awards have been granted,
the number of awards or options granted will be reduced accordngly

Executive Directors’ shareholding guidelines

The Committes has implemented the following sharsholding guidelines

for all Executive Directors in order to further afign the nterests of the

Exacutives with the expectations of the Company’s shareholders

» within five years of beng appointed to the Board, Executve Directors
are required to build up, and retan, odinary shares in the Company
equrvalent n value to 100% of ther base annual salary,

s the share price to be used for the purposes of determining the value
of the shares will be that prevaiing on 30 June in each year, and

* provided that Executive Directors held the appropnate level of shares,
they may sell shares (i to realise therr LTPP awards, or i) upon the
exercise of share options, subject 1o the normal Listing Rules and
Disclosure and Transparency Rules’ requirerments for Directors’ dealngs

Although these guidelngs are currently only applicable to Steven Boyes
and Clve Fenton, the Committee also reviewed the shareholding value
for Mark Clare given that he wall complete five years' service n October
2011 Mark Clare substantially exceeds the shareholding threshold Both
Steven Boyes and Clive Fenton met the shareholding gudelines until the
econormic downturn in earty 2008 which resulted n an unprecedented
reduchion in the share price The moderate improvernent e the share
price dunng the year saw Steven Boyes exceed the minimum
requirements of the shareholding guidelines whist Clive Fenton's
shareholkding increased in value to 85% 2010 70%) of his base annual
salary Hawving regard to the continued challenging and constrained
market conditions, the Committee 1s not requinng Ciive Fenton to
purchase addional shares to respond to this temporary position

but it will review the position agan on or after 30 June 2012

The remuneration package for Executive Directors

The rermuneration package for Executve Diractors compnses
= base salary,

* annual performance related bonus,

* long-term share incentrves, and

* pension and other benefits

Tha performance conditions which apply to the performance related
elernent of executive remuneration are the sarme for all Executive
Directors and are set out in the following sections of this Rermuneration
report and detalls on how the expected values for share based
payrments are calculated can be found nnote 28 on pages 110to 116

Base salary

Base salanes for Executve Directors are a fixed annuat sum payable n
monthly nstalments m cash Base sataries are reviewed annually having
regard to ndwvidual responsibilities, skills and expenence; salary levels

for similar postions In other major housebuilders and other comparabla
companies compnsing the FTSE 250; the level of pay ncreases awarded
across the Group; economic and market condibions, and the performance
of the Group Any changes to base salary take effect from 1 July annually

Although market conditions have mproved dunng the 2010/11 financial
year they shil emain constraned and challenging In order to control
costs, the Executve decded to award a 2% pay increase oy to those
employees below middle management Accordngly, Executve Directors
and other senior executives did not recene a salary increase for the
201112 financial year Executrve Directors’ salanes, with effect from

1 July 2011, remain as shown in Tabie 2
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Table 2 - Executive Directors’ salanes

Per annum

201 2010

£ Iy

Mark Clarg 642 600 842,600
David Thomas 408,000 408,000
Steven Boves 390,000 390,000
Clve Fenton 390,000 390,000

Annual bonus

The Company’s annual bonus ptan ams to motvate and reward
Executrve Dwectors for the achievement of demanding financial
objectives and key strategic measures as set by the Board The
Commuttee ensures that performance measures for bonuses are
stretching whilst having regard to the nature and nsk profile of the
Company The periormance measures aganst which bonus payments
for the 2011/12 financial year will be determined nclude pre-tax profit,
cash generation, personal objectives and employee engagement

in addition to these performance measures, the Committee has
ntroduced a penalty whereby 10% of any annual bonus eamed will
be forfetted for falure to achieve the on-target performance measure
for either customer service or health and safety As a result, were
netther of these on-target performance measures to be achieved,

n aggregate 20% of the annual borus eamed would be forferted

For the financial year ending 30 June 2012, the Commuttes has
mantanad the maximum cash bonus for Executive Directors at

100% of base salary However to ensure that the Company's

bonus arangements continue {o incentmse management to rebuilld
profitability, Executive Directors may be awarded a supplemental bonus,
of up to 50% of base salary, for significant over-performance measured
aganst the pre-tax profit target only This element will be deferred nto
shares n the Company, held under the Co-Investment Plan for a penod
of three years with a continued empioyment condiion No other
performance conditions will apply to thrs award and the Committeg
has agreed that no matching shares will be awarded agamnst these
shares Accordingly, the total annual bonus opportunity for Executive
Directors remans at 150% of base satary for the 2011/12 financial year
The paymeni for on-target performance will reman at 75% of base
salary 115 worth noting that the on-target and maxirmum bonus
potential for the forthcoming year still remain below the levels In place
pnor o the economic downtum, which were at 130% and 180%

of salary respectively In addition, the Committee has retaned a
general discretion in the making of bonus payments, and will continue
to conser, amoeng oiher factors, the undertying financial periormance
of the business relative to the sector i its decision making

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, the Commuties has approved
a bonus payment of approximately 556% of base salary 1o Executve
Directors based on performance against financial, non-financial and
indmadual objectives The Committee beheves that thus level of bonus 1s
Justified on the basis that the Company has delivered operating profit
before exceptional tems (which determined 50% of the total bonus for
the year) of £135m aganst the mmnimum threshold established for the
bonus of £135m and the target leve! of £150m. No part of the annual
bonus 18 pensonable

Share incentive schemes

Durmg the year the Cornmittes undertook a review of the share ncentve
schemes cumently n operation and agreed that grant levels, performance
cntena and vesting schedules reman appropnate to the Company’s
current circumstances and prospects There have been no significant
amendments to the terms and condiions of any entitlement under any
scheme Details of all Executve Directors’ share options and long-term
performance ptans are set out n Tables 7 and 8 on pages 57 and 58

Each of the share schemes currently In operation 1s subject to two
performance conditions and a three-year performance penod Half of
the awands will vest on attanment of a performance target on relatve
TSR and the other half on the attanment of a target based on EPS
The TSR and EPS performance conditons are calculated as follows

TSR

The TSR element 15 calculated as the percentage change n share
pnce plus dmvidends over a three-year performance penod aganst

the comparator group compnsing the FTSE 250 {excluding nmvestment
frusts), with the opering share pnce averaged across the dealng days
In the three-month penod ending mmediately before the start of the
performance pencd and the closing pnce averaged over the dealing
days in tha fast three months of the performance penod Performance
against the TSR target 1s measured at the end of a three-year
performance penod

EPS

The EPS for the Company I1s calculated by dvding the growth in
EPS over a three-year performance penod by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares i issue at the end of the performance
penod {exciuding those held by the Employee Benefit Trust) For alf
schemas (except for the 2009/10 ESOS) performance aganst the
EPS target Is tested after the end of a three-year performance penod
Detatls in rgspect of the lesting of the 2009/10 ESOS can be found
on page 52 of {tus Remuneration report

New awards to be granted during the financial year ending

30 June 2012

As per the 2010/11 financial year, the Committee has decided to grant
LTPP awards to Executrve Directors dunng the financial year ending
30 June 2012

The LTPP was approved by shareholders at the AGM held in Novermber
2003 Awards under the LTPP are at the discretion of the Commuitiee,
taking mto account ndnvidual performance and the overalt parformance
of the Group An employee 1 not eligible to receve optrons under the
ESOS and awards under the LTPP n the same financial year

Any LTPP awards that are miade in the 2011/12 financial year {the
‘2011112 LTPP Award') will not exceed 150% of base salary and will be
subject to three-year TSR arwd EPS conditions  The vesting of haif of the
201112 LTPP Award subject to a TSR condibon will be dependent upon
the Company’s performance over three years, commencng 1 July 2011,
against the constituents of the FTSE 250, excluding invesiment trusts
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Levels of vesiing aganst the TSR condition will be as follows

Rank of Company's TSR agalnst Level of vesting
comparator group of TSR element
Upper Quartide or above 100%
Median 25%
Below Median 0%
Between Upper Qriartle Straight-lne basis
and Median between 25% and 100%

The other half of the award which is based on a EPS measure will
vest on the attainmant of the EPS target for the financial year ending
30 June 2014 The Committee believes that a wide target range
should be set for the EPS element in order to ensure full engagement
from management by having an achievable minimum vesting level
whilst requinng outstanding performance to achieve maximum level
of vesting

Accordingly, the levels of vesting aganst the EPS will be as follows

EPS target - tevel of vesting
Financial year 201314 of EPS slement
30 pence per share or higher 100%
12 5 pence per sharg 25%
Balow 12 5 pence per sharg 0%
Batween 12 5 pence and 30 Straight-lne basis
pence per share between 25% and 100%

In addition to the above, vesting of the 2011/12 LTPP Award will be
subject to an overnding Commities discration, in that the Committes
must be satisfied that the underlying financial performance of the
Company over the performance penod warrants the level of vesting
as determined by applying the above targets If the Commitiee s not
of this view, then it 1s empowered 1o reduce the level of vesting

Partial vesting of the 2009/10 ESCS

The ESOS was approved by shareholders at the AGM hald n
Novernber 2008 It was the view of tha Committee that the focus

on share price growth ansing from the use of market value options
combined with performance condiions would ensure strong aligriment
with the interests and expectations of sharsholders at the time Options
awarded under the ESOS must normally be held for a minimum of
three years from the dats of grant before they can be exercised and
lapse if not exercised within ten yoars of grant The mesamum numbear
of shares over which an employee may ba granted options n any
financial year under the ESOS will be limited so that the aggregate cost
of exercise does not exceed 200% of their annual salary The exarcise
of ophions granted under tha ESOS 15 subyect to the achievement

of abjectve performance condibons set by the Committee

As the Committee has decided to grant awards under the LTPP for
the 2011/12 financiad year it will not be making any grants under the
ESOS as an employee is not eligible to recenve options under the
ESOS and awards under the LTPP i the same financial year

The last grant made under the ESQS was the 2000/10 ESOS, which
15 subject 1o TSR and EPS performance condibons The Commuttes
chose these targets as the most appropnate measure of financial
performance for a housebulder at the ime of the grant as they are

a fundamental measure of the Group’s undertying performance and are
directly inked 1o the generation of retums to shareholders

Performance conditions

Half of the 2009/10 ESOS will vest on the attamment of a performance
target based on relative TSR, and the other half on the attainment of a
target based on EPS growth

Levels of vesting against the TSR will be as follows

Rank of Company's TSR against Level of vesting
comparator group of TSR element
Upper Quartile or above 100%
Median 25%
Below Median 0%
Between Upper Quartile Straight-ine basts
and Medlian between 25% and 100%

The EPS element of the award has three separate annuat componeants
with the Committes seting targets annually for the following financial
year Performance aganst each annual EPS target 1s tested at the end
of each of the financial years dunng the performance panod and sach
year's EPS target wilt dstermine the vesting leve! of one-sixth of the total
award However, actual vesting, if any, will not take place until after

30 June 2012 Both performance conditions appiying to the 200940
ESOS are subject to an overnding Committee discretion to take nto
account, among other factors, performance relatve to the sector and
the undertying financial performance of the business including free
cash flow

The EPS targets are before exceptional items and the impact of the
reduction in the corporation tax rate from 28% to 26% The level

of vesting for the financial years ended 30 June 2010 and 2011 were
as follows

2010/11 200910

Amount of EPS Element Avallable

for Vesting {one-thurd of 50%) 16 67% 1667%
Minmum Tamget 2 8 pence -44 pence
On Target 4 3pence -2 8 pence
Maximum Target 73 pence 1Bpence
Achievernent Aganst Target 390% 576%
Actual Level of Vesting 6 5% 96%

In 2010 the Company disciceed that 10 17% of the award had vasted for the 2008/10 fnancial year Due
1o a change n the Company's 1ax change for that year which was nthuded n tha 2010 pubtished financial
statements. e Compary’s EPS was margnaly recuoed Acoordingly the level of viesting was reduced to 8 6%

It should be noted that the approach of using three one-year targets
was adopted due to the uncertan economic condibons prevaiing in
2009 when options under the ESOS waere first granted The Committes
has since reverted back to the policy of seting three-year targets

Detalls of the grants mada under the ESOS in December 2008 ({the
'2008/09 ESOS') can be found on page 58 of this Rermuneration report

Executive share awards granted durng the year

Long-Term Performance Ptan

There 15 currently one unvesied award under the LTPP which was
granted by the Company in December 2010 {the ‘2010/11 LTPP?}
Awards under the 2010/11 LTPP wers based on an allocation of ordinary

W BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOQUNTS 2011




shares equivalent In value to a maximum of 150% of base salary and are
subject to three-year TSR and EPS performance conditons There s no
re-testing of performance conditons

Performance conditions

Half of the 2010/11 LTPP will vest on the attanment of a performance
target based on TSR over a three-year performance penod commencng
1 July 2010

The levels of vesting aganst the TSR targets are as follows

Rank of Company's TSR against Level of vesting
comparator group of TSR element
Upper Quartile and abova 100%
Median 25%
Below Median 0%
Between Upper Quartle Straght-line basis
and Median between 25% and 100%

The other half of the 2010/11 LTPP will vest on the attamment of

EPS targets for the financial year ending 30 Juns 2013 The Cornrmittee
believes that a wide target range should be set for the EPS elernent

in order to ensure full engagement from management by having an
achievable minimum vesting level whilst requiring cutstanding
performance to achieve maximm level of vesting Accordngly

the EPS targets and corresponding levels of vesting are as follows

EPS target - Level of vesting
Flnancial year 2012113 of EPS element
25 pence per share or higher 100%
10 pence per share 25%
Less than 10 pence per share 0%
Between 10 pence and Straght-line basis

25 pence per share betweaen 25% and 100%

In adcition to the above performance targets, the 2010/11 LTPP I1s
subject to an overnding Committee discretion, n that the Committee
must be satisfied that the underlying financial performance of the
Company over the performance penod warrants the level of vestng
as determined by applyng the above targets If the Committes 15 not
of this view, it has the authonty to reduce the level of vesting as it
deams appropnate

Co-Investment Plan

The Co-Investment Plan {the Plan’)was approved by shareholders at
the AGM held in Novernber 2005 and any annual bonus eamed above
target will normally be compuisorty deferred nto sharas held under
this Plan (the ‘Basic Award’) The Executve Directors also hawve the
opportunity to voluntanly defer additional amounts of annual bonus

up to a maximum of 25% of basa salary into the Plan

Matching awards will be made by the Company, if approved by the
Committes, at the rate of one for one for compulsory deferral and at

a masamum of four for one for voluntary deferval (the *Matching Award’)
Any Matching Awards will be subsect to performance conditions
rmeasured over a penod of three years

The Committee has decided to usa the Plan to hold shares awarded in
respect of any supplemental bonus eamed {up to a maximum of 50%

of base satary) The Committee has agreed that no matching shares will
be awarded aganst these shares Any shares so awarded are subject (o
a contnued employment performance condition

For the financial years ended 30 June 2010 and 2011 no supplermental
bonus, as defined on page 51, was eamed and therefors no shares
were deferred into the Plan As a result, there are currently no
outstanding awards under the Plan

Savings Refated Share Option Scheme
The Savings Related Share Option Scheme (the 'SRS0S’) was
approved by shareholders at the AGM held n November 2008

The SRSOS was mplemented in order to promote share ownership
amongst all employses of the Company, Iinking employee benefit to
the performance of the Company and to ad retention of staff Al
asmployeas and Executrve Directors who work more than 25 hours
per week, and have five or more ysars of continuous service with

the Company (or any subsidiary in the Group nominated to join n

the SRS0OS) ending on the date of grant are eligible to participate n
the scheme The Board has discretion to reduce the penad of qualifying
service and 1o invite other employees of the Grroup to participate
Under the SRSOS, employees can save up to £250 per month for
three or five years and recerve options to purchase the Company's
shares at a discount of up to 20% on the market value In March 2011,
481 employess (1t 5% of those eligble) applied to participate in the
third grant of eptions under the SRSOS

Qutstanding Executive share awards

Executive Share Option Plan

The award granted under the Executve Share Option Plan {the ‘ESOP?)
n 2003 vested in 2006, howewver, there are a number of participants,
mciuding Steven Boyes, who are stil to exercise the options granted

to them

The ESOP was adopted by the Company in Novernber 1997 Ay
options granted under the ESCP are required to be held for a minirmum
of three years from the date of grant before they can be exercised and
will lapse i not exercised within ten years of the grant date The level of
vasting of these options was subject to the achievement of obiective
perforrmance conditions set by the Committes

Under the rutes of the ESOP no further options can be granted under
this plan Options which have been granted to Executive Directors in
previous years rarman unchanged and are set out on page 58

Executive share awards lapsed dunng the year

Executive Share Option Scheme

The options granted under the 200809 ESOS were subject to a
Return on Capital Employed {{ROCE) financial performance measure,
calculated as operating profit {measured across the whole financial
year to 30 June 2011) dwided by shareholder funds plus net debt less
goodwill and intangible assets (beng the average of the 12 month-end
figuras dunng the same year} There s no opportunity to retest any
performance cnitena

The options were testad after the year end and as the ROCE
performance target was not achieved, the options lapsed
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Award to Group Finance Director

In recogrution of his loss of benefit under his previous employer’s
long-term incentrve and share option plans, David Thomas was
granied, as previcusly disclosed, a one-off award which targets
benefits equivalent to the options granted under the 2008/09 ESOS
The option was granted by the trustees of the Employee Benefit Trust
and, if and when exercised, was 1o be sahsfied from ordnary shares
acquired in the market After adustment for the Company's Placing
and Rights Issue the option was over 1,016,656 ordinary shares, at
an exercise pnce per share of 36 06 pence The option was subject
to the same performance targets as the options granted under the
2008/09 ESOS and was on substantially the same terms and
conditions as those options  Accordingly, alt of these options also
lapsed after 30 June 2011

Long-Term Performance Plan

The award granted under the LTPP in December 2007 was subject to
EPS and TSR performance conditions over a qualfying penod of three
years to 21 Decemnber 2010 Performance aganst these conditions was
tested after this date and as neither of the EPS nor the TSR conditions
had been achigved, the award lapsed

Total Shareholder Return performance graph

Figure 1, prepared In accordance with the Regulations, shows

the TSR performance over the tast five years agamnst the FTSE 250
(excluding investment trusts) and aganst an index of listed
housebuilders The Board has chosen these comparator ndicas
as the Group and its major competitors are constituents of one or
both of these ndices  The TSR has been calculated using a far
method in accordance with the Regulations

Pension benefits

The Comparny's pension policy for Executive Directors 15 that they
can choose 1o participate in the Company’s monsy purchase pension
plan or recetve a cash supplement that does not count for incentive
purposes Only the base salary element of a Director's remuneration
1s pensicnable The defined benefit section of the Barratt Group
Pension and Life Assurance Scheme {the *Scheme’) was closed to
new entrants N 2001 and 1t ceased to offer future accrual of defined
benefits for current members with effect from 30 June 2009

Mark Clare and David Thomas are pad a cash supplement equat to
30% and 25%, respectively, of base saiary per annum Up untl 30 June
2009, when the defined benefit section of the Scherme ceased to offer
future accrual of defined benelits for current employees, Steven Boyes
and Clive Fenton were members of the defined benefit section of the
Scheme This entitlerment was based on a 1/60 accrual rale and a
normal retirement age of 65 The entitlement of Chive Fenton was
restncted by the eamings cap imposed under the Finance Act 1989

for service up to 5 Apnl 2006 and thereafter was calculated by reference
to his base salary Since 1 July 2009, Steven Boyes and Clive Fenton
have been entitied to recenve a cash supplement equal to 30% of their
respective base salanes per annum Steven Boyes recenves the full
30% as a cash supplement and Clive Fenton recemes 20% as a cash
supplernent and the remaining 10% 15 pa:d into the defined contnbution
section of the Scheme

The last fult actuanal valuation of the Scheme as ai 30 November 2007
showed a deficit of £87 4m calculated on the basis of the Scheme's
technical provisions  The Company and the Trustees of the Scheme
have agreed that, with effect from 1 December 2008, the Company
will pay, n addition to the joint contnbubion rate, £13 3m per annum

for seven yeaars to address the delfictt The valuabion for the financiat
staternents was updated to 30 June 2011 by a qualfied independent
actuary and a deficit of £11 8m (2010 £46 1m) 1s ncluded in the Group
balance sheet as shown nnote 26 On 30 June 2009, the Company
exarcised Its consent under the rules of the Scheme and agreed

to cease offenng future accrual of defined benefits for #ts current
employees Members of the Scheme became eligible to join the
dafined contnbution money purchase section of the Scheme with
effect from 1 July 2009 The Company will continue to pay the deficit
reduction contnbutions at a level not lower than the £13 3m agreed

In December 2008 and will discuss the funding requirements of the
Scheme with the Trustees f any matenal change n the Group's
financial circumstances 1s anticipated

Mambers of the Scheme are also eligible for dependants’ pension
and an insured lump sum of four tmes pensionable salary on death
nservice

Service contracts

All Executve Directors are engaged on the basis of one-year rolling
contracts which can be terminated by iwelve months' nolice given

by either the Company or by the Executive at any time There are

no specific provisions for compensation on early termination {except
for payment in lieu of hokctays accrued but untaken) or loss of office
due to a takeover bid The Comeritiee will apply mitigaton against
any contractual cblgations as it deems fair and reasonable and will
seek legal advice on the Company’s lizbility to pay compensation

The Committee also seeks to reduce the level of any compensation
payable and takes mto account, amongs! other factors, the ndmdual's
and the Company’s performance, the Drector's obhgation to mitigate
his/her own loss, and the Director’s length of service when calculating
termination payments The contracts entitle Executive Directors

to the prowvision of a company car, annual medical screening

and membership of a private healthcare scheme Detalls of the
Exacutive Direciors’ service contracts are included n Table 3

and therr emoluments are shown in Table 5 on page 56 of this
Remuneration report
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Table 3 - Executrve Directors’ service contracts

Executive Service Effective Notice
Director contract date date penod
Mark Clare 27 June 2006 2 October 2006 12 months
Dawvid Thormas 5May 2008 21 July 2008 12 months
Steven Boyes 25 Juneg 2001 1 July 2001 12 months
Clve Fenton 1 July 2003 1 July 2003 12 months

Non-Executve directorships

Subject to Board approval, Executive Directors are permitted to
accept one Non-Executive directorship outside the Company and
retain any fees receved from such a position Executive Directors are
not allowed to take on the Chaimanship of any FTSE 100 company
Board approval will not be given for any Non-Executive position, where
such appointment would lead to a matenal confict of interest, 1S with
a competitor companyy or will have an effect on the Dwector’s ability
to perform his/her duties to the Company Dunng the year none of
the Executive Directors held any Non-Executve directorships with
other companies

Non-Executive Directors' remuneration

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors 1s set by the Board

on the recommendation of a Commitiee of Executive Directors having
regard to the tme commitment and responsibikies associated with

the role The remuneration of the Chamman 1S set by the Board on

the recommendation of the Committes agan having regard to the ime
commitment and responsibiities of the role The remuneration of the
Chairman and the Non-Exacutve Directors 15 reviewed annually taking into
account the fess paid by other companies in the housebuilding sector

The base annual fee paid to Non-Executive Directors dunng the financial
year ended 30 June 2011 was £40,000 The Chaimen of the Audit ang
Remuneration Commuittees recened an additional annual fee of £10 000
and the Semor Independeant Director recenved an additional annual fee
of £5,000 The Committes reviewad Non-Exacutive fees in July 2011
and concluded that the fees were satisfactory for the role of and time
commitments required from each of the Non-Executive Directors
Accordingly, Non-Executive fees have not been increased for the
201112 financial year The Non-Executive Directors do not participate
In any performance reiated schemes such as the annual bonus or any
ncentve schemes, nor do they receve any pension or private medical
Insurance benefits

The Charman and each of the Non-Executive Drrectors are appomnted
under terms set out 1 a letter of appontment They do not have senace
contracts and therr appointments can be terminated (by the Board)
without compensation for loss of office and by giving the appropnate
length of notice as prescnbed N thair respectve letiers of appointment
The notice penod applicable for the Chayman, Bob Lawson, is three
months and for each of the other Non-Executve Directors the notice
pernod s one month Under govemance policies approved by the Board,
Non-Exacutve Directors are appontad for a three-year temm and usually
serve a second three-year term subject to performance review and
re-glection by shareholders Beyond this a further term of up to three
years may be served subject to ngorous review by the Chairman and
the Nomnation Committes and re-election by shareholders Detals of
Non-Executive Directors' letters of appomntrment can be found n Table 4

Table 4 — Non-Executive Directors' letters of appomtment

Data last Date first Date last
Non-Executive ra-glected appointed  re-appointed
Director at AGM to the Board to the Board
Bob Lawson 18 November 2008 1. June 2008 1 June 2011
Bob Davies 17 Novermber 2010 5 May 2004 1 July 2011
Tessa Bamford 17 November 2009 1 July 2009 N/A
Rod MacEachrane 18 November 2008 1 May 2006 1 July 2011
Mark Rolfe 18 Novermnber 2008 1 May 2008 1 May 2011
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The following tables and accompanying notes constitute the auditable part of the Remuneration report as defined in the Regulations

Table 5 - Directors' emoluments

20M 2010

Gain on Ganen

Employex's exercise of  exeruse of

Pensron pension  Pedormance Benefits 2013 2010 share share

Salaryfee  allowance contnbution related n kind Total Tota options options

£000 000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £OOQ £000 £000

Mark Clare 643 193 - 353 32 1,221 1417 - -
Dawid Thomas 408 102 - 224 14 748 855 - -
Steven Boyes 390 117 - 215 22 744 794 - 1
Clrve Fenton 380 75 42 215 25 747 790 - 1
Bob Lawson 270 - - - - 270 270 - -
Bob Davies™ 55 - = - - 55 55 - -
Tessa BamfordAA 40 - - - - 40 40 - —
Rod MacEachrane 40 - - - - 40 40 - -
Mark Rolfen 50 - - - - 50 50 - -
Wilklam Shannon” 12 - - - - 12 40 - -
Total 2,298 487 42 1,007 93 3,927 4,602* ~ 2

Willam Sharnon resigned as a Crector of the Compary on 21 October 2N0
This figune ncludes £251,000 n relation to Mark Pan who stepped down 23 & Drector on 21 July 2009 but confrued o be employed by the Company up untd 31 October 2008

A These figures nciude %ees n respect ¢! Charmanship of Board Commidiees and. n the case of Bob Daves, the fao lor s ro &8 Seror independen: Dractor

An Foliowrg Tessa Bamiord's ppoeument a3 & SONSUnant win Spancar Stuart on 18 Aprit 2011 her fees are pait drectly ont & quarterty bass, to Spancer Stuart For the pencd 18 Aprk 2011 1o 30 June 2011 nclusve the Company
pad £8 000 10 Spencer Siuart for ber sarvices o the Board Thias ncluded in the £40 000 disclosed m Table 5

The Executve Directors recene taxable benefits n kind covenng the provision of a motor vehicle, private medical msurance, somea telephone costs
and payment towards the cost of obtaning independent tax advice

There was no compensation for loss of office or any taxable expenses paxd to the Directors dunng the financial year

Directors' interests in shares

The mterests of the Directors serving dunng the financal year and ther connected parsons i the ordnary share capital of the Company at the
beginning and end of the year are shown below No notification has been recenved of any change in the mterests below dunng the penod 30 June 2011
to 13 September 2011 nclusve

Table 6 - Directors’ mterests in shares

30 June 2013 30 Juna 2010

Number of Number of

share share

options oplions

and and

Fully pald awards**  Fuly pad awards

Mark Ciare 1,225179 3,619,533 1,218,608 2,993,066
David Thomas 267,781 2,296,244 186,000 1,684,244
Steven Boyes 377,824 2,221,548 373221 1,826,014
Clive Fenion 291,024 2,067,648 259,401 1,672,117
Bob Lawson 517,023 - 490,242 -
Bob Davies 37,000 - 23,000 -
Bod MacEachrane 27,600 - 27,600 -
Tessa Bamnford 31,500 - 26,500 -
Mark Rolfe 69,000 - 69,000 -
Willam Shannon* 11,578 - 11,578 -

Shargholang as at 21 Oclober 20 O beng the cain on whch Woam Sannon resigred a3 a Doweior of e Comparry
~ Thess igurks rckcie e optons graried unoer thi 2008/08 ESOS and the recruriment award madka in 2000 o the Group Finance Dractor &3 appicatle which ware testad alter he francal year ended 30 June 2011
and hava lapsad In aggregate Tobia 5 nciudes 4 397 036 awards under the 200408 ESOS which have now apsed
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Table 7 - Long-Term In¢entive Schemes
Details of movements i Directors” interests in executive long-term incentive schemes are as follows

Market Market
A At Date from [XIC8 On pnce at Gamn
Date of 30/06/10 Granted Vested Lapsed 30/06M1 which award vesting  recesvable
award No No No No No  oxerosabie™ pence pence £
Mark Clare
LTPP 2112 2007 324,471 - - {324,471} - 21122010 4310 - -
LTPP 1410 2010 - 963,900 - - 963,900 14102013 1000 - -
Co-Investmant Plan 1810 2007 12,962 - {6,481} (6,481} - 18102010 6590 7508 =
Dawvid Thomas
LTPP 1410 2010 - 612,000 - - 612,000 14102013 1000 - -
Steven Boyes
LTPP 2112 2007 180,262 - - (180,262) - 21122010 4310 - -
LTPP 1410 2010 - 585000 - - 585,000 14102013 1000 - -
Co-Investment Plan 1810 2007 9,206 - {4,603) (4,603} - 18102010 6590 7508 =
Clive Fenton
LTPP 2112 2007 180,262 - - (180,262) - 21122010 4310 - -
LTPP 1410 2010 - 585,000 - — 585,000 14102013 1000 - -
Co-Investment Plan_ 18 10 2007 9,206 = {4 603) (4,603} - 18102010 659 0 7508 =

These bguras relale 1o the runmber of shares refumed 1o articpants n fespect of the Basee Awerd ansing fram defermed annuai bonus. The Matchng Award apsed  Thens were no guatiying concions attached o these awards.
The aarbast daze on whieh an award may vest. n nommal creumstiances havng futtled at quatiying condions. after wWhich Ornary shares an Fans el BuiDmainAly S 5000 A9 pegshle
racenaDie.

~ As the Matehng Awarcs lpsect thers o 1o gan
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Table 8 — Directors’ share options
Datads of movements i the Dwectors' interests n axecutive share options are as follows

AL At Exercise Date from
30/06/10 Granted Exarcised Lapsed 30/06/11 pnce which Latest

Date of grant No No No No No pence  exerceable expiry
Mark Clare
ESQOS* 1812 2008 74,998 - - - 74,998 40 18122011 17122018
ESOS” 1812 2008 1,526,237 - - - 1,526,237 3640 18122011 1712 2018
SRSOS 03 02 2009 16,422 - - - 16,422 5708 0104 2012 3008 2012
ESOS 10122009  1,037978 - - - 1,037,976 12139 10122012 0912 2019
David Thomas
ESOS" 25092009 1,016,656 - - - 1,016,656 3606 17122011 16122018
ESOS 1012 2009 25,458 - - - 25,458 11784 10122012 0912 2019
ESOS 1012 2009 634,319 - - ~ 634,319 12139 10122012 0912 2019
SRSCS 2903 2010 7811 - - - 7,811 11618 0106 2013 30112013
Steven Boyes
ESQS" 1812 2008 74,998 - - - 74,998 40 18122011 17122018
ESOS* 1812 2008 814,576 - - - 814,576 3640 18122011 1712 2018
ESOP 1010 2003 153,897 - - - 153,897 35737 10102006 0910 2013
SRSOS 0302 2009 16422 - - - 16,422 5708 0104 2012 30092012
ESOS 10 12 2009 576 653 - = - 576,653 12139 10122012 0912 2018
Clive Fenton
ESQOS* 1812 2008 74,998 - - - 74,998 40 18122011 1712 2018
ESOS" 1812 2008 814,576 - - - 814,576 3640 18122011 17122018
SR80S 03 02 2009 16422 - - - 16,422 5708 01042012 30092012
ESCS 10122009 576,653 - - - 576,653 12138 10122012 0912 2019

These cxitxons wera tes'ed atier the year end and 23 none ot the performance CoNGUIONE ware Met e ootons kpsed,

The ESOS 15 dnded into two sub-schemes, one of which 1s approved under the Incorme Tax (Eamings and Pensions) Act 2003 and the other which
s not The exercise price 1s calculated differently for each sub-scherme in accordance with the rules of the ESOS The performance conditions for
tha ESOS granis are dascnibed on pages 52 and 53

The performance condition set by the Committas for the ESOP award granted m 2003, that the growthin EPS of the Cormpany over a penod of
three consecutive financial years should exceed the growth in the RPI by at least 9%, was met in 2006, but the option has not yet been exercised

The performance conditions of the 2008/09 ESOS awards together with the performance condrtion of the recruitment award to the Group Finance
Director made in 2009 were tested after the year end and none of the conditions had been actueved Accordingly, the 2008/09 ESOS awards and
the recrutment award to the Group Finance Director lapsed

The mid-market share price of the Company on 30 June 2011 was 114 2 pence The mid-market high and low share pnces of the Company dunng
the year were 118 0 pence and 70 05 pence respectively
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Tabie 9 - Directors’ penston benefits

Steven Boves and Clive Fenton were members of the Scheme durng the year ended 30 June 2011 Detalls of ther accrued benefits are as follows

Transter value
of the Increase
Increase in n accrued
accrued PENnsIon over
PERSION theyear to Increasaw
contributions 30 June 2011 accrued  Transfervalue Transfer value Changen
over the year to Total pension  {net of inflation) pension of accrued cf accrued transfer
30.June 20%1  accrued atthe less Directors’ over the yearto pension at pension at value over
{net of inflaton)  end of the year contnbutions 30 June 2011 30 June 2011 30 June 2010 the year
£ £ £ £ £ L £
Steven Boyes {13} 283,889 {215) 12,472 4,477,540 4,057,346 420,194
Clivg Fenton {3) 43,368 {46) 1,905 642,697 579,702 652,995
Notes

With effect from 30 June 2009, the Scheme ceased to offer future accrual of defined benefit pensions for current employees and the ink between
accrued benefits and future salary Increases was rermoved

The total pension accrued at the end of the year 1s the amount that the Director had acerued when the Scheme ceased to offer future accrual
at 30 June 2009 plus revaluation in ine with the Scheme rules

The infiation figure of 4 6% 1s based on the change n RP) from September 2009 to September 2010, consistent with pravious years

All ransfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal adwvice in accordance with the Occupationat Pension Schemes {Transfer Valus)
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 Fhe transfer values of the accrued pension represent the value of assets that the pension scheme would need o
transfer to another penston provider on transfernng the Scheme’s lability n respect of the Directors’ pension benefits They do not represent sums

payable to Indmvidual Directors and, therefore, cannot be added meaningfully to annual remuneration

The increase I the transfer value nciudes the effect of fiuctuations N the transfer value due to factors beyond the control of the Company and its
Cirectors, such as market moverments

The figures do not take account of any retaned benefits the members may have

Except as disclosed in respect of Clive Fenton on pages 54 and 56, none of the Directors have any nghts under the Company’s money purchase
pension scheme

There were no changes i the interests of the Directors shown above between 30 June 2011 and 13 September 20

The Remuneration repprt was approved by the Board on 13 September 2011 and signed on iis behaif by

ECUTIVE DIRECTOR
13 Septernber 2011
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Activities of the Group

The Comparny s the holding company of the Group The Group's
pnncipal actvities compnsa acquimg and developing land, planming,
designing and constructing rescdential property developments and
sefling the homes it builkds These core activities are supported by the
Group's commercial development urban regeneration, procurement,
design and strategic land capabiiiies

Results and dividends
The loss from continung actmties for the year ended 30 June 2011
was £13 8m (2010 £118 4m}

No intenm ddend was paid dunng the financial year 2010 i)
The Directors do not recommend a final dwdend for the year ended
30 June 2011 2010 nif}

Enhanced Business Review

The Chairman’s statement, Group Chief Executive's review, Busingss
review and Group Finance Director's review on pages 2 to 31 together
compnse the Group's Enhanced Business Review

Annual Genera! Megting

The 2011 AGM will be held at the Royal College of Physicians,

11 St Andrews Place, Regent's Park, London NW1 4LE on Wednesday
16 November 2011 at 2 30 p m The notice convening the 2011 AGM

15 set out In a separate letter to sharsholders

Directors and their interests

Each of the Directors histed on pages 36 and 37 held office throughout
the financial year and as at 30 June 2011 Willam Shannon was also a
Non-Executive Dwector of the Company dunng the financial year untd
his resignation from the Board on 21 October 2010

The beneficial Interasts of the Directors and connacted persons in the
ordimary share capital of the Company together with the interests of the
Executve Directors in share options and awards of shares as at 30 June
2011 and as at the date of this report are disclosed in the Remuneration
report on pages 56 to 59

At mo time during or at the end of the year did any Director have a
matenal interest n a contract of significance m relation {o the business
of the Group

Appointment and replacement of Dtrectors

In accordance with the Articles there shalt be no less than two and

no more than 15 Directors appointed to tha Board at any ong time
Directors may be appomted by the Company by ondinary resolution or
by the Board The Board may from trme io time appowyt one or more
Directors to hold employment or executve office for such penod
(subect to the Companies Act 2008 (the ‘Act’)) and on such terms

as they may determuine and may revoke or termnate any such
appointment Directors are no longer subject to 2 maximum age brrut

The Company may by special resolution remove any Director before the
expiration of his/her term of office The office of Director shall be vacated
i (i) he/she resigns or offers to resign and the Board resolves to accept
such offer, (i) his/her resignation 1s requested by all of the other Direclors
and all of the other Directors are not less than three n number, ) he/

sha 1s or has been suffenng from mental or physical ill health, (v) he/she
15 absent without perrmission of the Board from mestings of the Board
for sx consecutive months and the Board resotves that his/her office

1s vacated, {v) he/sha becomaes bankrupt or compounds with his/her
creditors generally, (vi) he/she 1s prohibited by law from being a Diractor,
{wii) hev'she ceases to be a Director by virtue of the Act, or (viil) he/she 1s
removed from office pursuant 10 the Articles

Details refating to the retirement and re election of Directors at each
AGM can be found on page 40

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Articlas, the Act and any directions given by special
resolution, the busness of the Company 15 utimately managed by
the Board who may exercise all the powers of the Company, whather
relating to the management of the busness of the Compary or
otherwisa In particular, the Board may exercise all the powers of the
Company to borrow moeney and to morigage or charge any of its
undertalangs, property, assets and uncalled capital and to 1issue
debentures and other secunhes and to give secunty for any debt,
liabiity or oblgation of the Company to any third party

Qualifying third party ndemnity provisions

As at the date of this repont, there are quabfying third party indemnity
provisions govemed by the Act i place under which the Company has
agreed to ndemnify the Directors, former Directors and the Company
Secretary of the Company, togsther with those who have held or hold
these postions as officers of other Group companies or of associate
or afflated companies and members of the Executive Cormmitiee, to
the extent permitted by law and the Articles aganst all liability ansing in
respect of any act or omission In ther dutes In addiion the Company
mamtains Directors® and Officers’ lability msurance for each Director
of the Group and its associated companies

No Director of the Company o of any associated company shall
be accountable to the Company or the members for any benefit
provided pursuant to the Artictes and receipt of any such benefit
shall not disqualify ary person from being or becoming a Director
of the Company

Property, plant and equipment

The Directors are of the opinion that the value of land and buidings
included within the Group's property, plant and equipment 15 iN excess
of book value but that the difference 18 not matenal n relation to the
affars of the Group

Disclosure of information to auditor

So far as each of the Directors s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
nformation {that 15, information needed by the Company's auditor
In connaction with prepanng their report} of which the Company’s
audiior IS not aware

Each of the Directors has taken all the relevant steps that they ocught

10 have taken in accordance with their duty as a Dwector 10 make
themselves aware of any relevant audit nformation and to establish that
the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that nformation This coniirmation 1s
gven and should be interpreted in accordance with the prowvisions

of section 418(2) of the Act
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Chantable and polithcal contnbutions

Durng the year the Group made charntable donations of £45,700
(2010 £38,100) Of the donations in the cument year £5,000 was
to tha Unenersity College London Hospitals Chantable Foundation
and the remainder was to local and good causes

No poltical contnbutions were made dunng the year (2010 Enil)

Offices

The Group had 25 offices {excluding those offices undertaking an
administrative function only} located throughout Bntain at the end

of the financial year A full iist of the Group's offices and therr locations
can be obtaned frorn the Company Secratanat at the registered
offica of the Company or from the Compary's website

www barratideveloprments co uk.

Risk management objectives

The pnncipal operational nsks of the business are detailed on pages
32t 35 The Group's financial assets, financial latilibes and denvative
financial Instruments are detaled in notes 22, 23 and 24 to the financial
statemments Details of the Group's iquidity, market (pnce), credit and
cash flow nsks are set out in note 25 to the financial statements

Likely future developments

Anindication of likely future developments in the Group ncluding in
the field of research and developrrent is grven in the Business review
onpages 15t0 35

Creditor payments

The Group 1 responsible for agreeng the detail of terms and conditions
relating 10 transactions with its supplers It 18 Group policy to ensure
that suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment and to abwde

by the agreed terms of payment with suppliers whare the goods and
services have been supplied In accordance with tha relevant terms

and conditons of contract Implementation of this policy resulted n a
suppler payment penod by the Company of 26 days 2010 29 days)
for its trade creditors at 30 June 2011

Capital structure

The Company has a single class of share capital which 1s divided nto
ordinary shares of 10 pance each All issued shares are n registered
form and are fully pard Details of the Company's 1ssued share captal
and of the movements in the share capital dunng the year can be
found in note 27 on page 110

Subject to the Articles, the Act and other shareholders’ nghts, shares are
at the disposal of the Board At sach AGM the Board seeks authonsation
from is shareholders to allot shares At the AGM held on 17 Novernber
2010, the Directors were given authonty to allot shares up to a nomnal
value of £32,174,150 (representing appraximately 33 33% of the nominal
value of the Company’s issued share capital), such authonty to eman
valid until the end of the 2011 AGM or close of businass on 16 February
2012, whichever 15 sarfier A resolubion to renew this authonty will be
proposed at the 2011 AGM

Rights and obligations attaching te shares

Subyect to any nghts attached to eusting shares, shares may be issued
with such nghts and rastnctions as the Company may by ordinary
resolution decide, or (if there s no such resolution or so far as It does
not make specific provision) as the Board may decide

Subyect to the Act, the Articles specify that nghis attached to any
existing class of shares may be vaned either with the wntten consent of
the holders of not less than three-lourths n nominal value of the 1ssued
shares of that class (excluding any shares of that class held as treasury
shares), or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate
general mestng of the holders of those shares The nghts conferred
upon the holders of any shares shall not, unless otherwise expressly
provided in the nghts attaching 1o those shares, be deemed to be vaned
by the creation or issue of further shares ranking pan passu with them

Voting

Subject to any special terms as to voting upon which any shares may
be ssued or may at the relevant ime be held, every member present in
person or by proxy at a general meetmg or class mesting has one vote
upon a show of hands or, upon a poll vote, one vote for every share of
which they are a holder [n the case of joint holders of a share, the vote
of the senor who fenders a vote, whather in person or by proxy, shall
be accepted to the exclusion of votes of the other joint holders and
senionty shall be determined by the order n which the names stand

in the register in respect of the joint holding

In accordance with tha Act, each member 1S entitled 1o appont one or
more proxies, and m the case of corporations, more than one corporate
representative to exercise all or any of ther nghts to attend, spsak and
vote on ther behalf at a genaral meetng or class meeting The tmescales
for apponting proxies are set out in the Notice of the 2011 AGM

No member shall be entitled to vole at any general meeting or class
meeting in respect of any shares held by thern if any call or other sum
then payable by them in respect of that share remains unpaxt or if they
have baen served with a restnclion notice (as defined n the Articles)
after falure to provide the Company with inforrmation conceming
interests m those shares required to be provided under the Act

Transfer of shares

Shares In the Company may be m uncertificated or certificated form
Title to uncertificated shares may be transferred by means of a relsvant
system and certificated shares may be transfarred by an nstrument of
transfer as approved by the Board The transteror of a share 1s deemed
to remamn the holder untd the transferee’s name 1s entered nto the
Cormpany's register of members

There are no restnctons on the transfer of shares except as olows

The Board may i its absolute discretion and without gving any reason,
decline to register any transfer of any share which 1s not a fully part
share Regstration of a transfer of an uncertificated share may be
refused in the circumstances set outin the uncertificated securities rules
{as defined n the Articles) and where, in the case of a transter to jont
holders, the number of jont holders o whom the uncertificated share

1S 1o be transferred exceeds four The Board may declne to register a
transfer of a certificated share unless the nstrument of transfer (1) 1S duty
stamped or certified or otherwise shown to the satisfaction of the Board
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to be exempt from stamp duty and is accompanied by the retevant
share certificate and such other evidence of the nght to transfer as

the Board may reasonably require, {i) 1s in respect of only one class of
share, and (i) if joint transfereas, 1s n favour of not more than four such
transferees, or where the transfer 15 requested by a person with a ¢ 25%
nterest {as defined in the Articles) f such a person has been served with
arestnction notice after falure to provde the Company with information
conceming interests in those shares required to be provided under the
Act, unless the transfer is shown to the Board to be pursuant to an
arm's length sale {as defined in the Articles)

Shareholder authonty for purchase of own shares

At the Company's AGM held on 17 November 2010, shareholders gave
authonty to the Company to buy back up 1o an aggregate of 96,522,452
ordinary shares (representing 10% of the Company’s issued share
capital) This authonty is valid until the end of the 2011 AGM or close

of business on 16 Febnsary 2012, whichever is the earlier Under the
authonty there 1s a minimum and maxsmum pnce to be pad for such
shares Any shares which are bought back may be held as treasury
shares or, If not so held, will be cancelled iImmediataly upon completion
of the purchase, thereby reducing the Company's issued share capital

No purchases had been made under this authonty as at the date of this
report. A resoluton renewing the authonty will be proposed at the 2011 AGM

Diwvidends and distnbutions

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company may by ordnary
resotution from time to time declare dmdends for payment to the
holders of the ordinary shares of 10 pence each, of an amount which
does not exceed the amount recommended by the Board The Board
may pay intenm dvidends and also any fixed rate dvidend, whenever
the financial position of the Company, in the opimion of the Board,
pstifies therr payment If the Board acts n good faith, it1s not lable to
holders of shares with preferred or pan passu nghts for losses ansing
from the payment of intenm or fixed dvidends on other shares

The Board may withhold payment of all or any part of any dmvdends or
other monies payable n respect of the Company's shares from a person
with a 0 25% ntersst if such person has been served with a restriction
notice after failure to provide the Company with nformation conceming
interasts N those shares required to be provided under the Act

Shareholder arrangements to waive dividends

The Barratt Developments Employse Benefit Trust {the EBT') holds
ordmnary shargs n the Company for the purpose of satisfying options
and awards that have been granted under the vanous employee sharg
schemes operated by the Company Detauls of the shares so held are
set out In note 27

The EBT has agreed towawe all or ary futune nght to dnadend payments on
shares held wathin the EBT and these shares do nat count n the calcuiation
of the weighted average number of shares usad to calcutate EPS until such
trme as they are vestad to the relevant emplovee

The Trustees of the EBT may vote or abstan from voling on shares held
n the EBT n any way they think fit and n doing so may take into account
both financial and non-financal nterests of the beneficianes of the EBT
or therr dependants

Major shareholders

In accordance with the UKLA's Disclosure and Transparency Rules
{the ‘DTR') all notifications received by the Company are published
on the Company’s website www bamatidevelopments co uk and wvia
a Regulated Information Service

As at the date of this report, the Company had receved notifications,
n accordance with DTR 5, of the notfiable nterests set out in Table 10,
1 the voting nghts in the Company's 1ssued share capial

Table 10 - Notifiable Interests

Total %
of issued
Number of share Nature of
Name voting dghts capital holding
Drect &
Standard Life Investments Lid 47711714 4943 Inclirect
Lega! & General Group Plc 37,886,028 392 Diract
JP Morgan Chase & Co 17,286,656 498 Indirect
Phoenix Asset Management
Partners Umited 48,256,698 493 Direct
Polans Capital Management LLC 34,606,679 3569 Indirect
FMR LLC 34,579,199 824 Indirect
Employee share schemes

Details of emptoyee share schemaes are set out n note 28

Articles of Association

The Articles contain regulations which deal with matters such as
appointment and removal of Directors, Directors' interests and
proceedings at general and board meelings  Any amendments to
the Articles may be made in accordance with the provisions of the
Act by way of special resotution at a general meeting

Swgnificant agreements

The following sigruficant agresments contam provsions entitkng the

counterparties to exercise termunation or other nghts in the event of

a change of control of the Company

» under the credit facility agreement dated 5 February 2007, the
revolving credit facility agreerment dated 9 July 2008 and the revoving
credit faciity agreement dated 2 February 2005 (each as amended
and restated from time to time and most recently with effect from
10 May 2011), and the two forward start credit facidty agreemenis
each dated 10 May 2011, n each case between, amongst others,
the Company, Lloyds TSB Bank Flc as the facility agend} and the
banks and financial nstitutions named therein as lenders (fogether, the
‘Credit Facility Agreements’), the faciity agent must upon a change of
control, cancal the total commutments of the lenders under such Credit
Facility Agreements and declare all cutstanding loans, together with
accrued Interest and any other amounts payable under such Crecht
Facilty Agreements, to be immediately due and payable For these
purposes, a ‘change of control’ cocurs § any person or group of
persons actng n concert {as defined n the Takeover Code) gans
control {as defined n the Corporation Tax Act 2010} of the Company;

* under the privately-placed notes ongnally amounting in aggregats to
£105 Om and $300 Om {the Remaining Notes') issued pursuant to a
note purchase agreement dated 23 August 2007 and a note purchase
agreement dated 23 Apnl 2008 {each as amended and restated from
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time to time and most recenily with etfect from 10 May 2011) and
under the pnvately placed notes amounting m aggregate to $80m
{the ‘New Notes’), and the New Notes together with the Remairung
Notes (the ‘Notes’) issued pursuant to two note purchase agreements
{for 515 0m and 565 Om respectively) dated 10 May 2011 by the
Company to vanous institutions, the holders of the Notes have an
option to require the Company to repay the entire unpaid pancipal
amount of the Notes held by each holder (at par), together with interest
accrued thereon but without any ‘make-whole” amount following a
change of control (a change of control occumng when any person
or group of persons acting i concert (as defined n the Takeover
Code) acquires mors than 50% of the issued share capital of the
Company carmyng voling nghts), and

+ under the £100m term faciity agreement between, amongst others,
the Company and Prudential/M&G UK Companies Financng Fund LP
dated 10 May 2011, the facility agent rmust, upon change of control,
cancel the total commitments outstanding and declare the koan,
together with all other amounts payable in respact of such term faciity,
to be immedtately due and payable For these purposes ‘change of
control' oecurs If any person or group of persons actng m concert
{as defined i the Takeover Code) gains control (s defined n the
Corporation Tax Act 2010} of the Company

The note purchase agraements also impose upon the holders
customary restnctions on resale or transfer of the notes other
than in compliance with applicable secunties laws

On behalf of the Board
L
[ (> e ; u
Tom Keevil
GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
13 September 2011
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Financial statements and accounting records

The Directors are respensible for prepanng the Annual Repart

and Accounts Including the Directors’ Rernuneration report and the
financial staterments in accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Threctors to prepare financiat statements
for each financial year The Directors are required by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Regulation {the ‘IAS Regulation’} to prepare
the Group financial statements under Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union { IFRS’) and have

a'so elected to prepare the Parent Company financial staterments in
accordance with IFRS The financial statements are also required by
law to be propery prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation Under the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules, the Directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Comparny
for that penod

Intemational Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements
present fairty for each financial year the Company’s financeal position,
financial performance and cash flows This requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions
In accordance with the definiions and recognition: cnitena for assets,
liabiities, Income and expenses set out in the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board's ‘Framework for the preparation and presentation
of financial statements” In virtually all circumstances, a far prasentation
will be achieved by compliance with all appicable IFRS Directors are
alse required to
» properly select and appty accounting polcies,
* present information, including accounting palictes, n a manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable nformation,
» provide addittonal disclosures when compliance with the specific
reguiremnents in IFRS are nsufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and condrtions
on the entity’s financial position and financial performance, and
* make an assessment of the Company's abilty to continue as
a going concerm

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeauate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explan the Company's transactions ang
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financiad positon of the
Companty and enable them to ensure that the financial staterments comply
with the Companies Act 20068 They are also responsible for safeguandng
the assets of the Company and hence for takng reasonable steps for the
presantion and detection of fraud and other megularnties

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integnty

of the corporate and financial nformation included on the Company's
webside Legistaton n the Urited Kingdom govermning the preparation
and chssemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
i cther unscictions

Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors confirm that to the best of each person’s knowledge

a) the Group and Parent Company financial statements in this report,
which have been prepared n accordance with IFRS, Standing
Interpretation Committee nterpretations as adopted and endorsed by
the European Union, Intemational Financial Reporting interpretations
Committee Interpretations and those parts of the Companies Act
2006 applicable to companies reportng under IFRS, gve a true
and far view of the assets, habilites, financral position and profit
or loss of the Company and of the Group taken as a whole, and

b} the management report contained m this report Includes a fair review
of the development and performance of the business and the position
of the Company and the Group taken as a whole, together with
a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties they face

The Directors of the Company and ther functions are listed on pages
36and 37

By order of the Board

M ks
Mark Clare David Thomas
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
13 September 2011 13 September 2011

The Report ¢f the Directors from pages 2 to 64 inclusive was approved
by the Board on 13 September 2011 and i1s signed on its behalf by

Ag

Tom Keewvil
GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
13 September 2011

==\
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC

Wa have audted the financial statements of Barratt Developments PLC
for the year ended 30 Juna 2011 which compnse the Consolidated
income statemert, the Group and Parent Company statements of
comprehensive incomse, tha Group and Parent Company statements
of changes in shareholders” equity, the Group and Parent Company
balance shests, the Group and Parent Company cash flow statements,
the Accounting policles, Impact of standards and Interpretations In issue
but not yet effectve, criical accounting judgements and key sources

of eshimation uncertainty and the related notes 1 to 34 The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
apphcable law and International Financlal Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Unlon (IFRS’) and as regards the Parent
Company financial statements, as apptied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,

in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audt work has been undertakan so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required to state to them
In an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
pearmitted by law, we do not accept or assums responsibiity to anyone
othar than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for
our audt work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and audior

As explainad more fully in the Statamant of Diectors” responsibilities,
the Directors are responsibie for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view
Our responsibiity 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applcable law and Intamational
Standards on Auditing (UK and treland) Those standands require

us to comply with the Audihing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audt involves obtaining emidence about the amounts and disclosures
In the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or ermor This ncludes an assessmant of whether the accounting
policias are appropnate to the Group's and the Parent Company’s
circumstances and have baen consistantly applied and adequately
disclosed, the reasonableness of signficant accounting estimates made
by tha Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial stataments
In addibon, we read all the financial and non-financlal information In the
annual report to idsntify matenal nconsistencies with the audted financial
statements [f we become aware of any apparent matertal misstatemants
or inconsistencies we consider the implcations for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion

» the financlal statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the Parent Comparry’s affalrs as at 30 June 2011
and of the Group's loss for the year then ended,

= the Group financlal statements have been properly prepared
In accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union,

» the Parent Company financial statements have been proparty
prepared In accordance wrth IFRS as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2008, and

= the financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companles Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Artcle 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies

Act 2006

in Qur opmnion

= tha part of the Directors” Ramunaraton report to be audited has been
propeity prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 20086, and

* the information given In the Report of the Directors for the financlal
year for which the financial statements are prepared Is consistent
with the financlal statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exceptron
Wae have nothing to report in raspect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2008 we ara required to report to you If,

in our opimon

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or retumns adaquats for our audrt have not been recaved
from branches not visited by us, or

» the Parent Company financlal statements and the part of the Directors'
Remuneration report to be audtsd are nol in agreement with tha
accounting records and retums, or

« cortain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

* we have not received all ths information and explanations we require
for our audt

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

» the Directors’ statement comtalned within the Report of the Directors
in relabon to going concern,

« the part of the Corporate Governance statement relating to the
Parent Company's compliance with the nine provislons of the
UK Comorate Govemnance Code specified for our review, and

* cartain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on
Directors' remuneration

G IQI o~ Jonm

Graham Richardson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Londen, United Kingdom

13 September 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 30 June 2011
20m 201 201 2010 2010 2000
Before Excephonal Before Exceptional
axcaptional Items exceptional tems
items {note 3) ems note 3)
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Rewvenue 1,2 2,035 4 - 20354 20352 - 20352
Cost of sales {1,807 6) - (1,807 6) {1,850 4) 48 (1,.8552)
Gross profit/(loss) 2278 = 2278 184 8 “48) 1800
Administrative expenses {92 8} (f7) (1005 947) (110) (1057}
Profit/{loss) from operations 4 1350 77} 1273 901 (158} 743
Finance mcome 5 18 0 - 18 0 134 - 134
Finance costs 5 {110 4) (465 (1569 (1350) (1141) {249 1)
Net finance costs 5 (92 4) 465} (1389) (121 8) (1141 (2367}
Share of post-tax profitAloss) from jomnt ventures 13 01 = 01 {15) - {19)
Share of post-tax profit from associates 13 - = = - - -
Profit/(loss) before tax 427 (54 2) {11 5} (33 0) {129 9) (162 9)
Tax 7 {172) 14 8 23 g1 354 45
Profit/loss) for the year 255 (39 3) {13 8) {23 9) {84 5) {118 4)
Profit/(loss) for the year atinbutable to equnty
shareholders 255 {39 3} {13 8) 239 {94 5) {118 4}
Loss per share from continuing operations
Basic and dihted 9 {14)p (14 5)p

The notes on pages 72 to 120 form an integral part of thase financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 30 June 2011
Group Company
2011 2010 201 2010
Notes £m £m £m £m
Loss for the year {138 {118 4) {73 1) (143 6)
Other comprehensive {expense)/income
Amounts deferrad n respect of effectve cash flow hedges 5,29 {23 6) {43 8) {23 6) {438}
Actuanal gans/losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 26 220 (26 3) 220 {26 3}
Far value adustment on avalable for sale financial assets 15 25 - - -
Tax {charge)/credit on items taken directly to equity 7 {17} 199 09) 195
Net loss recogmised directly in equity {0 8} {6500 2 5) {£04)
Amorhisation of losses on cancelled interest rate swaps daferred In equity 5 - 02 - 02
Amounts reciassified to the ncome statement in respect of hedged cash flows 5,29 285 141 285 141
Armounts reclassified to the Income statement in respect of hedged cash flows
ne longer expected to occur — exceplional 5,28 298 501 208 501
Tax charge on items taken directly to equity 7 (16 0} (180 {16 0) (180)
Net profit transferred 42 3 464 423 464
Total cornprehensive Income/{expense} recognised for the year atinbutable to
equity shareholders 277 (1220} (33 3) (1476)

The notes on pages 72 to 120 form an integral part of these financal staterments
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Group 30 June 2011
Share- Total
Share Share Merger Hedging Own based Retained retained
capital premium reserve reserve shares payments eamings eamings”® Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 July 2009 347 2066 11090 B39 {2 8) 149 1,0331 1,045 2 23316
Loss for the year - - - - - - (118 4) (118 4} (1184)
Amounts deterred in respect
of effectve cash flow hedges - - - {43 6) ~ - — - {436)
Amounts reclassified to the
ncome statement In respect
of hedged cash flows - - - 14 1 - - - - 141
Amounts reclassified to the
income statement in respect
of hedged cash flows no longer
expected to occur — exceptional - - - 501 - - - - 501
Amortisation of losses on
cancelled nterest rate swaps
deferred n equity - - - 02 - - - - 02
Actuanat losses on
pension scheme - - - - - - (26 3} (26 3) {26 3)
Tax on items taken directly
o equity - - = 58 - 04 73 77 19
Total comprehensive expense
recognised for the year ended
30 June 2010 - - - 150 - 04 {137 4) (1370) {122 0)
Share-based payments - - - - - 02 - 02 02)
lssue of sharas 618 - - - ~- - 658 7 6587 7205
Fees relating to 1ssue of shares - - - - - - {275) (27 5) (27 5)
Purchase of shares by Empioyee
Benefit Tnest - - - - 22 - - 22 22
Transfer of share-based payments
charge for non-vested ophions - - - - - {19 i9 - =
At 30 June 2010 965 2066 1,090 {48 9) {50} 132 15288 15370 29002
Loss for the year - - - - - - (13 8) {13 8) (13 8)
Amounts deferred m respect
of effectve cash flow hedges - - - {23 6} - - - - (23 6)
Amounts reclassified to the
ncome statement n respect
of hedged cash flows - - - 285 - - - - 285
Amounts reclassified to the
income staternent in respect
of hedged cash flows no longer
expacted to occur — exceptional - - - 298 - - - - 298
Fair valug adustments on
avallable for sale financial assets - - - - - - 25 25 25
Actuaral gans on
pension scheme - - - - - - 220 220 220
Tax ontems taken directly
to equity - = - (10 4) - - (7 3) {7 3) (177)
Total comprehensive expense
recognised for the year ended
30 June 2011 - - - 243 - - 34 34 277
Share-based payments - - - - - 18 04 22 22
At 30 June 2011 96 5 206 6 1,109 0 (24 6) {5 0) 150 1,532 6 1,542 6 2,9301

On 23 Septernber 2000 he ComMparny annowced a Ay undenwnien Placng the Placng’} and Foghts lssus (the  Fights iasoe’), rasmg gross proceads of £720.5m  The equty saue was compiited on 2 Nevember 2000
Ordnardy the exass of the proceads over the rommal valus of the shane cagetal weuld be credad 1 fon-datributalie $hars premaum atcourtt. Howove' the Placng and the Rights issue wene stieciod through a sinctre

whah rétsiet 1t Eoees of thi proceads over the nomanal vaue of e

W W

Wahan retaned eamags

The notes on pages 72 10 120 form an integrai part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Company 30 June 2011
Share- Total
Share Share Marger Hedging Own based Retained retained
capital premium reserve reserve shares payments eamings eamings” Total
£m m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m

At 1 July 2009 347 2066 1,1090 (83 9) 28 115 11234 11321 24185
Loss for the year - - - - - - (143 6} (143 6} (143 6)
Amaounts deferred n respect
of effectrve cash flow hedges = - - (436) - - - - 43 6)
Amounts reclassified to the
ncome statement in respect
of hedged cash flows - - - 141 - - - - 141
Amounts reclassified 1o the
incame statement In respect
of hedged cash flows no longer
expected to occur — exceptional - - - 501 - - - - 501
Amortisation of losses on
cancelled nterest rate swaps
deferred n equity - - - 02 - = - - 02
Actuanal losses on
pension scheme - - - - - - (26 3) (26 3) (26 3}
Tax an items taken directly
o eguity - - - 58 - - 73 73 15
Total comprehensive expense
recognised for the year ended
30 June 2010 - - - 150 - - (162 6) {162 6) (147 6)
Share-based payments - - - - - 03 - @2 ©2
Issue of shares 618 - - - - - 6587 6587 7205
Fees relating to 1ssue of shares - - - - - - {275) (27 5) (27 5)
Purchase of shares by Employes
Benefit Trust - - - - 22 - - 22 22
Transfer of share-based payments
change for non-vested options - - - - - {19} 19 - -
At 30 June 2010 965 2066 1,1090 (48 9) {50 94 15939 1,608 3 29615
Loss for the year - - - - - - (731) {731) 731
Amounts deferred in respect
of effectve cash flow hedges - - - (23 6) - - - - {23 6}
Amounts reclassified to the
income statement in respect
of hedged cash flows - - - 285 - - - - 285
Amounts reclassified to the
ncome statement in respect
of hedged cash flows no longer
expecied to occur — exceptional - - - 298 - - - = 298
Actuanal gains on
pension scheme - - - - - - 220 220 220
Tax onitams taken directly
1o equity - - - {104) = 01 {6 6) {6 5) (16 9}
Total comprehensive expense
recogmsed for the year ended
30 June 2011 - - - 243 - 01 (57 7) (57 6) {33 3}
Share-based payments — - - - - 18 04 22 22
At 30 June 2011 96 5 20686 1,1090 {24 6) {50 H3 153686 1,542 9 29304

Cn 23 September 2009 the Company armountad a Ay Underwriien Placing (the "Placng ) and Rights ssua the Righis (ssur) rasng gross proceeds of £720 Sm- The squdy asue was compieted on 4 Novernber 2008
Qeciraniy (i 4pcoss of i procesds over the nomina! vale of 1he snan capaal wousd be cracied 1 non-dsir butable ghare Cromium account However the Placeg end the Fighta Issue were effected thiough & structug

whah resiLetsd N g axonss of the procesds cver the romanal value of the share capdal ssued Berig recogreied wirs nitared eamegs

The notes on pages 72 to 120 form anntegral part of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEETS

At 30 June 2011
Group Company
2011 2010 20m 2010
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
QOther ntangible assets 11 1000 1000 - -
Goodwilt 10 792 2 7922 - -
Property, plant and equipment 12 586 67 07 11
Investments 14 - - 26177 26154
Investments accounted for using the egquity method 13 102 8 799 - -
Avallable for sale financial assets 15 1694 136 3 - -
Trade and other recevables 18 57 08 - -
Deferred tax assets 18 143 2 1733 487 808
Denvative financial nstruments - swaps 24 250 327 250 327
1,343 9 1,3219 2,6921 27300
Current assets
Inventores 7 3,206 8 33423 - -
Trade anc other recevables 18 587 661 7818 899 8
Cash and cash equivalents 21 727 5465 571 5221
Currgnt tax agsets 32 - - -
3,431 4 39549 838 9 1,4219
Total assets 47753 52768 3,531 0 41519
Liahilities
Non-current iiabilities
Loans ana borrowings 23 405 5) {918 6) (405 5) {918 6)
Trade and other payables 19 {352 5) {300 8§) - -
Retirement benefit ebligations 26 (11 8} 48 1) {11 8) 461)
Denvative financial iInstruments — swaps 24 {37 0} 724) (37 0) 24

(806 8) (1.3379)  (4543)  (1,0371)

Current habilities

Loans and borrowings 23 (11 2 (232) {106 6) {116 3)
Trade and other payables 19 (1,0272) (10127 (397) (B361)
Current tax liabiities - 28) - 09
(1,0884) (1,0387) (146 3) (153 3)
Total habibties {1,8452) [.37686) (600 6) (1,190 4)
Neat assets 2,930 1 2,800 2 2,930 4 29615
Ecpunty
Share capital 27 96 5 96 5 96 5 965
Share premium 206 6 2066 206 6 206 6
Merger reserve 1,109 0 1,3090 1,108 0 11090
Hedging reserve {24 6) 48 9) (24 6) (48 9)
Retaned eamings 1,542 6 1,5370 1,542 9 1,588 3
Total equity 2,9301 29002 29304 29615

The financ:al statements of Barratt Developments PLG {registered number 804574) were approved by the Board of Terectors and authonsed
for 1ssue on 13 September 2011 Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

w &_’ >3 [Mra—as

Mark Clare David Thomas
Group Chiet Executive Group Finance Director

The notes on pages 72 1o 120 forman ntegrai part of these financial statements
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Year ended 30 June 2011
Group Company
2011 2010 20m 2010
Notes £m £m £m tm
Net cash inflow from operating activities 30 1002 2014 46 5 2453
Cash flows from investing actvities
Purchase of property, plant and squipment 12 07) 04 {01 {03}
Acqusition of subsidianes net of cash acquired 32 {11) - - -
{Increase)/decreass in nvestments accounted for using the equity method 13 (228 18 - -
Interest recenved 44 65 401 559
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from investing activities {202 79 400 556
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 7205 - 7205
Sharg 155u8 Cos5ts - (27 5) - (27 5)
Purchase of shares by Employee Benefit Trust - (22) - 22
Make-whaole fee on redemphion of prvate placement notes - 49 - 49
Hedging termination costs (271) (497) (271) {437)
Other fees related to amendment of financing amangements 5 (8 6] {65 (8 6) {6 5)
Loan repayments {(5181) (5613) {515 8) (5715}
Net cash {outfiow)/inflow from financing activities (553 8) 684 {551 5) 582
Net ([decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {473 8) 3677 {465 0) 3591
Cash and cash equwvalents at the beginning of year 5465 1788 5221 1630
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 3 727 5465 571 5221

The notes on pages 72 to 120 form an integral part of these financial statements
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Year ended 30 June 2011

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared m accordance with
International Financal Reporting Standards (1FRS') as issued by

the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (1ASB'), Intemational
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (1IFRIC’) miterpretations
and Standing interpretations Commuttee (SIC') interpretations as
adopted and endorsed by the European Union ('EU’) and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS and therefore the Group financial statements comply with
Article 4 of the EU Internahonal Accounting Standards Regulabion
The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost
convention as modified by the revaluation of avallable for sale financial
assets, denvative financial nstruments and share-based payments

A summary of the maore significant Group accounting policies 1s set
out below

The preparahion of financial statemenis in conformity with generally
accepted accounting prnoiples requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial staterments and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses dunng the reporting penod Although these
estmates are based on the Directors best knowledge of the amounts,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estmates The most
sigrificant estimates made by the Directors in these financiat statements
are set out N ‘Cnhical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty'

Going concern

In determining the appropnate basis of preparation of the financal
staternents, the Directors ara required to consider whether the Group
can contnue In operational existence for the foreseeabie future

The Group's business actvities, together with factors which the Directors
constder are ikely to affect its futurs development, financial performance
and financsal position are set out in the Group Chief Executve’s review

on pages 610 11 and the Business review on pages 14 to 35 The matenal
financial and operational nsks and uncertamties that may iImpact the
Group's perforrmance and therr miigation are outhned on pages 32

to 35 and financil nsks including fiqudity nsk, market risk, credit nsk
and capital nsk are outhned n note 25 1o the financial staterments

The financial performance of the Group 15 dependent upon the wider
gconomic enmaronment N which the Group operates As explained

in the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties on pages 32 to 35, tactors
that partculary impact upon the performance of the Group nclude
changes n the macrogconemic environment iIncluding buyer
canfidence, avalabiity of mortgage financa for the Group’s
custormers and nterest rates

On 10 May 2011 the Group agreed a complete debt refinancng
package This provides the Group with around £1 billon of committed
faciites and pnvate placement notes to May 2015, with some of the
Group's arrangements exiending as far as 2021 The covenant package
is sunilar to before and the facilites prowde appropriate haadroom
above our current forecast debt requirements

Accordingly, after making enguings, the Directors have formed a
judgement, at the tirne of approwing the financial statements, that there
15 a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeabls future, being at
least twelve months from the date of these financial statements For this
reason, they continue to adopt the gong concem basis in prepamng the
financial statements

Adoption of new and revised standards
In the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group has adopted

Amendment to IFRS2 ‘Group cash-settied share-based payment
transactions’, Amendment to IFRS1 ‘Additionat Exemptions for First-ime
Adopters’ and 'Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS? Disclosures
for First-time Adopters’, Amendment to1AS32 Classification of nghts
1ssues', IFRIC19 ‘Extinguishing Financial Liabidities with Equity
Instruments’, and mproverments to IFRSs (issued in Apnl 2009)

The adoption of these standards, interpretations and amendments
has not had any impact upon the profit or net assets of the Group in
aither the cument year or comparative year and has not required any
additional disclosures

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial staterments include the results of Barratt
Developments PLC {the Parent Company’), ncorporated in the UK,
and all its subsidiary undertakings made up to 30 June The financial
statements of subsichary undertakings are consolidated from the date
when control passes to the Group using the purchase method of
accounting and up to the date control ceases  All fransactions with
subsidianes and intercompany profits or losses are eliminated

on consoldation

Business combinations

All of the subsidianes’ identifiable assets and habilities, including
contngent labities, existing at the date of acquisiion are recorded

at ther far values All changes 1o those assets and habilities and the
resuiing gains and losses that anse after the Group has ganed conirol
of the subsidiary are included in the post-acquistion ncome statement

Jointly controlled entities

A jointty controled entity 1s an entity n which the Group holds an interest
with one or mare other parties whare a contractual arrangement has
established joint control over the entity Jontly controlted entities are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Jointly controlled operations

Tne Group enters Into jointly controllad operations as part of its
housebuiding and property development actmties The Group’s share
of profits and lossas from s investments i such jointty controlled
operations i accounted for on a diwect basis and 1s included in the
consohdated ncome statement The Group's share of its nvesiments,
assets and Iabikhes 18 accounted for on a directly proportional basis

in the Group balance shest

Associated entities
An assocated entity 1s an entity, includng an unincorperated entity such
as a partnership, In which the Group holds a significant mfluence and
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that 15 nesther a subsidiary nor an interast n a jont venture Assocated
entiies are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Revenue

Revenue 1s recogrised at legal completion m respect of the 1otal
proceeds of bulding and development and an appropriate proportion
of revenug from construction contracts 1s recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of contract actvty Revenue 1s measured at
the far value of consideration receved or recevable and represents
the amounts recenvable for the property, net of discounts and VAT The
sale proceeds of part-exchange properties are not included in revenue

Interest ncome 15 accrued on a tirme basis, by reference to the prncipal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

Construction contracts

Revenue 15 only recognised on a construction contract where the
outcome can be estimated reliably Vanations to, and claims ansing
respect of, construction contracts, are ncluded in revenue to the extent
that they have been agreed with the customer Revenue and costs are
recogrised by reference to the stage of completion of contract actmty
at the balance sheet date Trus 13 normally measured by surveys of work
performed to date Contracts are only treated as construction contracts
when they have been speciiically negotiated for the construction of a
development or property When it 1s probable that the total costs on a
construchion contract will exceed total contract revenue, the expected
loss 1s recognised as an expense m the income statement iImmediately

Amounts recoverable on construction contracts are included in trade
recenvables and stated at cost plus attributable profit less any foresesable
losses Payments recemnved on account for construction contracts are
deducted from amounts recoverable on construction conltracts

Payments received in excess of amounis recoverable on construction
contracts are inCluded in irade payables

Exceptional items

Items that are matenal n size or unusual or Infrequent in nature are
presented as exceptional items n the income staternent The Directors
are of the opinion that the separate presentation of exceptional tems
provides helpful mfermation about the Group's undertying busmess
performance Examples of events that, inter alia, may give nse to the
classification of items as exceptional are the restructunng of existing
and newly-acquired businesses, refinancing costs, gans or losses

on the disposal of businesses or indvidual assets, pension scheme
curtalments and asset impairments, ncludng land, work m prograss,
goodwill and investments

Restructurmg costs

Restructunng costs are recognised m the income statement when the
Group has a detared plan that has besen communicated o the affected
parties A liability 18 accrued for unpaid restructunng costs

Profit/(loss) from operations

PrefitAloss) from operations includes all of the revenue and costs denved
from the Group's operating businesses Profit/loss) from operations
excludes finance costs, finance ncome, the Group's share of profits

or losses from joint venturas and tax.

Segmental reporting

The Group consists of two separate segments for nternal reporting
regularty reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to allocate
resources to the segments and to assess therr performance, being
housebuiding and commercial developments These segments thersfore
compnse the pnimary reporting segments within the financial statements
Al of the Group's operabons are within Bntain which 1s one gecgraphic
markat n the context of managmg the Group's actmbies

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on conschdation represents the excess of the far value
of the consideration over the far value of the separately dentifiable net
assets and labilities acquired

Goodwill ansing on acquisthon of subsichary undertakings and
businesses s caphaksed as an asset and roviewed for imparment
at least annually

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units expected o benefit from the
synergies of the combination at acquision Cash-generating units to
which gocdwill has been allocated are tested for mpaiment at lsast
annually If the recoverable ameunt of the cash-generating unitis less
than the camying amount of the unit, the Impainment loss 1s allocated
first to reduce the camying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then 1o the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the urst Any impairment loss ts
recognised immediately i the income statement and 1s not
subsequently reversed

Intangible assets

Brands

Intemally generated brands are not capitalised The Group has
capiialised as ntangible assets brands that have been acquired
Acquired brand values arg calculated using discounted cash flows
Where a brand 1s considered to have a finite ife, it 1s amortised over
its useful ife on a straight-ine basis Where a brand is capitalised
with an indefinite iife, it s not amortised The factors that result in the
durahility of brands capitalised are that there are no matenal legal,
regutatory, contractual, competitve, econormic or other factors that
lirrmt the ussfu! life of these Ntangible assets

The Group cames out an annual mpaiment review of ndefinite
Iife brands as part of the review of the camying value of goodwill,
by performing a value-n-use calculaton, using a discount factor
based upon the Group's pra-tax weighted average cost of capital

Investments
interests in subsidiary undeartakings are accounted for at cost kess
any provision for impaiment

Where share-ased payments are granted to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings by the Parent Compary, they are treated
as a capital contnbution to the subsidiary and the Company's
mvestment N the subsidiary 15 ncreased accordingly
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Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment 15 camed at ¢ost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impaiment losses Deprecaton is
provicied o write off the cost of the assets ¢on a straight-line basis to
therr residual value over theyr estrnated useful ives Residual values
and asset Iives are reviewed annually

Freehold properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 25 years
Freehold land 15 not depreciated Plant s depreciated on a straght-line
bass over s expected useful ife, which ranges from one 1o seven years

Inventones

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost
compnses direct matenals, direct labour costs and those overheads
which have been ncurred in binging the nventones to their present
ocation and condition

Land held for devedopment, ncluding land n the course of development,
15 mtially recorded at discounted cost Where, through deferred
purchase credit tarms the carmying value differs from the amount that
will ulimately be paid in setting the habisty, this difference 1s charged as
a finance cost In the Income statement over the penod of setllement

Due to the scale of the Group’s developments, the Group has to allocate
site-wide development costs between units bult N the current year

and n future years it also has to estimate costs to complete on such
developments In making these assessments there is a degree of inherent
uncertanty The Group has developed intemal controls to assess and
review camying values and the appropnateness of estmates made

Lease as lessee
Operating lease rentals are charged to the mcome staterment in equal
instaiments aver the Ife of the lease

Leases as lessor

The Group enters into leasing arrangements with thirdt parties foltowing
tha completion of constructed davelopments until the date of the sale
of the developmaent to third parties Rentat mcome from these operating
leases 1s recognised in the income statement on a straght-line basis
over the term of the lease Inbal direct costs incurred in negotiatng and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carmying amount of the
leased asset and recogrised in the income staterment on a straight-ine
basis over the lease term

Share-based payments

The Group issues both equity-setiled and cash-settled share-based
payments to certain employees Inaccordance with the iransiional
provisions, IFRS2 ‘Share-based Payments' has been applied to alt
grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested at 1 January 2005

Equity-settted share-based payments are measured at faur value at

the date of grant Fair value 15 measured either using Black-Scholes,
Present-Economic Value or Monte Carlo models dependeant upon the
charactenstics of the scheme The far valtue s expensed n the ncome
statement on a straight-kne basis over the vesting penod, based on tha
Group's estmate of shares that wall eventually vest where non-market
vestng conditions apply

Non-vasting condiions are taken nto account i the estimate of the
fair valus of the equity nstruments

Cash-settled share-based payments are measured at far value at the
date of grant and are re-measured both at the end of each reporting
penod and at the date of settlement with any changes in far value
being recognised in the ncome statement for the penod Farr value

1s measured initially and at the end of each reporting penod using a
Black-Scheoles model and at the date of settlement as cash pad

Tax
The {ax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax

The tax currently payable s based on the taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income statement
because it excludes tems of ncome or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and o further excludes temns that are never
{axablg or deductible The Group’s lability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s recognised i respect of all
ternporary differences that have onginated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an
obligation to pay more tax in the future or a nght to pay less tax n

the future have occurred at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the rates that are expected to apply in
the penod when the liability is settled or the asset 1 realised based on
1ax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheat date
Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the ncome statement, except
when it relates to tems charged or cragited directly to equity, In which
case the deferred tax i§ aiso dealt with m equity

A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and tharefore
recognitsed only when, on the basis of all avallable ewdence 1t can be
regarded as more likety than not that there will be suttable taxable profits
from whuch the future reversal of the undertying timing differencas can
be deducted Deferred tax assets and kabidties are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets aganst current
tax habilities and when they relate to taxes levied by the same tax
authonty and the Group intends to settis its current tax assets and
kabiities on a net basis

Pensions

Defined contnibution

The Group operates defined contnbution pension schemes for certan
employees The Group's contnbutions to the schemes are charged n
the ncome staterment in the year N which the contnbutions 3l due

Defined benefit

For tha defined benefit scherme, the cost of providing benefits 1s
determined usmg the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuanal
valuations being camed out at each balance sheet date Actuanal
gans and losses are recognised in full nthe penod m which they
oceur They are recogrised outside profit of loss and presented
m the statement of comprehensva iNcome
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Past sernce cost, untl the scherme ceased to offer future accrual
of defined benefit pensions 1o employess from 30 June 2009, was
recogrised mmediatsly to the extent that the benefits were already
vested, and otherwise was armortised on a straight-ine basis over
the average penod until the benefits become vested

The retirernent benefit obigation recogrised n the balance shest
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecogrised past service cost, and as reduced by the

faur value of the scheme assets Any asset resulting from this caloulation
18 imited 10 past sarvice cost, plus the present value of avalable refunds
and reductions n future contnbuhions 1o the scheme

Borrowing costs

The Group capitaises borrowing costs directly attnbutabls to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualfying asset as part of
the cost of the asset where davelopments are consiclered to fall under
the requirements of 1AS23 (Rewised) Otherwise, the Group expenses
borrowing costs in the penod io which they relate through the

income statement

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labiities are recogrised on the Group's
balance shest when the Group becomes a party to the contractua)
provisions of the instrument

The Group derecogruses a financial asset only when the contractual
nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity

The Group derecogruses a financial habilty only when the Group's
oblgations are discharged, cancelled or they expire

Financial assets

Non-denvative financial assels are ciassified as ather ‘avalable for sale
financial assets' or ‘loans and recevables' The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financal assets and 1s dstermined at
the time of inial recognition

Available for sale financial assets

Non-interest beanng loans granted as part of sales transactions that
are secured by way of a second legal charge on the respective property
are classified as being available for sale and are stated at far value

Fair value 1s determined i the manner descnbed in note 15

Revenue from transactions involving available for sale financial assets
1S recognised at the fair value of consideration recenvable

Gans and losses ansing from changes in faur value ars recognised in
equity within othar comprehensive ncorme Gans and losses ansing
from imparment 10sses, changes in future cash flows and interest
calculated using the effectve interest rate’ method are recogrised
direcily in the income siaterment

Trade and other recevables

Trade and other recenvables are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market They
are mcluded In current assets, except for those with matunties greater
than twehe months after the balance sheet date, which are classified
as non-currant assets and are measured at amortsed cost less an
allowance for ary uncollectable amounts The net of these balances
are classified as ‘trade and other recevables’ in the balance sheet

Trade and other recevables are classified as ‘loans and recenvables’

Impairment of financial assets

Trade and other recervables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each balance sheet date and ara impaired where there 1s chjective
evidence that the recovery of the recenable 1s in doubt

Objective evidence of mpairment ¢ould include significant financial
difficulty of the customer, default on payment terms or the customer
going n{o liquidation

The camying amount of trade and other recevables 1s reduced through
the use of an allowance account When a trade or other recenvable IS
considered uncoliectable, it 1s wnitten off agamnst the allowance account
Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously wntten off are credited
aganst the atlowance account Changes in the camying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in the ncome statement

For financial assets classified as avalable for sate, a significant or
prolonged dechne n the valug of the property underpinning the value
of the loan or increased nsk of default are considered to be objective
evidence of impaiment

In respect of debt nstruments classified as avallable for sale financial
assets, Increases in the far value of assets previously subject to
imparment which can be objectively related to an event occurmnng
after recogrition of the iImpairment loss, are recognised n the ncome
statement to the extent that they reverse the mpairment loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances in bank accounts
with no notice or less than three months notice from inception and are
subject to an insignificant nsk of changes n value

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as 'loans and recenvables’

Financial habihitties and equity
Financial kabilities and equity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements enterad nto

Equity instruments
Equity nstruments consist of the Company’s ordinary share capital and
are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of drect i1ssue costs

Financial liabiiittes

All non-denvative financial hiabilties are classified as 'other financial
liabiities’ and ara mnitially measured at far value, net of transachon
costs Other financial kabiitres are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the ‘effective nterest rate” method
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Other financial habilities consist of bank borrowings and trade and
other payables

Financia kabiities are classified as current sabilities urless the Group
has an uncondihional nght to defer settlernent of the habiiity for at least
twelve months after the balance sheet date

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables on normal terms are not interest beanng
and are stated at amontrsed cost

Trade and other payables on extended terms, particularly In respect

of land, are recorded at their fair value at the date of acquisition of the
asset to which they relate by discounting at prevailing market nterest
rates at the date of recognition The discount to nommal value, which
will be paid In setting the deferred purchase terms liability, 1s amortised
over the penod of the credit term and charged to finance costs usng
the ‘effectve interest rate’ method

Bank borrowings
Interest beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Wherg bank agreements include a legal nght of offset for in hand and
overdraft balances, and the Group intends to settle the net outstanding
position, the offset arrangements are apphied 1o record the net posiion
in the batance sheet

Finance ncome and charges are accounted for using the effective
nterest rate’ method in the Nncome statement

Finance costs are recognised as an expense in the income statemeant
In the penod to which they relate

Denvative financial mstruments

The Group has entered into denvative financial nstruments in the form
of nterest rate swaps and cross currency swaps to manage the interest
rate and foreign exchange rate nsk ansing from the Group's operations
and sources of finance The use of inancial denvatives 15 govemned by
the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors as detaled n
notes 24 and 25 to the financial statements

The interest rate and ¢ross currency swap amangements are designated
as hedging instruments, being ether hedges of a change In future cash
fiows as a result of interest rate movements, or hedges of a change I
future cash fiows as a result of foreign currency exchange rate movements

The far valug of hedging denvatives 1s classified as a non-current
asset or a non-current hability If the remaining matunty of the hedging
refationship 15 more than twelve months and as a current asset ora
current liability if the remaining matunty of the hedge relatonship 1s
less than twelve months

Hedge accounting

Al of the Groug's interast rate and cross currency swaps are designated
as cash flow hedges At the mception of the hedge relationship the
Group documents the relationship between the hedging mstrument

and the hedged stern, along with its nsk management objectves and

its strategy for undertaking vanous hedged transactions In addition,
at the iInception of the hedge and on anongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument ts hughly effective In
offsetting the changes n cash flows of the hedged items

Detalls of the farr values of the interest rate and cross currency swaps
are provided In notes 22, 23 and 24 to the financial statements
Movements on the hedgng reserve in equity are detailed in the
statements of changes in shareholders’ equity

Cash flow hedge

To the extent that the Group's cash flow hedges are effective, gans

and losses on the far valug of the nterest rate and cross cumrency swap
arrangerments are deferred i equity in the hedging reserve unti realised
On realisation, such gains and losses are recogrised within finance
charges m the income statement

To the extent that any hedge 1s meffective, gains and losses on the
far value of these swap arangements are recognised Immedately
in finance charges in the Income statement

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled in profit or loss in the penods
when the hedged tem s recognised in profit or loss

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging nstrument expires
or1s terminated or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that time,
any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equity remans m equity and 1s
recognised when the forecast transaction i1s ulbmatety recogrised in
profit or loss When a forecast transaction 1S no longer expected to
occur the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred In equity 1s
recegnised immediately n profit or loss

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the income staterment so as

to match with the retated costs that they are intended to compensate
Grants related to assets are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset Grants related to income are included in the appropnate ne
within the ncome statament

Kickstart

The Group has been granted assistance for the development of a
number of stes under the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA)
‘Kickstart' scheme Where receipts under the Kickstart scheme relate
to grants they are accounted for in accordance with the policy for
Gevernment grants stated above

In addition the Group has recenved cash upon specilic sites under the
‘Kickstart equity’ scheme which 1s repayable in future pencds, as the
sites to which it relates are developed, along with the share of the profits
or losses attnbutable to the HCA ansing from the sites This liabiity

1S Included within borrowings and 15 nitialty recognised at farr value

by ciscounting It at prevailing market intsrest rates at the date of
recognition The discount to nominal value, which will be paid in setting
the liabity, 15 amoriised over the expecled life of the site and charged
to finance costs using the 'effective mterest rate’ method Gains and
losses ansmng from changes m fair value of the liabiity related 1o the
HCA's share of the profits or losses of the site are recognised directly

in the Income statement
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IMPACT OF STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of approval of these financial statements there wera a
number of standards, amendments and interpretations that have been
published and are therefore mandatory for the Group's accounting
pernods beginring on or after 1 Juty 2011 and later penods 1AS24
{Revised), Improvernents to IFRSs, issued in May 2010, Amendment
to 1AS12 and Amendment to IFRIC14 have been adopted by the EU
The Group has not early-adopted any standard, amendment

or nterpretation

The standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected

to impact upon the Group are

¢ [FRS9 ‘Financial instruments’ 1s ikely to apply to the Group from
1July 2013 The new standard was 1ssued n Novernber 2009 as
the first step in the Intemational Accounting Standard Board's (JASB)
project to replace 1AS39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and
Measurement’ IFRSE ntroduces new requirements for classifying
and measunng financial assets Tha IASB 1s In the process of
expanding IFRSA to add new requrements for classifying and
measunng financial iabities, derecogrition of financial nstruments,
impairrment and hedge accountng The Group 1s currently assessing
the impact of the standard on the Group's resuits and financial position
and will continue to assess the impact as the standard s revised by
the IASB IFRS10 'Consoldated Financial Statements’ will apply to the
Group from 1 July 2013 The new standard was issued in May 2011
to establish prntiples for the presentation and preparation of
consolidated financial statements when an entity controls one
or more other entities  The Group is currently assessing the impact
of the standard on the Group's results and financial posstion

* IFRS11 Joint Amangements’ will apply to the Group from 1 July 2013
The new standard was issuad in May 2011 and requires that a party to
a joint arrangement determmes the type of jont arangement in which
itis nvolved by assessing its rights and obligations and accourts for
those nghts and obligations n accordance with that type of joint
amangement The Group 1s currently assessing the impact of the
standard on the Group’s resuits and financtal position

* IFRS12 ‘Disclosure of Interast in Other Entities’ will apply to the Group
from 1 July 2013 The new standard was issued in May 2011 and
requires the disclosure of miormation that enables users of financal
statements to evaluate the nature of, and nsks associated wath, Its
interests i other entities and the effects of those interests on ts
financial posiion, financial parforrmance and cash fliows The Group
1s curently assessing the impact of the standard on the financial
statements of ihe Group

* [FRS13 'Far Value Measurement’ will apply to the Group from
1 July 2013 The new standard was issued in May 2011 and defines
farr value, seis out n a single IFRS a framework for rmeasunng far
value and requires disclosures about far value measurements
The Group 1S currently assessing the impact of the standard
on the Group's results and financial position

* 1AS24 Revised) 'Related Party Transactons® will apply to the
Group from 1 July 2011 The rewsed standard is expected to
mpact upon the Group by requinng additional disclosures in
the annual financal statements

* |AS27 {(Rewised) "Separate Financial Statements” will apply to the
Group from 1 July 2013 The Group 1s currently assessing the impact
of the amendment on the financial statements of the Group

* |AS28 (Revised) 'Investments n Associates and Joint Ventures®
will apply to the Group from 1 July 2013 The Group is currently
assessng the impact of the amendment on the financial statements
¢f the Group

= Improvements to IFRSs, 1ssued in May 2010, s the 2010 tranche
of the IFRS Improvernents project and includes a number of minor
amendments o existing IFRS, which reguire implementation from
1July 2011 The amendments are expected to impact upon the Group
by requinng additonal disclosures n the annual financial statements

The adoption of the follomang standards, amendments and

interpretations 15 not expected to have any matenal impact

on the financial statements of the Group

+ Amendment to 1AS12 ‘Deferred tax Recovery of Undertying Assets’
provides an exception to the general pnnciples of IAS12 for investment
property measured using the far value model In 1IAS40 Investment
Property' The amendment apples to the Group from 1 July 2012
and 1s not expected to have an impact on the Group

* Amendment to IFRIC14 ‘Prepayments of a Mimimum Funding
Requirement’ was 1ssued to comrect an unintended consequence
of the interpretation which, in some circumstances, prevented the
recogrition as an asset some voumtary prepayments for minimum
funding contnbutons The amendment applies to the Group from
1 July 2011 and s not expected to have an impact on the Group
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES

OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

in accordance with the requirements of IFRS, the Group has detailed
below the cntical accountng judgements made and the key sourcas
of estimation uncertainty within these financial statements

Cntical accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are
descnbed in the accounting polcies note, the Directors have made
no indvidual judgements that have a significant impact upon the
financial staternents, apart from those rvolving estimations, which
are dealt with below

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertanty at the balance sheet dates, are discussed below

Carryng value of land and work in progress

The Group’s pnncipal actmty 1s housebuwlding and commercial
development The majonty of the development activity 1s not contracted
pnor to the development commencing Accordingly, the Group has in its
balance sheet at 30 June 2011 current assets that are not covered by a
forward sale The Group's interal controls are designed to identify any
developments where the batance sheet value of tand and work in
progress 1s more than the lower of cost or net realisable value

As a result of the downtum i the market in 2007/08 and continued
market uncertanties, the Group conducts ongoing sx-monthly reviews
of the net realisable value of its fand and work in progress Where

the estimated net realisable value of the site was less than its current
carrying value within the balance sheet, the Group has mparred the
land and work in progress value The Group histoncatly recognised
excephional charges n respect of imparment within both the
housebuiding and commearcial developments business segments The
nception and utilsation of these provisions 1s set out in the table below

dus to changes ansing from normal tradng, such as planning status,
there was a net inventory mpairment charge of £5 4m (2010 £74m)
ncluded within profit from operations There was no (2010 £4 8m) net
impairment for the commercial developments business although there
were gross impairment charges and reversals of £1 2m (2010 gross
imparment of £7 3m and gross reversal of £2 5m) due to performance
vanations upon indmidual commercial stes

Excfuding the operatng mpairment charge of £5 4m (2010 £7 4m),
included within gross profit 1s a benefit of £4 7m (2010 charge of £5 8m)
relating to the realisation of wntten down inventory above its onginally
estimated net realisable value

The key judgements in these reviews were estimating the realisatie value
of a site which 1s determined by forecast sales rates, expected sales
pnces and estimated costs to complete Sales prices were estmated

on a site-by-site basis based upon localmarket conditions and took

nto account the current prices beng achieved upon each site for each
product type In addition, the estimation of future sales pnces included

an allowance on a site-by-site basis for low single digit sales pnce nfiation
in future perods  The estimation of costs to complete also ncluded an
allowance for low singte digit build costs nflation in future penods

At 30 June 2011 the Giroup had a total land hoking of £2,189 7m

of which £2,068 8m 15 land held for current housing development

Of this £484 4m 1s made up from impared land, £979 4m consists

of non-imparred land purchased pnor to mid-2009 where the gross
margin 1 on average ¢ 10%, and the remaning £595 0m has an
average gross margin of more than 20% based on current house pnces

In the past six months, i general, the Group has not seen an
improverment In underlying prices, but has continued to deliver further
cost reductions  If the UK housing market were to change beyond
management expectatons in the future, n particular with regards to

Rowesbulding deﬁ:;;‘;"n‘:;ﬂg Tora | 1E @SSUMPtions around ikely sales prces and estmated Costs to
Year ended 30 June fm £m em | complete, then further adustments te the carrying value of tand and
Imparment charged work in progress may be required
2008 1572 512 2084
2009 4315 B30 4995 | Theland held at the balance sheet date that has already been impaired
2010 74 48 122 | 18 most sensitve to the jJudgements beng applied and the potential for
201 54 - 54 | further mparment or reversal Forecasting nsk also ncreases in relatiory
Total 6015 1240 7055 | 1o those sies that are not expected to be realised n the short to
Impasrment uthged medchum term The Group's current forecasts mdicate that, by volurme,
2008 _ _ _ | around 25% of the mpared sites are expected to be realised within one
2009 o627 863 3490 | year 16% wihin one to two years, and 59% in more than two years
201¢ 917 48 965
2011 Ha 138 852 The Group estimates that the imparment sensiaty for the
Total 495 8 1049 5307 housebullding business to an immediate uniform fall n house prices
Impaiment remaining across the UK, from those prevailing as at 30 June 2011, 1s as follows
2008 1572 512 2084 Urniform fali In naticnal house prices Indicative impairment
2009 3260 329 3589 i % £m
2010 247 329 27146 | 5 300
201 1757 191 1948 | 10 480

In 2011, thus review resutted in no (2010 £nif) net exceptional mpairment
charge for the housebullding busmess Bue to performance vanations
upon ndvidual housebuitding sites, there were gross exceptional
impaimment charges and reversals of £65 Om {2010 £57 4m) In addition,

These estimates are ilfustrative as any changes in house prices have
histoncally tended to be weighted either positvely or negatively towards
particutar geographic regions of the UK, they exclude any senstmvty upon
our commercial developments segment In addition, vanances in future
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buid cost mfiation from that allowed for i the Group's base calculation
would mpact upon the imparment sensitvity The value of impaiment
1§ prior to attnbuting any tax credrt that may acerue for future use

Estimation of costs to complete

In order to determine the profit that the Group 15 able o recogrise on its
developments in a specific period, the Group has to allocate site-wide
development costs between units built in the current year and i future
yoars It also has to estmats ¢osts to complete on such developments
In making these assessrments there 1S a degree of nherent uncertanty
The Group has developed ntemal controls to assess and review
carmying values and appropnateness of estmates made

Recogmition of profit where developments are accounted for
under IAS11 ‘Construction Contracts’

The Group apples its polcy on contract accountng whan recognising
revenue and profit on partrally completed contracts The application
of this policy requires judgements to be made n respect of the total
expected costs to complete each site The Group has in place
established internal control processes to ensure that the evaluation

of costs and revenues 15 based upon appropnate estmates

Impairment of gcodwall

The dstermination of the impairment of goodwili of the housebelding
busness requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the housebuikiing
cash-generating unit as defined n note 10 The value-In-use calcufation
requires an eshimate of the future cash flows expected from the
housebuilding busmess, ncluding the anticipated growth rate of revenue
and costs, and requires the determination of a sutable discount rate

to calculate the present value of the cash flows The discount rate used
15 based upon the average capital structure of the Group and current
market assessments of the time value of money and nsks appropriate
to the Group's housebulding business Changes in these may impact
upon the Group's discount rate in future penods The camyng amount
of goodwill at 30 June 2011 was £792 2m with no impairment
recognised dunng the year ended 30 June 2011

Further nforrmation 1s set out n note 10 on page 86

Impairment of brands

The determmation of the imparrrent calcutation for the Group s mdefinite
ife brand, Dawd Wilson Homes, requires an estmaton of the value-in-use
of the brarxf as defined n note 11 The value-n-use calcutation requires an
astimate of the future cash flows expected from this brand as part of the
review of the camyng value of goodwill, ncluding the antcipated growth
rate of revenue and costs, and requires the determmnation of a suitable
discount rate to calculate the present value of the cash fiows The
discount rate used 1s based upon the average capital structure of the
Group and current market assassments of the time value of money and
nsks appropnate to the Group's housebulding business Changes in
these may impact upon the Group's discount rate In future panods The
carrying amount of Indefinite Ife brands at 30 June 2011 was £100 Om
with no impainment recogrised dunng the ysar ended 30 June 2011

Further mformation is set cut n note 11 on page 87

Deferred tax assets

At 30 June 2011 the Group recognised a net deferred tax asset of
£143 2m compnsng of gross deferred {ax assets of £175 2mand gross
deferred tax abiiities of £32 Om £157 Om related {o losses that arose
dunng the year and preceding years, predominantly as a resull of the
refinancing and land mpairments that ars to be carred forward and
relieved aganst profits ansing in future penods The judgement o
recogrise the deferred tax asset s dependent upon taxable profits
ansing In the same company as the losses onginally arose and the
Group's expectations regarding future profitability ncluding site
revenue and cost forecasts for future years which contan a degree
of nherent uncertamnty

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Directors engage a qualified ndependent actuary to calculate

the Group's habihty in respect of iis defined benefit pension scheme

In calculating this fability it 1s necessary for actuanal assumptions to be
made, which include discount rates, salary and pension increases, pnce
inflation, the long-term rate of retum upon scheme assets and mortality

As actual rates of ncrease and mortality may diifer from these
assumed, the pension kability may differ from that included n
these financal statements

Hedge accounting

The mayponty of the Group's facilities are floating rate, which exposes
the Group to increased nterest rate nsk The Group has in place

£192 0m (2010 £480 O0m) (note 24) of ficating-io-fixed interest rate
swaps The Group has adopted hedge accounting for these swaps

on ths basis that 1115 ighly probabile that there is sufficient forecast debt
to match with the peniod of swaps If this basis was not met in future
then any changes in far value of the swaps would be recognised in the
Incorre staterment, rather than in equity Dunng the year ended 30 June
2011, there was a gan of £6 1m (2010 loss of £31 2m) ncluded in equdy
related to these swaps

In addition, the Group has $267 2m {2010 $187 2m) of cross cumency
swaps to manage the cash flow nsks related to foreign exchangs,
ansing from the Group's sources of US Dollar denorminated finance
These swaps are designated as a cash flow hedge against futura foreign
axchange rate movements I the hedges ceased to be highly eflective
then any changes in far value of the swaps would be recognised in the
income statement, rathar than equity DBunng the year ended 30 June
2011, there was a loss of £8 2m (2010 gain of £13 6m) included in equity
related to these swaps

Available for sale financial assets

The Group holds avallable for sale financial assets pnncipally compnsing
nterast free loans granted as part of sales transachons that are secured
by way of a second legal charge on the respective property The loans
are held at the present value of expected future cash fiows taking into
account the estimated market value of the property at the estimated
time of repayment At 30 June 2015 the asset recognised on the
balance sheet was £169 4m (2010 £136 3m)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue 1s as follows

2011 2010

Notes £m £m

Sals of goods 1,868 5 1,8879
Contract accounting revenue 166 9 1373
Revenue as stated in the ncome statement 20354 20352
Lease ncome 3 41 33
Finance income 5 180 134
Forfeit deposits 14 14
Other income 125 144
Total revenue 20714 20677

Sala of goods includes £373 1m (2010 £247 2m) of revenue generated where the sale has been achieved using part-exchange incentives

Proceeds receved on the disposal of part-exchange properties, which are not included in revenue, were £198 2m (2010 £153 8m)

2 Segmental analysis

The Group consists of two separate segments for management reporting and control purposes, being housebuldng and commercial
developments The segments are constdered appropnate for reporting undar IFRS8 'Operating Segments' since these segments are regularty
reviewed mtemally by the Group Board without further significant categonsation The Group presents its pamary segment information on the

basis of these operating segments As the Group operates n a single geographic market, Britan, no secondary segmentation is provded

House- Commercial 2m House- Commercial 2010
bullding developments Total buriding developments Tota
Units Units Unitg Units Units Units

Residential completions 11,078 - 11,078 11,3256 - 11,325
Income statement £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 1,986 2 49 2 2,0354 2,0001 351 20352
Cost of sales before imparment of nventones {1,764 4) (43 2) (1,807 6) (1.8199 (30 5) {1,850 4)
Gross profit before impairrment of sventories 2218 60 2278 1802 46 1848
Administrative expenses before
restruciunng costs (87 6) (5 2) {92 8) &8 8) (59 947
Profit/loss) from operations before impairment
of inventonas and restructunng costs 134 2 08 1350 914 {13) 901
Net exceptional impairment of inventones - - - - {48 {4 8)
Restructunng costs 7 - {77 (110) - {110
Profit/loss) from operations 1265 08 1273 804 61} 743
Share of post-tax profit/loss) from jont
ventures 01 - 01 09 {086) (1 5}
Profit/loss) from operations ncluding post-tax
profit/loss) from jont ventures 126 6 08 1274 795 67 728
Financa income 180 134
Finance costs —non exceptional {110 4) (135 0}
Finarice costs — exceptionat (46 5) {114 1)
Loss before tax {11 .5) (162 9)
Tax {23 445
Loss for the year from continuing operations {13 8) {118 4)
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2 Segmental analysis (continued)

Commercial 201 House- Commercial 2010

House-bullding  developments Total bulding developmenis Toial

Balance sheet £m £m £m £m m fm
Segment assets 45495 1010 46505 45315 1266 4,658 1
Elrmmnation of intercompany balances (94 3) (1011)
4,556 2 4,5570

Deferred tax assets 43 2 1733
Current tax assets 32 -
Cash and cash equivalents 727 546 5
Consolidated total assets 47753 52768
Segment habilties {1,480 0} {42 8) (1,522 8) (1,473 4} (59 7) (1,533 1)
Elmmnation of ntercompeny balances 943 10114
(1,428 5) (14320)
Loans and bomowings {416 7} {941 8)
Current tax kabilities - {28)
Consolidated total lrabilities {1,845 2) {2,376 6)
Other information £m £m £m £m £m fm
Capital addiions a7 - 07 04 - 04
Depreciation 17 01 18 35 01 36

3. Exceptional items

Debt reftnancing

The Group agreed a complete debt refinancing package n May 2011 and incurred costs of £46 S5m compnsing of refinancing fees of £8 6m.,
accelerated amortisation of previously caprtalsed refinancing fees of £8 1m and nterest rate swap cancellations and adjustments of £28 8m

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2010 the Group incurred a charge of £114 1m relating to its amended financing arangements Detalls as to the
composition of this charge can be found m the Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2010 which s avaidable on the Company’s
website www barrattdevelopments co uk

Impairment of inventories

Dunng the year the Group reviewed the net realisable value of its land and work 1 progress carrying values of its sites  This resulied n no

{2010 £ni further exceptional mpaiment of the housebulding inventones and no (2010 £4 8mj further exceptional imparment of the commercial
developments nventones The total net excephonal impairment for the year was £ril 2010 4 8m} Further details are prowided in note 17

Restructuring costs
Dunng the yezr ended 30 June 2011, the Group incurred £7 7rn (2010 £11 0m) of costs in relation to reorganising and restructunng the business,
inclugng redundancy costs of £3 7m (2010 £0 6m)
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4 Profit/{loss} from operations
Profit/loss) from operations 15 stated after chargingAcrediting)

201 2010
Noies £m £m
Staff cosis 8 2050 1769
Govemment granis {37 3) (20 3)
Deprecation of property, plant and equipment 12 18 36
Lease Income 3 (41 B3
Operating lease charges
- hire of plant, machinery and vehicles 127 110
—other 11 14 0

Govemment grants of £16 Bm {2010 £36 2m) were receved in the year relating to Government inibatves including first-time buyer, National
Affordable Housing Programme and Kickstart Grant income of £37 3m (2010 £20 3m) was recognsed in the ncome statement in refation
to house sales completad under these ntiatives

Administrativa expenses before excephional costs of £92 8m (2010 £94 7m) inctude sundry ncome of £13 Sm (2010 £15 Bm) which 15 disclosed
withtun ¢thar revenue nnote 1

Profit/{loss) from operations 15 stated after charging the Directors’ emoluments disclosed in the Remuneration report on page 56 and in nots 8

The remuneration pad to Deloitte LLP, the Group's principal auditor, is disclosed below

20m 2010
Auditor's remuneration £000 P00
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Parent Company
and consoldated financial siatements 65 70
The audit of the Company's subsichianes pursuant o legislation 235 246
The audit of the Company's jont ventures pursuant 1o legislation 40 24
Total fees for audit of the Company, its subsidianes and joint ventures 340 340
Amounts for statutory and requiatory fiings - 1,097
Other services pursuant to legislation 50 80
Other services relating to tax 167 -
Other services 37 4
Total fees for other services 254 1,181
Total fees 594 1,521

Dunng the ysar Delotte LLP was appointed as the Group's prncipal tax adwiser Auditor sbyectvity and independance 1s considered in the Report
of the Directors (see page 45}

Other services pursuant to legslation compnse the reviews of mtenm financial statements In the year ended 30 Jung 2011, other services mainty
comprised advisory services related to significant transactions inctuding new joint venture agreements and other accounting advice

In the year ended 30 June 2010, amounts for statutory and regulatory filngs included fess in respect of work performed in refation to the Piacing
and the Rughts Issue

m BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2011




5. Net finance costs
Recognised in ncome statement

201 2010
Notes £m Em
Finance mcoms on short-term bank deposits {12} {05)
Imputed nterest on avatlable for sale financial assets 15 (13 6} (70)
Other interest recevable {32) {59)
Finance ncome (18 0} (13 4)
Interast on bank overdrafts and loans 46 2 837
Amartisation of losses on cancelled intergst rate swaps - 02
Imputed nterest on deferred term land payables 276 265
Finance costs related to employee benefits 26 09 16
Amounts reclassified to the income statement N respect of hedged cash flows 29 285 141
Foreign exchange (gans)/kosses on US Dollar debt 6 {70} 119
Amortisation of facility fees 62 94
Imputed nterest on Kickstart equity funding 09 02
Other interest payable 71 74
Finance costs before exceptional items 104 1350
Net finance costs before exceptional tems 924 1216
Exceptional finance costs
Make-whole fes on redemption of pnvate placement notes - 239
Hedging termmation costs 298 527
Wite-off of previous facility unamortised fees 81 310
Other fees refated 1o amendment of financing amangements 86 65
Exceptional finance costs 3 46 5 1141
Total finance costs 156 9 2491
Net finance costs 1389 2357
Recogrised m equity
2011 2010
MNotes £m £m
Amounts deferred in respect of effectve cash fiow hedges 29 236 436
Total far value iosses on cash flow swaps included in equity 236 438
Amortisation of losses on cancelled interest rate swaps - 02
Amounts reclassified 1o the ncome statement in respect of hedged cash flows 29 (28 5) (141)
Amounts reclassified 1o the Income statement in respeact of hedged cash flows no longer
axpectad to occur - exceptional 29 (29 8} {50 1)
Total fair value losses on cash flow swaps transferred to equity {58 3) {64 4)

6 Financial instruments gains and losses

The net {gans) and losses racorded in the consolidated income statement, n respect of financial nstrurments (excluding interest shown In note 5)

were as follows

201 2010

Notes £m rm
Loans and receivables
Impairment of trade recevables 18 23 03
Avallable for sale financial assets
Net loss transferred on sale 08 05
Net mpawment of avallable for sale financial assets 15 16 3 g1
Other financial labiihes
Foreign exchange (gans)iosses on US Dollar debt {7 0) 119
Transters to/(from) hedged items
Transfer todfrom) equity on cumency cash flow hedges 70 {119)
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7 Tax
Analysis of the tax chargef(credit) for the year
2011 2010
Notes £m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax on losses for the year - -
Adustment in respect of previous years {10 5) {0 4)
{10 5) 04)
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences {4 4) {46 Q)
Adjustment in respect of previous years 76 19
impact of reduction n corporation tax rate 96 -
6 128 {44 1)
Tax charge/(credit) for the year 23 44 5}

In addition to the amount charged to the ncome statement, deferred tax of £17 7m (2010 crecht of £1 9m) was charged directly to equity (note 16)

Factors aftecting the tax chargecredit) for the year

The tax rate assessed for the year is higher (2010 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 27 5% (2010 28 0%)

The differences are explained below

2011 2010
£m £m
Loss before tax (11 5) (162 9
Loss before tax multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax of 27 5% (2010 28 0%) 32 {45 6}
Effects of
Other expenses not deductible for tax purposes 04 13
Additicnal tax relief for land remediation costs 17) {16)
Adustment n respect of previous years 29 15
Tax in respect of joint ventures _f01) 04
Tax on share-based payments 02 05)
impact of change In tax rate on deforred tax agset 96 -
Tax charge/{credit) for the year 23 {44 5)

Legistation reducing the main rate of corporation tax from 28% to 26% with effect from 1 Apnl 2011 was substantively enacted on 28 March 2011
Accordingly, the cumment year tax charge has been prowided for at an effective rate of 27 5% and the closing deferred tax asset has been provided

for at a rate of 26% in these financial statements

An addional reduchion in the main rate of corporation tax from 26% to 25% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012 was enacted within the Finance Act 2011

on 5 Juty 2011 As this reduction was not substantivety enacted by the balance sheet date, its effect has not been reflected in these financial statements

Further reductions i the main rate of corporation tax of 1% per annurm to 23% by 1 Apri 2014 have been announced by the Government but have
not yet been substantively enacted, therefore their effect has not been reflected in thase financial statements

The proposed reductions N the mamn rate of corporation tax from 26% to 23% by 1 Apnl 2014 are expected 10 be enacted separately each year

if the deferred tax assets and kabilities of the Group were all to reverse after 2014, the effect of the reduction from 26% to 23% woulg be to reduce
the net deferred tax asset by £16 5m To the extent that the net deferred tax asset reverses more quickly than this, the impact of the rate reductions
on the net deferred tax asset will be reduced
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8. Key management and employees

Key management personnel, as defined under IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures', have been identified as the Board of Directors as the controls
operated by the Group ensure that all key decisions are reserved for the Beard Detaled disclosures of Directors' ndmdual remuneration, penston
entitlements and share ophons, for those Directors who served dunng the year, are given In the audited sections of the Remuneration report on
pages 56 to 58 which form: part of these financial staternents A summary of key management remuneration is as follows

2011 2010

Em Em

Salanes and fees (including pension compensation) 28 29
Social secunty costs o7 08
Performance bonus 10 16
Benefits 01 01
Pension costs - -
Share-based payments - 04
46 56

Group

20Mm 2010

Number Nurnber

Average staff numbers excluding subcontractors, including Directors) 4,405 4,128
Group Company

20m 2010 2011 2010

Notes £m £m £m £m

Wages and salanes including bonuses (including Directors) 174 4 1534 58 160
Redundancy costs 3 37 06 06 06
Social security costs 191 170 19 19
Other pension costs 26 64 65 06 05
Share-based payments 28 14 {06 {01} 01
Total staff costs 4 2050 176 9 189 191

9 Loss per share

Basic loss per share 1s calculated by dmding the loss for the year atinbutable to ordinary shareholders of £13 8m (2010 £118 4m} by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year, excluding those held by the Employes Banefit Trust which are treated as cancelled,

which was 961 4m (2010 815 9m)
There s no difference betwesn basic and diluted loss per share for the Group as the Group was loss making

The {osses)eamings per share from contnuing operations were as follows

201 2010

pence pence

Basic and diluted loss per share 14) {14 5)
Adusted basic sarmingsAloss) per sharg 27 29

The calcutation of basic, diluted and adjusted bastc fossyeamings per share I1s based upon the following data

20m 201 2010 2010

em pence £m pence
Loss for basic and diluted loss per sharg (13 8) (14) (118 4) {14 5)
Add exceptional finance costs 465 48 1141 140
Add exceptional impairment of inventones - - 48 06
Add restructunng costs 77 08 10 13
Less tax effect of above items {149 (15 (35 4) (43
Profit{loss) for adjusted basic earnings/{loss) per share 255 27 (239) 29)

Losses are adiusted, removing exceptional finance costs, exceptional impairment of nventones, restructunng costs and the related tax to reflect

the Group's underlying profitfloss)
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10. Goodwall

Group

£m

Cost
At 1 July 2009, 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011 8167
Accumulated imparment losses
At 1 July 2009 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011 245
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011 7922

The Group's goodwil has a carrying value of £792 2m relating to the housebuilding segment The goodwill relating to the commercial developments
segment, with cost of £24 5m, was fully impaired in the year ended 30 June 2008

The Group conducts an annual iImpaimant review of goodwili and Intangibles together for both the housebuilding and commercial developments
segments The imparrment review was performed at 30 June 2011 and compared the value-m-use of the housebulding segment with the carmrying
value of its tangible and ntangible assets and allocated goodwill The Group allocates any identfied smparrment first to goodwill and then fo assets
on a pro rata basis, which In the case of the Group 1s its Intangible assets and property, plant and eguipment

The value-In-use was determined by discounting the expected future cash flows of the housebulldng segment The first two years of cash flows
were determined using the Group’s approved detaled site-by-site business plan The cash flows for the third to fifth years were determined using
Group level ntemal forecasted cash flows based upon expected volumes, seling pnces and marging, taking into account available iand purchases
and work in progress levels The cash flows for year six onwards were extrapolated in perpetuity using an estimated growth rate of 2 5%, which was
based upon the expected long-term growth rate of the UK econcmy

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations were

» Discount rate this 1s a pre-tax rate reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money and nsks appropnate to the Group’s
hausebuiding business Accordingly the rate of 12 3% (2010 restated 11 1%) 1s considered by the Directors to be the appropriate pre-tax nsk
adjusted discount rate Heng the Group's estimated long-term pre-tax weighted average cost of capital This rate used in the 30 June 20M
imparmant review 1 calculated using the average capital structure of the Group dunng the financial year The sensitvities disclosed batow have
been recalculated using this discount rate and the comparatives restated accordingly In the pror year the Group calculated the discount rate using
the capital structure of the Group at the balance sheet date The Directars consider that the use of the average capital stnucture of the Group dunng
the financial year 1s more appropriate due to the cychicality of the Group’s bomowing requirements  Accordingly the discount rate of 11 3% guoted in
the: prior year has been restated as 11 1% to enable comparability between the financial vears Using the capital structure of the Group at the balance
shest date as appled in the prior year, the discount rate wourkd be 12 6% (2010 113%)

* Expected changes in seling prices for completed houses and the related impact upon operating margin these are determined on a site-by-site basis
for the first two years dependent upon local market conditions and product type For years three to five these have been estimated at a Group level
based upon past expenence and expectatons of future changes in the market taking into account extemnal market forecasts

* Sales volumes these are determined on a site-by-site basis for the first two years dependent upen local market condittons, land availability and
planning permissions For years three to five these have been estimated at a Group level based upon past expenence and expectations of future
changes in the market taking into account externat market forecasts

= Expected changes in site costs to complete these are determined on a site-by-site basis for the first two years dependent upon the expected
costs of completing all aspects of each indvidual development including any addtional costs that are expected to occur due to the business
being on an ndwdual development site for longer dus to current market conditions  For years thres 10 five these have been estimated at a
Group level based upon past expenence and expactations of future changes N the market taking into account external market forecasts

The conclusion of this impairment review was that the Group’s goodwill related to the housebwuiicding segrment was not impaired

The imparrment review of goodwill and intangible assets at 30 June 2011 was based upon current expectations regarding sales volumes, expected
changes in seling pnces and site costs to complete m the uncerian conditions within the UK housing market and used a discount rate considered
appropnate to the postion and nsks of the Group  The result of the impaiment review was that the recoverable valug of goodwill and intangible
assets exceeded its camying value by £428 5m (2010 restated £819 6m) Applying the discount rate based upon the capital structure of the Group
at the balance sheet date, as used n the imparment review In the pror financial year, the recoverable value of goodwill and intangible assets
exceeded its camying value by £321 4m (2010 £707 5m)

If the UK housing market and expectations regarding its future were to detenorate weth erther operatmg rmargms reducing by 1 5% per annum
{2010 restated 2 6% per annurm) or tha appropnate discount rate were to merease by 1 0% (2010 restated 1 7%) and all other vanables were
held constant then the recoverable value of goodwil and intangible assets would equalits carmying valug Further nformation 1s given in Critical
accounting judgernents and key sources of estimation uncertainty on page 79
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11. Intangible assels

Group
Brands
£m
Cost
ALt July 2008 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011 1070
Amortisation
At 1 July 2009, 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011 70
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011 1000
Brands

The Group does not amortise the housebuilding brand acquired with Wilson Bowden, being Cawvid Wilson Homes, valued at £100 0m, as the
Directors consider that this brand has an indefinite useful econormic life due to the fact that the Group ntends to hold and support the brand for
an indefinte penod and there are no factors that would prevent it from daing so

The Group tests indefinite lfe brands annually for mpairment, or more frequently if there are indications that they night be impaired At 30 June 2011
an impairment review was conducted using the calcutations and assumptions as explaned innote 10 The conclusion of this iImpairment review was
that the Group's David Wilson Homas brand was not impared

The brand of Wilson Bowden Developments (valued at £7 Om pnor to amortisation) was being amortised over ten years as it s a busingss-to-
busmess brand operating in niche markets Following an mpaiment review at 30 June 2008, the Wilson Bowden Developrments brand was

fully imparred

Further nformation 15 given in Crtical accounting udgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty on page 79

12, Property, plant and equipment

Ptant and Group Plantand Company
Property equipment Total Proparty  equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 July 2009 100 103 203 o8B 45 53
Additons - 04 04 - 03 03
Disposals - 0 4) {04) - - -
At 30 June 2010 100 103 203 08 48 56
Additions - 07 07 01 - 01
Transfers {2 4) 24 - - - -
Disposals - {14) {14} - - -
At 30 June 2011 76 120 196 09 48 57
Deapreciation
At 1 July 2009 34 70 104 05 20 25
Charge for the year 04 32 38 03 17 20
Disposals — 04 04 - = -
At 30 June 2010 38 98 138 08 37 45
Charge for the year 04 14 18 01 04 05
Transfers {0 5) 05 - - - -
Disposals - {14) {14) - - -
At 30 June 2011 37 103 140 09 41 50
Net book value
At 30 June 2010 62 05 87 - 11 11
AL 30 June 2011 39 17 56 - 07 07

Authonsed future capital expenditure that was contracted but not provided for n these financia! staterments amounted to £rul (2010 £nil)
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13 Investments accounted for using the equity method
Dunng the year the Group entered Into four new jont venture arangements Alie Street LLP, Queensland Road LLP, Barratt East Gnnstead Limited
{through APCA Limited), and Barratt Osbome Worthing LLP

The Group equity accounts for jomntty controlled entties The Group has significant nterests in the following jointly controlled entities

Joint venture Percentage owned Country of registration Principal activity
Base Regeneration LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding
Base East Central Rochdale LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding
Base Hattersley LLP 500% England and Wales Houssbuilding
Base Wemeth QOldham LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding
Barratt Watas (Horey) Limited’ 78 5% England and Wales Housebuilding
Ravenscraig bimited? 33 3% Scotland Commercial development
DWH/Wates (Thame) Lmited 500% England and Wales Houssbuldmg
Barratt Metropolitan L P 50 0% England and Wales Housebuildng
Wandsworth Parksida LLP 500% England and Wales Housebulding
Ale Street LLP 500% England and Wales Housebuilding
Queensland Road LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding
APCA Limited 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding
Barratt East Gnnslead Umited?® 500% England and Wales Housebuilding
Barratt Osbome Worthing LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebulding

' Barratt Wates (Horey) Limzed @ classed a3 a jont vennure as the Group has equal condrol wah one ciher jomnt veniune parines
z

Asvorscrag Lendad 15 clzssdied as a ot ventune 24 the Group has equal conrol Anc ownershin percentages with 'wo ot veniure partens.

i Bamratt East Grnstead Limited 5 a wholy owned subsiciary of APCA Lmited

Dunng the year the Group entered into an arrangement compnsing of two associated undertakings, New Tyne West Development Company LLP

and BKY LLF

BKY LLP and New Tyne Wast Devetopment Company LLP will prepare financial statements to 31 Decembser which is non-coterminous with the

Group

Associate Pearcentage owned Country of registration Principal activity
BKY LLP 33 3% Engiand and Wales Housebuilding
New Tyna West Development Company LLP? 16 7% Engiand and Wales Houssbuilding

*  New Tyne Wt Development Company LLP 1 classied a3 an associzie as the Group euts sgricant niuence over the 8ntiy as par of the BICY LLP arangaments

Jont Ventures
Group
2011 2010
£m m

At 1 July 799 832

Net increase/{decrsase) in nvestments in jont ventures 228 {18)
Share of post-tax profitfloss) for the vear 01 {15}
At 30 June 102 8 789
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13 Investments accounted for using the equity method (continued)
In relation to the Group's Interests I joint ventures, the Group’s share of assets and kabilites of the jont ventures 1s shown belowr

Group
2011 2010
£m £m
Current assets 108 6 784
Current liabiliies {355) 214)
Non-current iabiities (827) (651)
Net habilities of joint ventures 96) {81)
The Group has mads lgans of £111 Om (2010 £88 0m) to its jont ventures which are included within Group imvestments  Included within
the Group’s share of net labilities of jont ventures 1S a proportion of lpans to the jomt ventures calculated using the Group's ownership share
of £96 4m {2010 £81 Omn)
The Group's share of the jont ventures’ ncome and expenses dunng the year 1s shown below
Group
2011 2010
om 1))
Income 180 122
Expenses (17 3) {130}
07 08
Tax (06) 07)
Share of post-tax profit/{loss) from joint ventures 01 (15)

Durng the year the Group entered into a number of transactions with its jont ventures i respect of funding and development management
services (with charges made based on the utiisation of these services) n addition to the prowvision of construction services Further details

on these transactions are provided N note 34 The Group has a number of contingent iabdities relating to its joint ventures  Further detalls
on these are provided in note 33

Associates

In relation to the Group's nterests in associates, the Group's share of assets and liabiites of the associates 15 £nil at 30 Juneg 2011
The Group's share of the associates’ ncome and expenses dunng the year 1s £nil

The Group has made no loans 1o its assoclates in the year 10 30 June 2011 Further details of transactions with associates are provided
In note 34

The Group has contngent habiites relating to s associates Further details on these are provided n note 33
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14 tnvestments
Company
2011 2010
£m £m
Cost
At 1 July 2,673 0 24736
Investrment i subsidary - 2000
Increase/ddecrease) n investment in subsidianes related to share-based payments 23 0 6)
At 30 Jung 2,675 3 26730
Impairment
At 1 July and 30 June 576 576
Net hook value
At 1 July 26154 24860
At 30 June 26177 26154

In the prior year, In order to strengthen the balance sheet of the Company's pnncipal trading subsidiary BOW Trading Limited, followang the detenoration
in e UK housing market, the Company capialised a loan of £200 0m in retum for 200 £1 ordinary shares at a premum of £999,999 each

The subsidiary undertakings which prncipally affected profits and net assets of the Group were

Subsidiary Parcentage owned Country of reglstration Principal activity

BOW Tradng Lirmited 100% England and Wales Housebuidng and development
BOW East Scotland Limited 100% Scotland Housebuiding and development
David Wilson Homes Limited 100%" Engtand and Wales Housebulding and development
Wilson Bowden Developments Limited  100%" England and Wales Commercial developrnent

Orwned through another Groun company

A full hst of subsidiary undertakings 1s available on request from the Company's regestered office

19. Available for sale financial assets

Group

20 2010

Notes £m m

Al 1 July 136 3 865
Addiions 408 522
Disposals 73 B3)
Irmputed interest S 136 70
Nelimpaument taken through incomse stalement ] {16 3} 61)
Farr value adustment taken through other comprehensive ncome 25 -
At 30 June 169 4 1363

Avaiable for sale financial assets prncipally compnse interest free loans which are granted as part of sales transachons and for which the cash
flows recevable are based on the value of the property at redemption These loans are secured by way of a second legal charge on the respecive
property (after the first morigage) These loans are held at the presant value of expected future cash flows taking into account the estimated market
value of the property &t the estimated tirme of repayment The income statement includes a net impairment of £16 3m (2010 £8 1m) in cost of sales

The net imparrment of the available for sale financial assets taken through the incomse statement relates to borrower default and the impact of the
dechine in UK house pnces on the present valug of the estimated future cash flows of these assets

Further disclosures relatng to financial assets are set out in note 22 and note 25(b))
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16 Deferred tax

The Group recognised a deferred tax asset/liabity) with the following movements in the year

Pension Share Tax Other

scheme options losses Hedging Brands ACA {net) Total
Group £m £m £m m £m £m fm Em
At 30 June 2009 88 09 1301 249 {280Q) i3 (197) 1273
Income statement (charge)/credit 32 05 4686 - - {01) 03 441
Amounts taken directly to equity 73 04 - 58 - - - 19
At 30 June 2010 129 18 1767 191 {280 12 (104) 1733
Income statement (charge)/credit (32 - (197) - 20 04 85 {12 8)
Acquired - - - - - - 04 04
Amounts taken dirgctly to equity (8 6) = - (104 - - 07) (7 7)
At 30 June 2011 31 18 1570 87 {26 0) 08 22) 1432

It 1s not anticipated that any of the deferred tax habilty n respect of brands will reverse in the twelve months folowing the batance sheet date Whist
it s anticipated that an element of the remaining deferred tax assets and liabiliies will reverse dunng the twelve months following the batance sheet

date, at present it 1s not possthle to quantify the value of these reversals

In additron to the above, the Group has not recorded a deferred tax asset of £5 6m (2010 £3 3m) n respect of capital and other losses because

these are not considered recoverable in the foreseeable future

The Company recogrised a deferred tax asset with the following moverments in the year

Pension Share Tax
scheme options losses Hedging ACA Other Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 30 June 2009 88 Q1 - 249 02 06 36
income statement {charge)/credi L 32 01 478 - C4 04 447
Amounts taken directly to equity 73 - - &8 - - 15
At 30 June 2010 129 02 478 191 06 02 808
Income statement (charge)/credit 32) {01) {129) - ©01) 11 {152)
Amounts taken directly to equity {6 6) 01 - (104 - - {16 9)
At 30 June 2011 31 02 349 87 05 13 487
All deferred tax refates 1o the United Kingdom ana 1s stated on a net basis as the Group has a legally enforceable nght to set-off the recognised
ameunts and intends to settle on a net basis
The deferred tax assetAliability) recognised comprise
Group Company
20Mm 2010 201 2010
Notes £m £m m £m
Pension scheme 26 31 i29 31 128
Hedging 87 191 87 191
Losses 1570 1767 349 478
Share options 18 18 02 02
Other #tems, including capital alowances 46 27 18 08
Deferred tax assets 1752 2132 487 808
Brands (26 0 (280) - -
Other tems 60} {119) - -
Deferred tax habiithes {320 399 - -
Net deferred tax asset 1432 1733 487 808
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17 Inventones

Group

2011 2010

£m £m

Land held for development 2,i897 23087
Construction work n progress 1,023 2 9814
Part-axchange properties 789 476
Other irventiones 50 46

3,206 8 33423

a) Nature of mventories

The Directors consider all mventones to be essentially current N nature although the Group's operational cycle 1s such that a proportion of
mventones will not be realised within twelve months It 1s not possible to determine with accuracy when specific mventory will be realised as
this will be subject to a number of Issuss such as consumer demand and planning penmission delays

b) Impairment of nvertones

At 30 June 2011 the Group reviewed the net reabsable value of it land and work in progress camying values of ds stes The impairment review
compared the estimated future net present realisable value of development sites with ther balance sheet carrying value This review rasulted i no
(2010 £n) net exceptronalimparment charge for the housebuiding business Due to performancs vanations upon ndvidual housebuildng sites,
there wers gross exceptional imparrment charges and reversals of £65 Om (2010 £57 4m) In addition, due to changes ansing from normal trading,
such as planning status, there was a net inventory impaiment charge of £5 4m (2010 £7 4m) included within profit from operations There was no
(2010 £4 8m) net impairment for the commercial developments business, atthough thers were gross imparmant charges and reversals of £1 2m
(2010 gross imparment of £7 3m and gross revarsal of £2 5m) due to performance vanations upen ndvidual commercial sitas

The key judgements in these reviews were astmating the realisable value of a site which is determned by forecast sales rates, expected sales prices
and estimated costs to complete Sales prices were estimated on a site-by-site basts based upon local market conditions and ook into account

the current pnces being achieved upon each site for each product type in addition, the astimation of future sales pnces ncluded an allowance on

a site-by-site basis for low single digit sales pnee mflation In future panods  Tha estimation of costs to complete also ncluded an allowance for low
single digit build cost inflation in future perods  Further nformation regarding these judgements 1s Included wathin the catical accounting judgements
and key sources of estimation uncertanty section on page 78

In the past six months, in general, the Group has not seen an improvemeant In undertying pnces, but has continued to deliver further cost reductions
If the UK housing market were to change beyond management expactations i the future, in particuiar with regards to the assumptions around likely
sales pncas and estimated costs to complete, then further adustments to the carmyng valus of land and work in progress may be required

Following these imparments £793 tm (2010 £1,208 1m) of inventones are valued at fair value less costs to sell rather than at histoncal cost

<) Expensed inventones

The value of nventones expensed N 2011 and included in cost of sales was £1,686 7m 2010 £1,735 2m} ncluding £11 8m (2010 £13 Om) of
nventory wite-downs incurmed in the course of normal trading and a reversal of £0 4m {2010 £1 9my) on inventorles that were wntten down in
a previous accounting period. but exchudmg the £ril (2010 £4 Bm) exceptional impairment and £5 4m {2010 £7 4m) operating impairment

The value of nventones written down and recognised as an expense in 2011 totalled £17 2m (2010 £25 2my), beng the £nil (2010 £4 Bmj) classified
as an exceptional imparment, the £5 4m 2010 £7 4m) operating imparment and the remanng £11 8m (2010 £13 0m) incurred n the normal
course of trading

d) Company
The Company has no inventones
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18. Trade and other receivables

Group Company
20M 2010 201 2010
£m £m £m £m

Non-current assets
Other recevables 57 08 - -
57 08 - -

Current assets

Trade recevables 439 451 - -
Armounts dueg from subsidiary undertakings - - 7807 BA9BS
Other recevables 94 114 03 02
Prepayments and accrued income 54 986 08 11
587 661 7818 B398

Trade and other recenvables are non-interest beanng, and the Group has ne concentratron of credit nsk with exposure spread over a large number

of debtors Of the year end trade recevables the following were overdue but not mpared

Group

201 2010

Agelng of overdue but not impaired recelvables £m £m
Less than three months a5 71
Greater than three months 29 56

Tha carrying values of trade and other receivables are stated after the following allowance for doubtful recenables

Group

201 2010

Notas £m £m

At 1 July 30 46
Charge for the year B 23 03

Uncollectble armnounts wntten off, net of recovenes {15) {19)
At 30 June 38 30

The attowance for doubtful recevables consists of ndmdually impaired trade recenvables which are in default The impaiment recognised in
cost of sales represents the difference between the carmyng amount of these trade recenvables and the present value of any expected recovenes

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances
The Directors consider that the camying amount of trade recevables approximates to their tair value

Further disclosures relating to financial assets are set out m note 22
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19 Trade and other payables

Group Company
2011 2010 201 2010
€m £m £m £m
Non-current hlabihties
Land payables 3516 3002 - -
Cther payables 09 06 - -
3525 3008 - -
Current habihties
Trade payables 3038 3090 30 28
Land payables 3491 266 6 - -
Accruals and deferred iIncome 302 8 3339 367 333
Other tax and social securtty 15 66 - -
QOther payables 700 96 6 - -
1027 2 11,0127 397 361
Accruals and deferred income incluges a £1 8m {2010 £t 8m) social secunty accrual relating 1o share-based payments (note 28)
Total payables nclude £263 6m (2010 £165 2m) secured by legal charges on certain assets
Other non-cument payables are unsecured and non-nterest beanng
Further disclosures relating to financial habilties are set out In note 23
20. Contract accounting
In relation to contracts n progress at the balance sheet date
Group
201 2010
£m £m
Amounts due from contract custormers included in trade and other recevables 114 135
Amounts due to contract customers inciuded in trade and other payables {20 6) (22 1)
92 88
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date 326 4 2794
Less progress billings {335 6) {288 0)
{93 {8 6}

At 30 June 2011, retentions held by customers for contract work amounted to £77m (2010 £5 6m) of which £3 1m 2010 €1 7m) are due for

settlernent after twelve months Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to £35 9m (2010 £49 1m}of which £5 1m
(2010 £12 2m) relates to work which is not expected te be performed in the next twelve months

21. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company

201 2010 2011 2010

£m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalenis 727 5465 571 5221

Cash and cash equvalents are held &t floating nterest rates Inked to the UK bank rate, LIBOR and monsey market rates as applcabte Cash and
cash eguvalents compnse cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less

Further disclosures relating to financial assets are set out in note 22
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22. Financial assets
The camying values and far values of the Group's financial assets are as follows

Group
2011 2010
Far  Carrying Far Carrying
value value value value
Notes £m £m £m £m
Destgnated as cash flow hedgas
Denvatwve financial instruments 24 250 250 327 327
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equvalents 21 727 727 546 5 5465
Trade and other recevables 368 368 359 359
Avatlable for sale
Avallabla for sale financial assets 15 169 4 1694 1363 1363
Total financial assets 3039 3039 7514 7614
The carrying values and farr values of the Company's financial assets are as follows
Company
2011 2010
Carrying Far Carrying
Fair value value value value
Notes £m £m £m £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Dervative financial nstrurnents 24 250 250 327 327
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash egunalents 21 571 571 5221 5221
Trade and other receivables 18 03 03 02 02
Intercormpany loans 18 7807 7807 8985 8985
Total financial assets 863 1 8631 1,453 5 1,453 5

Trade and other recevables excludes accrued income, amounts recoverable on contracts, prepayments and tax and sociat secunty The far values

of financial assets and kabilities are determined as indicated in this note and note 23a

The following table provides an analysis of financial assets that are measured subsequent to intial recogrition at far value, grouped mio Levels 1

10 3 based on the degree to which the far value s abservable

= Level 1 far value measurements are those denved from quoted prices (unadjusted) n active markets for identcal assets,
* Leve! 2 far value measurements are those dernved from inputs other than quoted prices included wiathin Level 1 that are observable for the asset,

aither directly e as pnces) or indrectly {ie denved from pnces), and

« | ovel 3 far value measurements are those denved from valuation techniquas that include inputs for the asset that are not based on observable

market data {unobservabie Inputs)
Group
20m
Laval1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
Notas £m £m £m £m
Dernvative Instruments in designated hedge accounting refationships
Denvative financial assets 24 250 — - 250
Available for sale
Avalable for sale financial assets 15 - 169 4 - 166 4
Total 250 1694 - 194 4
Group
2000
Level 1 Level 2 Leve! 3 Total
Notes £m fm &m m
Dervative Instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvative financial assets 24 327 - - 327
Available for sale
Avalable for sale financial assets 15 - 1363 - 1363
Total 327 136 3 - 1690
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22, Financial assets (continued)

Company
2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £€m £m
Derivative instruments 1n designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvative financial assets 24 250 = - 250
Total 250 - - 250
Company
2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Derivative Instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvative financial assets 24 327 - - 327
Total 327 - - 327
23 Financial habibities
a) Fair value and carrying value
The camyng values and far vaiues of the Group’s financia! labilities are as follows
Group
2011 2010
Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
value value value value
Notes £m £m £m £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Denvative financiat nstruments 24 370 370 724 724
Other financial habilities
Trade and other payablas 1,232 5 1,227 3 11036 1,094 8
Loang and borrowings 23b 4219 MN67 946 8 9418
Total financial habilities 1,691 4 1,681 0 21228 21090
The camy:ng values and far vaiues of the Gomypany's financial iabilities are as follows
Company
2011 2010
Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
value value value value
Notes £m £m £m £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Denvatve financial nstruments 24 370 370 724 724
Other financial habilities
Bank overdrafts 23b 106 3 106 3 1048 1048
Trade and other payables 340 340 207 297
Loans and borrowings 23b 4110 4058 9351 9301
Total financial habilities 588 3 5831 1,1420 11370

Trade and other payables excludes deferred mcome, payments receved In excess of amounts recoverable on contracts, tax and soctal secunty

and other non-financial labilities

The fair values of financial assets and labilities are determined as follows

* The far values of avalable for sale financial assets represent the value of ther discounted cash flows, which have been calculated using market

assumptions of the ikely period o redemption and movernents in UK house prces

* Denvative financial instruments are measured at the present value of future cash flows estmated and discounted based on the applicable vield

curves dernved from quoted interest rates

* The far values of other non-dervative financial assets and labilties are determined based on discounted cash flow analysis using current market

rates for similar Instruments

Trade and other payables include land payables, which may bear interest on a contract specific basis Trade and other payables ncludes terms

secured by legal charge on certan assets as disclosed m note 19
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23 Financial habiibes {continued)
a) Far value and camrying value (continued)

The followng table provides an analysis of financial labilihes that are measured subsequent to initial recognibon at fair value, grouped into Levels 1

to 3 based on the degree to which the far value is cbservable

* L evel 1 fair value measurements are those denved from quoted pnces unadjusted) m active markets for identical habilties,

= Level 2 farr value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted prnces included within Level 1 that are observable for the liability,

aither directly (o as pnces) or indirectly {ie denved from pnces), and

» Leve! 3 far value measurerments are those denved from valuation techniques that include inputs for the hability that are not based on observable

market data funobservable nputs)
Group
20m
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Denvatvg financial kabilities 24 370 - - 370
Total 370 - - 370
Group
2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m om £m £m
Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounhting relationships
Denvainve financial labities 24 724 - - 724
Total 724 - - 724
Company
201
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Totat
Noies £m £m £m m
Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Dertvative financial tabiliies 24 370 - - 370
Total 370 - - 370
Company
2010
Level Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Denvative instruments in designated hedge accounting retationships
Denvative financial kabilities 24 724 — - 724
Total 724 - - 724
bj Drawn debt faciities
The drawn debt at 30 June compnses
Group Company
2m 2010 20m 2010
£m £m £m m
Non-current
Bark loans 1752 7269 1752 7269
Private placement notes 2303 1917 230 3 1917
Total non-current borrowings 4055 9186 4055 9i8 6
Current
Bank overdrafis - - 106 3 1048
Loan notes 03 03 03 03
Prvate placement notes - 112 - 112
Kickstart equity funding 109 117 = -
Total current borrowings 12 232 106 6 1163
Total borrowings 4167 9418 5121 1,0349
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23. Financial iatnlrhies {continued)
b Drawn debt facilities {continued)

The waghted average nterest rates, ncluding fees, pad i the year were as follows

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

Yo % % %

Bank loans net of swap nterest 74 a1 74 81
Loan notes 05 20 05 20
Private placement notes 15 186 15 116

The pnncipal features of the Group's drawn debt facilites at 30 June 2011 were as follows

1) Commutted facilites
» A commmitted £740 5m revolving credit facility of which £192 Om was drawn at 30 June 2011, made avallable under a credit agreement dated
5 February 2007 {as amended from tme to time and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011} The matunty date on this debt 1s 26 Apnt 2012
* A committed £225 Om revohang crechit facility of which £nil was drawn at 30 June 2011, made avalable under a facity agreement dated
2 February 2005 (as amended from time to time and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011) On 10 May 2011, £125 Om of the facility
was cancalled and the matunty date on this dett was amended from 16 November 2012 to 26 Apnl 2012
» A committed £225 Om mevohang crecht facility of which £nil was drawn at 30 June 2011 made avalable under a faciity agreement
dated 9 July 2008 (as amended from time to tme and most recentty with effect frorm 10 May 2011} On 10 May 2011, £125 Om of the
faciity was cancelied and the matunty date on this debt was amendesd from 18 November 2012 to 26 Apnl 2012

As part of the May 2011 refinancing, future facility commitments were agreed as follows

* From 26 Apnl 2012, new committed £770 Om revolving credit faciiies, reducing to £680 Om in October 2013, were made availabie under credit
agreements dated 10 May 2011 The matunty date on this debt is 10 May 2015

* A new £100 Om term loan of which £nil was drawn at 30 June 2011, of which 25% is scheduled to be repaid on 1 July 2019, 25% on 1 July 2020
and 50% on 1 Juty 2021

1) Fixed rate Sterling private placement notes
* The Group repaid £12 0m of fixed rate Stering private placement notas on ther matunty date of 28 October 2010 The remaining £65 8m of fixed
rate Stering private placement notes expire between 23 Apnl 2018 and 23 Apnil 2020

) Fixed rate US Dollar private placement notes

« New US Dollar private placemant notes of $80 Om due on 23 August 2017 were 1ssusd pursuant to note purchase agreements dated
10 May 2011

« Existing US Dollar ten-year prvate placernent notes of $42 6m issued pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated 23 Apni 2008 (as amended
from time to time and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011)

« US Dollar five-year private placement notes of $20 6m 1ssued pursuant 10 a note purchase agreement dated 23 Apnl 2008 (as amended from tme
to tme and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011)

« S Dollar ten-year privata placement notes of $124 0m issued pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated 23 August 2007 {as amended from
tirme to time and most recently with effect from 10 May 2011}

w) Floating rate Sterling loan notes

The Group had £0 3m 2010 £0 3m) Sterting loan notes at 30 June 2011 Thase loan notes are repayable at 30 June or 31 December each year
at the option of the noteholder or, to the extent not previously repaid, are due in December 2012, and are subject to floatng rates of interast inked
to LIBOR

v) Bank overdrafts and uncommitted money market facilites
The Group also uses vanous bank overdrafts and uncommitted borrowing facilities that are subject o floating interest rates knked to UK bark rate,
LIBOR and money market rates as applicable All debt is unsecured
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23 Financial habilities (continued)
¢} Net debit

Net debt at the year end 15 shown below

Group Company
2011 2010 201 2010
£m m £m fm
Cash and cash equivalents 727 5465 571 5221
Non-current borrowings
Bank loans (1752) (726 9) (175 2) (726 9)
Private placement notes {2303} {1917} {230 3) (1917}
Total non-current borrowings (405 5) (318 6} {405 5) (H86)
Current borrowings
Bank overdrafts - - (106 3) (104 8)
Loan notes {0 3) {03} {0 3) {03)
Private placement notes - (112 - (112)
Kickstart equity funding (109) (117) - -
Total current borrowings (112) 23 2) (106 6) (116 3}
Total borrowings {416 7) 8418 (5121}  {(1,0349)
Denvative financial instruments
Foraign exchange swaps 214 284 214 284
Net debt (322 6) {366 9) (433 6) (484 4

Cash and cash equvalents compnse cash at bank and other short-term highly iquid investrments with a matunty of three months or less
Net debt 15 defined as cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, nterest beanng borrowings and foreign exchange swaps The Group
includes foreign exchange swaps within net debt as these swaps were entered nto to hedge the foreign exchange exposure upon the
Group's US Doltar denominated private placement notes The Group's foreign exchange swaps have both an nterest rate and an exchange
rate element and only the exchange rate element on the notional amount of the swap 1s Included within the net debt note above

The Group's denvative financial nstruments at the year end are shown below

Group Company

201 2010 20M 2010

£ £m £m £m

Foreign exchange swap - exchange rate slement 214 284 214 284
Foreign exchange swap — nterest rate element 26 38 26 38
240 322 240 322

Interest rate swaps (360 (719 (36 Q) {719)
Net denvative financial instruments 120 (397) (12 0) {397)
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24 Denvative financial instruments — swaps
The Group and Company have entered into denvative financial Instruments to manage interest rate and foreign exchange nsks as explained in note
25 Neither the Group nor the Company enter into any denvatives for speculative purposes

Group and
Company
20Mm 2010
Asset Liatylity Asset Liatulity
£m £m £m £m

Designated as cash flow hedges

Non-current

Interest rate swaps - (36 0) - g
Foreign exchange swaps 250 (10) 327 {0 5)
Total denvative financial mstruments 250 {37 0) 327 (72 4)

a) Interest rate swaps
The Group and Company enter inte dervative transactions in the form of swap arrangements to manage the cash fiow nsks, refated to interest rates,
ansing from the GroLip's and Company’s sources of finance

All of the Group’s and Company’s interest rate swap arrangements contain a clause that allows the Group/Company or the counterparty to cancel
the swap in May 2015 at far value

Swaps with a notional amount of £288 Om were cancelled dunng the year following the refinancing Cumulative tosses on interest rate swaps
of £29 8m were recogrised in exceptional finance costs m the mcome statement following these cancelations

As at 30 June 2011 the Group had outstanding net floatng rate Sterling debt of £175 5m (2010 £727 2m} and the Company had cutstanding
niet floatng rate Stering debt and overdrafts of £281 8m {2010 £832 Om) In obtaining thes funding the Group and the Company sought to achieve
certainty as to both the avalabilty of and mcome statement charge related to, a designated proportion of anticipated future debt requrements

The Group and Company have entered into swap arrangements to swap £1920m (2010 £480 Om) of this debt into fixed rate Sterling debt I
accordance with the Group and Company treasury policy cuthined in note 25 After taking into account swap arrangemenits the fixed nterest
rates applicabie to the debt were as follows

Fixed rate 201 Fixed rate 2010

£m _payable % Maturity £m pavable % Maturity

- - - 1425 579 2012

- - - 500 580 2012

600 6 08 2017 600 594 2017

195 618 2017 600 599 2017

325 583 2017 325 564 2017

300 594 2022 600 575 2022

500 563 2022 750 544 2022
1920 4800

The swap arrangements are designated as a cash flow hedge aganst future imerest rate movements The fair value of the swap arrangements as at
30 June 2011, which 1s based on thrd party valuations, was a labikty of £36 Om {2010 £71 9m) with a gaun of £6 1m 2010 loss of £31 2m) charged
directly to equity In the year

There was no ingffectiveness 1o be taken through the income staterment dunng the year or the pnior year

Further disciosures relatng to financial mstruments are set out in note 25
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24 Denvatwe financial instruments — swaps (continued)

b) Foreign exchange swaps

The Group and Company enter into denvative transactions in the form of swap arrangements to manage the cash flow nsks related to foreign
exchange ansing from the Group's sources of finance denomnated in US Dollars

As at 30 June 2011 the Group and Company had outstanding fixed rate US Dollar loan notes of $267 2m (2010 3187 2m)

The Group and Company have entered Into swap arrangements to swap all of this debt into fixed rate Sterling debt i accordance with the Group
treasury policy outlined in note 25 After taking Into account swap arrangements the fixed interest rates applicable to the debt were as follows

Fixed rate 201 Fixed rate 2010
$m payabie % Maturity $m payable % Maturiy
182 898 2013 182 898 2013
10 1095 2013 10 1095 2013
14 1078 2013 14 1078 2013
1037 6 61 2017 1037 661 2017
75 1055 217 75 10556 2017
128 975 2017 128 975 2017
800 814 2017 - - -
337 924 2018 337 924 2018
36 12 23 2018 36 1223 2018
53 1137 2018 53 11 37 2018
267 2 1872

The swap arrangements are designated as cash flow hedges against future forergn exchange rate movements The hedges match the contractual
iniiat recaipt, the final settlement and match 82% of the interest payrments The farr value of the swap arrangements as at 30 June 2011, which s
based on third panty valuations, was an asset of £24 0m (2010 £32 2m) with a foss of £8 2m charged (2010 gan of £13 6m credited) directly to

equity In the year

There was no neffectiveness to be taken through the Income statement dunng the year or the pnor year Further disclosures relating to financial

nstruments are set out nnote 25

25. Financial sk management
The prncipal operational nsks of the business are detaled on pages 32 to 35 The Group's financial assets, financial liabilities and dervatve financial
instruments are detalled in notes 22, 23 and 24

The Group's operations and financing arrangements expose it to a vanety of financial nsks that nclude the effects of changes in debt market prices,
credit nsks, iquidity nsks and mterest rates The most significant of these to the Group 1s liquidity nsk and, accordingly there 1s a regular, detalled
system for the reporting and forecasting of cash flows from the operations to Group management to ensure that nsks are promptly identified and
appropnate mitigating actions taken by the central treasury department These forecasts are further stress tested at a Group level on a regular basis
to ensure that adequate headroom within faclities and banking covenants 1s mantaned In additon, the Group has in place a nsk management
programme that seeks to Imit the adverse effects of the other nsks on its financial performance, in particular by using financral nstruments, mcluding
debt and dervatives, to hedge interest rates and currency rates The Group does not use dervative financial instruments for speculative purposes

The Board approves treasury policies and certain day-to-day treasury actmties have been defegated to a centralised Treasury Operating
Committes, which in tum regulary reports to the Board The ireasury department implements gukdelines that are established by the Board
and the Treasury Operating Committee

a) Liquichity nsk

Laquicity nsk is the nsk that the Group will be unable to maet its labilities as they falt due The Group actvely maintains a mixture of long-term and
rmedium-term committed faciities that are designed to ensure that the Group has sufficient available funds for operations The Group’s borrowings
are typically cychcal throughout the financial year and peak n Apnl and May and October and November of each year, due o seasonal trends in
incomea Accordmgly the Group mamntams sufficient facility headroom to cover these requirements On a normal operating basis the Group has a
pelicy of mantaining headroom of up to £150 0m The Group identfies and iakes appropnate actons based upon its regular, detaded system for
the reporting and forecasting of cash flows from its operations At 30 June 2011, the Group had commuitted bank and other facilities of £1,501 8m
{2010 £1,615 3m) and total faciites of £1,547 Bm (2010 £1,676 5m) The Group's drawn debt aganst thase faciities was £405 8m (2010 £930 1m)
This represented 27 0% (2010 57 6%) of avalable committed facilities at 30 June 2011 In addition the Grroup had £72 7m (2010 £546 5m) of cash
and cash equivalents
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25 Financial nsk management (continued)
a) Liquidity nsk (continued)

The Group was n compihiance with its financial covenants at 30 June 2011 At the date of approval of the financial statements the Group’s ntemal
forecasts indicate that it will reman i compliance with these covenants for the foreseeable future bemng at least twele months from the date of

signing these financal statements

The Group's objective ts 1o murimise refinancing nsk. The Group therefore has a policy that the average matunty of its comrmitted bank faciliies and
private placement nates 15 at least two years on average with a target of three years At 30 June 2011, the average matunty of the Group's faciities

was 3 7 years (2010 2 6 years)

The Group mantams certain committed floating rate faciiies with banks to ersure sufficient iquidity for ts operations The undrawn commtted

faciihes avalable to the Group, n respect of which all conditions precedent had been met, were as iollows

Group Company

20m 2010 2011 2010

Expiry date £rn £m £m £m
In less than one year 228 5 - 2285 -
In more than one year but not more than two years - = - -
In more than two years but not more than five years 7700 7000 7700 7000
In more than five years 1000 - 1000 —
1,098 5 7000 1,098 5 000

In additon, the Group had £46 2m (2010 £61 2m) of undrawn uncommutted faciities avalable at 30 June 2011

The expected undiscouried cash fiows of the Group's financial liabilties, excluding denvative financiat labilities, by remaining contractual matunty

at the balance sheet date were as follows

Canylng Contractual  Less than Cver
ameount  cash flow 1year 12years  2-Gyears 5years
Group Notes £m £m £€m £m £m £m
2011
Loans and borrowings (including bank overdrafts) 23 4167 663 4 54 8 547 298 4 2555
Trade and other payables 23 1,227 3 1,285 7 883 5 2041 184 6 135
1,644 0 1,9491 938 3 2588 483 0 2690
2010
Loans and borrowings (ncluding bank overdratts) 23 9418 1,0099 589 7757 604 2049
Trade and other payables 23 1,004 8 115156 8015 1538 1817 145
203686 22514 860 4 9285 2421 2194
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25. Financial nsk management {continued)

a) Liquidrty nsk {continued)

The expected undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial labilities, excluding dervative financiat abiies, by remaning contractual matunty
at the balance sheet date were as follows

Carrying Contractual  Less than Over
amount  cash flow 1year 1-2years 2-5years 5 years
Company Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
2011
Loans and bormowings (including bank overdrafis) 23 5121 758 8 150 2 547 298 4 2555
Trade and other payables 23 340 340 340 - - -
5461 7928 184 2 547 298 4 2555
2010
Loans and borrowngs {ncluding bank overdrafis) 23 10349 11930 1520 7757 804 2049
Trade and other payables 23 207 27 297 - - -
10646 1,2227 1817 7757 604 2049

Trade and other payables excludes deferred income, payments recerved in excess of amounts recoverable on contracts, tax and social secunty and
other non-financeat labilities

The expected undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s and the Company's dervative financial nstruments, by remaining contractual matunty, at the
balance sheet date were as follows

Carrying Contractua! Less than Over
amount  cash flow 1year 1-2years  2-Syears 5 years
Group and Company Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
2011
Financial assets
Gross setiled denvatives
Recene leg 22 250 2246 186 182 332 1616
Pay leg - {197 2) (1089) (16 3) (30 8) {139 2)
Financial habilities
Gross settled dervatives
Receve leg 23 (10} 121 07 14 21 79
Pay leg - {131) (08 {15} 24) {83
Net setiled demvatves 23 {36 0} {38 9) 90 (8 2) {15 6) 61)
(12 0) {125 {85 (6 4} {13 5) 159
2010
Financial assets
Gross setiled dervatrves
Recenve leg 22 327 16808 71 71 325 1141
Payleg - {123 3) {58 58 {25 B) (861)
Financial habilities
Gross settied denvatves
Receive leg 23 05 1486 G8 08 30 100
Pay leg - (152 0g 09 32 (102}
Net settled demvatives 23 (719) (884) (223 (199) (291} (17 1}
387) (5t 5} (211) (18 7) (224) 107

Under the Group's Intemational Swaps and Denvatives Association Master Agreement (ISDA') agreements the interest rate swaps are settied on
anet basis
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25, Financial sk management {continued)

b) Market risk (price nsk)

i) UK houstng market nsk

This section specifically ciscusses UK housing market nsk In the context of the financial instruments in the Group balance sheet

The Group 18 subject to the prevailing conditrons of the UK economy and the Group's eamings are dependent upon the level of UK house prces
UK house prices are determined by the UK economy and economic conditons nclucding employrment levels, interest rates, consurmer confidence,
mortgage availability and competitor pricing However, the Group does seek to maintain an appropnate geographic spread of operating avisions
and an appropnate product mix to mitigate any nsks caused by local economic condiions The Group has detaled procedures to manage its
market related operational nsks which include
» aweekly review of key trading indicators, ncluding reservations, sales rates, visitor levels, levels of ncentves, competitor actmity and cash

fiow projections,
= the provision to mortgage providers with complete transparency of house purchase prices alongside any discounts or other incentives

i order that they have appropnate information upon which to base ther lending decision, and
+ collaboration with key mortgage lenders 1o ensure that products are appropnate wherever possible for their customers

The UK housing market affects the valuation of the Group's non-financial assets and labilities and the cntical judgements appled by management
n these financial staternents, ncluding the valuation of land and work in progress, geodwil and brands

The Group's financial assets and llabilires which are directly inked to the UK housing market are as follows

Not nked
Linked to to UK
UK housing housing
market market Total
Group £m £m £m
2011
Non-dervative financial assets 1694 1095 2789
Non-dernvative financial iabilties - (164400 (1,644 0
Denvatives - (120) {12 0}
1694 (1,5465  (1,3771)
2010
Non-denvative financial assets 136 3 5824 7187
Non-denvative financial habilibies - {20366} (20366}
Denvatives - {387 (397)

1363 {14939) (1.3576)

The value of the Group's avallable for sale financial assets 1s directly inked to the UK housing market At 30 June 2011 these assets were camed
at & far value of £169 4m (2010 £136 3m) Further mformation 1 set out in note 15

The Company has no financial assets and habilities which are directly inked to the UK housing market

Sensitivity analysis

Af 30 June 2011, f UK house pnces had been 5% lower and all other vanables were held constant, the Group’s house price Iinked financial assets
and habilties, which are solely avaiiable for sale financial assels, would decrease in value, excluding the effects of tax, by £8 1m 2010 £5 2rm) with
a corresponding reduction in both the resutt for the year and aquity

1i} interest rate nsk
The Group has both interest beanng assets and interest bearng labilies Fioating rate borrowings expose the Group to cash fiow interest rate nsk
and fixed rate borrowings expose the Group to farr value interest rate nsk

The Group has a policy of maintainng both long-term fixed rate funding and medium-term floatng rate funding so as to ensure that there 1s
appropnate flexibility for the Group's operational regquirements The Group has entered into swap arrangements to hedge cash fiow nsks relating
{0 interast rate movements on a proportion of its debt and has entered INto fixed rate debt n the form of Sterling and US Dollar genominated
private placements
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25 Finangial nsk management (continued)
b) Market nsk (price nsk) (continued)
1) Interest rate nsk {continued)

The Group has a conservative treasury nsk managerment strategy The proportion of the Group s median gross bomowings calculated on the latest
three-year plan that should be at fixed rates of nterest 1S determined by the average expected interest cover for that penod The current target s for
30-60% to be at fixed rates of mterest Due 10 the cyclicality of our borrowings throughout the year, at 30 June 2011, 99 3% (2010 70 4%) of the

Group's gross borrowings were fixed Group mterest rates are fixed using both swaps and fixed rate debt nstruments

The exposure of the Group's financial labiibes to Interest rate nsk is as follows

Non-interest

Floating rate  Fixed rate bearing
financial finandial financial
liabilities liabilties liabilities Total
Group £m £m £m £m
201
Financial iabilities (excluding denvatives) 1755 2303 1,238 2 1,644 0
Impact of nterest rale swaps {192 0} 192 0 - -
Francial habiiity exposure to interest rate nsk {16 5) 422 3 1,2382 1,644 0
2010
Financial kabilities (excluding denvatives) 7272 2029 11065 20368
Impact of nterest rate swaps {4800) 4800 - -
Fnancial lability exposure 10 nterest rate nsk 2472 6829 11065 20366
The exposure of the Company's financial liabilties to nterest rate nsk 1s as follows
Non-Interest
Floating rate  Frxed rate bearing
financial financlal financial
liabliities Irabulities liabllities Totat
Company £m £m £m £m
2011
Financial liabiities {excluding denvatives) 2818 2303 340 5461
Impact of interest rate swaps (192 O) 192 0 - —
Financial hability exposure to interest rate risk 898 422 3 Mo 5461
2010
Financial labiibies (excluding dernvatives) 8320 2029 297 1,064 6
Impact of interest rate swaps {4800 4800 - -
Financral kabidity exposurs to interast rate nsk 3520 6829 297 1.064 6

Floatng mterest rates on Starting borrowings are Inked to UK bank rate, LIBOR and money market rates The floating rates are fixed in advance for
penods generally ranging from one to six menths Short-term flexibility 1s achieved through the use of overdraft, committed and uncommitted bank
facilities The weighted average interest rate for floating rate borrowings in 2011 was 2 4% (2010 3 2%)

Sterting private placement notes of £65 8m (2010 £77 8m) were armanged at fixed interest rates and exposed the Group to far value nterest rate
nsk. The weighted average mterest rate for fixed rate Sterling private placement notes for 2011 was 11 9% (2010 11 8%} wath, at 30 June 2011

aweghted average penod of 79 years (2010 77 years) for which the rate 1s fixed

US Dollar denommated prvate placement notes of £145 0m (2010 £125 1m} were arranged at fixed nterest rates and exposed the Group to far
valua interest rate nsk The weighted average interest rate for fixed rate US Dollar denominated prvate placement notes, after the effect of foreign
exchange rate swaps for 2011 was 110% (2010 13 2%) with, at 30 June 2011, a weighted average penod of 5 9 years (2010 6 8 years) for which

the rate 1s fixed

Sensitivity analysis

in the year ended 30 June 2011, if UK inierest rates had been 50 basis ponts higherlower and alt other vanables were held constant, the Group's
pre-tax koss would ncrease/decrease by £0 4m (2010 €18m) the Group's post-tax koss would ncrease/decraase by £0 3m (2010 £1 3m) and the

Group's equity would decrease/increase by £0 3m (2010 £1 3m)
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25 Financial nsk management (continued)

b) Market nisk (pnce nsk} {continued)

i} Foreign exchange rate nsk

As at 30 June 2011, the Group has fixed rate US Dollar denommated private placement notes of $267 2m {2010 $187 2m) In order to mitigate nsks
associated with the movernent m the foreign exchange rate, the Group has a policy of fully hedging the pnncipal of is US Dollar denominated debt
and a significant proportion of the interast payments  The Group therefore entered into foreign exchange swap arrangements on the issue of its US
Dollar denominated debt, all of which are designated as cash fiow hedges Accordingly the Group has no net exposure {0 foreign currency nsk on
the principal of its US Dollar debt The foresgn exchange swaps match 82% of the interest payments and therefore the Group 15 subject to foregn
exchange rate nsk upon the remaning 18%

Details of the Group's foraign exchange swaps are provded n note 24

Sensitivity analysis

In the year ended 30 June 2011, If the US Dottar per Pound Sterling exchange rate had been $0 20 higherlower and all other vanables were held
constant, the Group's pre-tax loss would Increase/decreass by £0 7m (2010 £04m) the Group's post-tax loss would increase/decrease by £0 5m
{2010 £0 3m} and the Group's equity would decrease/increass by £0 5m 2010 £0 3rm)

¢} Credrt nsk

In the majonty of cases, the Group recenves cash upon legal completion for pivate sakes and receves advance stage payments from Regrstered
Social Landiords for social housing The Group has £169 4m (2010 £136 3m) of available for sale financial assets which expose it 1o credit nsk,
although this asset 15 spread over a large number of properties As such, the Group has no significant concentration of credt nsk, with exposure
spread over a large number of counterparties and customers

The Group manages credit nsk in the following ways

« The Group has a credit policy that 1s imited to financial institutions with high credit ratings as set by Intemational credit rating agencies and
has a policy determining the maximum permissible exposure to any single counierparty

« The Group only contracts denvative financial Instrurnents with counterparties with which the Group has an ISDA Master Agreement in place
These agreements permit net settiement, thereby reducing the Group's credit exposure fo indvidual counterparties

The maximurm exposure to any counterparty at 30 June 2011 was £15 8m (2010 £100 0m) of cash on deposit with a financial institubon
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowance for losses  represents the Group's
maximum exposure to cradit nsk

As at 30 June 2011, the Company was exposed to £780 7m (2010 £898 5m) of credit nsk n relation to ntercompany loans, as wall as financial
guarantees performance bonds and the bank borrowings of subsidiary undertakngs Further detarts are provided n notes 33 and 34

d) Caprtal nsk management (cash flow risk)
The Group's objectives when managng capital are to safeguard sts ability to contnus as a going concem n order o provids retums for shareholders
and meet its habilities as they fall due whilst maintaming an appropriate capital structure

The Group manages as capital its equity, as set out n the condensed consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, its bank
borrowings (being overdrafts, loan notes anc bank loans) and its private piacement notes. as set out nnote 23

The Group Is subject to the pravailing conditions of the UK economy and the Group's samings are dependent upon the level of UK house pnces
UK house prices are determmed by the UK econormy and economic conditons including emplayment levels, Interest rates, consurmer conficdence,
mortgage avalability and competitor pnoing  The management of these operational nsks 1s set out In the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties on pages
32t b

In addition, the other methods by which the Group can manage its short-term and long-term capital structure include adusting the level of ordinary
dwvidends paid to shareholders (assuming the Company 1$ paying a dmdend), 1ssuing new share capital, arranging debt to meet labiity payments,
and selling assets 1o reduce debt
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26 Retirement benefit obhgatons
The Group operates defined contnbution and defined benefit pension schemes

201 2010
Defined contrbuhon schemes £m Em
Contnbutions dunng the year
Group defined contnbubon schermnes consolidated income statement charge 54 65

At the balance sheet date there were outstanding contnbubiens of £0 5m (2010 £0 2m} which were paid on or before the due date

Defined benefit scheme

The Group operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme in the Urited Kingdom, the Barratt Group Pension & Life Assurance Scheme
{the 'Scheme’) which, with effect from 30 June 2009, ceased to offer future accrual of defined benefit pensions Alternative defined contnbution
pension arrangements are N place for current employees

A full actuanal valuation of the Scheme as at 30 Novernber 2010 s being camed out by the Trustees The preliminary results of thug valuation have
been updated to 30 June 2011 by a qualfied Independent actuary Under the current funding agreement with the Trustees the Group has agreed
to make contnbutions ta the Scheme of £13 3m per annum until 30 Novernber 2015 to address the Scheme's defict The Group also continues to
meet the Scheme's admimistrabion expenses, death In service premiums and Pension Protection Fund levy The Group and Trustees are currently
discussing the results of the actuanal valuation at 30 Novernber 2010 and expect to reach a conclusion on this in advance of the statutory deadline
which is 28 February 2012

At tha balance sheet date there were cutstanding contnbutions of £1 1m (201C £1tm}

The assets of the defined benefit scheme have been calculated at fair {od) value The liabilitres of the Scheme have been calculated at each balance
sheet date using the following assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions 2011 2010
Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit obligations

Discount rate 5 50% 5 40%
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A
Rate of pnce nflation 3 50% 3 20%
Weighted average assumptions to determine net cost

Discount rate 540% 8 30%
Expected long-term rate of retum on plan assets 596% 631%
Rate of compensaton increase N/A N/A
Rate of pnce inflation 3 20% 3 40%

Mermbers are assumed to exchange 10% of therr pension for cash on retirement The assumptions have been chosen by the Group following
advice from Mercer Human Resource Consuitting Limited, the Group’s actuanal advisers

The following able llustrates the Iife expectancy for an average member on reaching age 85, accordng to the mortality assumptions used to
calcuiate the Scheme habiities

Assumphons Male Female
Retired member bom in 1935 (ife expeciancy at age 65) 216 years 24 B years
Non-retired member bom in 1965 (Iife expectancy at age 65) 24 5 years 27 8 years

The base mortahty assumpticns are based upon the PA92 mortality tables The Group has carned out & mortalty mwvestigation of the Scheme's
membership to ensure that this 1s an appropnate assumption Afowance for future increases n bfe expectancy 1s made in line with the medurn
cohort profection, with an underpin on the annual rate of Improvement n mortaity of 1%
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26 Retirement henefit obligations (continued)
The senstivities regarding the prncipat assumptions used o measure the Schema labikhes are set out below

Assumptions Change in assumption Increase in Scheme liabihities
Discount rate Decrease by 01% £61m (2 0%)
Rate of inflation Increase by 0 1% £31m(12%)
Life expectancy Increase by 1 year £6 3m (2 5%)

The amounts recognised i the consolidated income staternent were as follows

2011 2010
£m £m
Interest cost 131 124
Expected retum on Scheme assets (12 2) {10 8)
Total pension cost recognised in finance costs in the consolidated income statement 0g 16
Total penston cost recognised in the consolidated income statement 09 16
The armounts recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive ncome were as follows
20M 2010
£m £m
Expected retum lass actual retum on Scheme assets (18 5) {176)
(Gan)loss ansing from changes N the assumptions underiying the present vakle of benefit obligations {3 5) 439
Total pension (income)/cost recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive income (22 Q) 263
The amount included n the Group and Company balance sheets ansing from obligations in respect of the defined benefit pension scheme
is as folows
20M 2010
£m £m
Present value of funded obligations 2506 248 3
Farr value of Scheme assets (238 8) (2022
Deficit for funded Scheme/net rability recogmsed in the Group balance sheet at 30 June 18 461
201 2000
£rn £m
Net liabiity for defined benefit oblgations at 1 July 461 315
Contnibutions receved (13 2) {13 3)
Expense recognised in the consoldated income statement 09 16
Amounts recognised in the Group statermnent of comprehensive income (22 0} 263
Net habiiity for defined benefit obhgaticns at 30 June 118 461
A deferred tax asset of £3 1m (2010 £12 9m) has been recogrised m the Group balance sheet In relation to the pension lizbility {note 16)
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows
2011 2010
£m £m
Present value of benefit obgations at 1 July 248 3 2019
Interest cost 131 124
Actuanat (gan)loss (3 9) 439
Benefits paid from Scheme (73) 99
Present value of benefit obiigatons at 30 June 250 6 248 3
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26. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
Moverments in the far value of Scheme assets were as follows

20m 2010

£m £m

Farr value of Scheme assets at 1 July 2022 1704

Expected retum on Scherne assets 122 108

Actuanal gam on Scheme assels 185 178

Empioyer contnbutions 132 133

Benefits paid from Scheme 73} 99

Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2388 2022
The analfysis of Scherne assets and the expected rate of retum at the balance sheet date were as follows ”

Expec?e1c11 Expe%ot;g

Percentaga returnon  Per centage return on

of Scheme Scheme  of Scheme Scheme

t assets assets assets

Equity secunties 50 3% 7 30% 515% 714%

Debt secunties 49 5% 477% 476% 478%

Qther 02% 0 50% 09% 050%

Total 100 0% 6 10% 100 0% 5 96%

To develop the expected long-term rate of retum on assets assumption, the Group considered the cumrent level of expected retums on nsk free
investments (pnmanly Govermment bords), the historical level of nsk premium associated with other asset classes in which the portiolo 1s mvested
and the expectations for future retums of each asset class The expected return for each asset class was then weighted based on the actual asset

afocation to develop the expected long-term rate of retum on assets assumption for the portfolio

The actual retum on Scheme assets was as follows

201 2010
£m £m
Actual retum on Scheme assets 307 284
The five-year history of expenence adjustments ansing on Scheme {labilitiesy/assets was as foliows
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Present value of defined benefit abligations (£m) (250 6) (248 3) {2019) (208 8) (232 8)
Farr value of Scheme assets £m) 2388 2022 1704 1716 1679
Deficit in the Scheme {£m) (118 {461) (315) (372 64 9)
Expenence adustment i Scheme lisbilties (Em) 68 - - 14 (132
Percentage of Scheme habiities (%) 27 - - 55 57
Expenence adjustiment n Scheme assets (Em) 185 176 {20 5) {17.3) 78
Percentage of Scheme assets (%) 77 87 (120) (101 45
Amount recogrised in the Group statement of comprehensve mcome (£m) {22 0) 263 141 (209) (134)
Percentage of Scheme assets (%) 92 130 83 {117} 0

The cumulative amount of actuanal gans and losses since 30 June 2005 fecogrused n the Group staternent of comprehensive Income 1S a gain

of £151m

The expected employer contnbution 1o the defined benefit pension scheme in the year ending 30 June 20125213 3m
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27. Share capstat

2011 2010
£m m

Allotted and 1ssued ordinary shares
10p gach fully pard 865,341,126 ordinary shares {2010 965 215,015) 96 5 965

Dunng the year, 6,841,830 awards of the Cormpany's shares were granted under the Company’s Executive Long-Term Performance Plan
and 1,481,892 options were granted under the SAYE Scheme

Dunng the year, 126,111 shares were issued to satisfy early exercises under the 2009 SAYE Scheme

The Barratt Developments PLC Employee Benefit Trust {the 'EBT') holds 3,858,573 (2010 3,829,314) ordinary shares in the Company The cost of
the shares heid by the EBT, at an average of 120 7 pence per share (2010 128 8 pence per share) was £4,855,452 {2010 £5,062,765) The market
value of the shares held by the EBT at 30 June 2011 a1 114 2 pence per share (2010 94 8 pence per share) was £4,406,490 (2010 £3,724,990)
The sharas are helkd n the EBT for the purpose of satisfying options that have been granted under The Barratt Developments PLC Executive and
Employee Share Ophon Plans These ordinary shares do not rank for dndend and do not count in the calculation of the weighted average number
of shares used to calculate eamings per share until such fime as they are vested to the relevant employee

28 Share-based payments
Analysis of ncome statement charge/credit)

20Mm 2010

£m £m
Equity-settled share-based payments
Long-Term Performarnce Plan 08 [£]9)]
Savings-Related Share Option Scherme 15 18
Executive Share Option Scheme 04) 08
Senior Management Share Option Plan 03 02
Cash-settled share-based payments {08 04)

14 086

As at 30 June 2011, an accrual of £1 8m (2010 £1 8m} was recognised in respect of social secunity habiities on share-based payments
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28 Share-based payments (continued)

a) Detals of the share-based payment schemes

i) Long-Term Performance Pian

The Long-Term Performance Plan (the 'LTPP') was approvedt by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held m Novermber 2003 to take effect
from 1 Juty 2003 6,841,830 (2010 ndl} LTPP awards were granted in the financial year ended 30 June 2011 Awards under the LTPP are at the
discretion of the Remuneration Committee {the 'Committee’), taking nto account ndmidual performance and overall performance of the Group

An employes s not eligible to recene optons under the Executve Share Option Scherne and awards under the LTPP i the same financial year
Information on the perfermance conditions for the LTPP can be found on page 53

n} Savings-Related Share Option Scheme

In Novernber 2008, the Company adopted the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme (the ‘SRS0S") Under the SRSOS, pariicipants are required
o make monthly contributions to an HM Treasury approved savings contract with a bank or bullding socisty for a penod of three years On enterng
nto the sawings contract participants were granted an ophon to acquure ordinary shares in the Company at an exercise price determined under the
nules of the SRSOS The exercise of options under the SRSOS 15 not sutyect to the satisfaction of a performance condition as the SRSOS 1s HM
Revenue and Customs approved and open to afl eligible employess The first grant under the SRSOS was made on 3 February 2009 at an exercise
price of 87 05 pence per share fwhich was subsequently adjusted to refiect the Rights Issue to 5705 pence per share) The second grant under the
SRSOS was made on 30 March 2010 at an exercise price of 116 18 pence per share The third grant under the SRSOS was made on 29 March
2011 al an exercise price of 104 53 pence per share

m) Executive Share Option Scheme

In November 2008, the Company adopted the Executive Share Option Scheme {the ‘ESCS’) The grant of share opttons under the ESCS 1s at
the discretion of the Committee, taking into account indmidual performance and the overali performance of the Group Options must be held for
a minimum of three years from the date of grant before they can be exercised and lapse if not exercised within ten years from the date of grant
The exercise of ophons granted under the ESOS 1s subject to the achievement of an objective performance condition set by the Committee,
which for options granted in 2008 was based upon Retumn On Capital Empioyed (ROCE") More information can be found on page 53

w} Senior Management Share Option Plan

In December 2009, the Company adopted the Senior Management Share Option Plan 2009-2012 {the ‘SMS0P') The Board approves the grant
of share options to employess under the SMSOP which are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant, provided
the employee remams empioyed by the Company It 1S intended that the grant of options under the SMSOP will be a one-off event and those
who participate in the SMSCP are not eligible to participate in the LTPP or ESOS, therefore Executve Directors are not eligible to participate in
the SMSOP

v} Executive Share Option Plan

In November 1997, the Company adopted the Executve Share Option Plan (the ‘ESOP') The grant of share ophions under the ESOP s at the
discretron of the Cormmittee, taking into account ndnvidual performance and the overall performance of the Group Options must be held for a
minimum of three years from the date of grant before they can be exercised and lapse if not exsrcised within ten years from the date of grant
The exercise of options grantad under the ESOP 5 subject to the achievement of an objective parformance condition set by the Committes
More information can be found on page 53

vi) Employae Share Option Plan

In Novernber 1999, the Company adopted an Employee Share Option Plan (the ‘Employes Plar’) The Board approves the grant of share options to
employaes under this Employee Plan which are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant The exercise of the options
granted under the Employee Plan is subject to the achigvement of an objective performance condition set by the Board, namely that the growth n
the basic eamings per share of the Company over a penoad of three consecutive financial years should exceed the growth in the Retail Price Index
by at least 9% No options may be granted under the Employes Plan after 10 Apnl 2010 Those who have partcipated in the ESOP do not
participate n the Employee Plan

vit} Senior Management Incentive Plan
In May 2009, the Company adopted the Senior Managemeni incentive Plan 2008-2011 (the SMIP) The SMIP entittes participants to a cash borus
linked to the Company’s share pnce, subject to the achieverment of an objectve performance condition set by the Committes

vin) Go-Investment Plan

The Co-Investment Plan {the 'Plan’) was approved by sharsholders at the Annual General Meesting held in November 2005 and any annual bonus
eamed above target wit normally be compuisonly deferred nto shares held under this Plan The Executive Directors also have the opportunity to
voluntanly defer addiional amounis of annual bonus up 10 a maximum of 25% of basic satary mto the Pian Matching awards will then be made by
the Company, at the rate of ona for one for compulsory deferal and at a masarmum of four for one for voluntary deferral, matctung awards will be
subject to performance conditions measured over a penod of three years The relevant performance conditions are the same as thoss used for
the LTPP as detaled on page 53
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28. Share-based payments (continued}
b) Qutstanding equity-settled share-based payments
At 30 June 2011, the following options were outstanding

Option pnce 2011 Not exercisable
Date of grant pence Number after
Executive Share Option Plan
1 November 2001 216 42,696 31 October 2011
22 Qclober 2002 285 316,977 21 Octlober 2012
10 October 2003 357 826,814 9 October 2013
Total Executive Share Optton Plan options 1,186,487
Executive Share Option Scheme
18 December 2008 {approved™) 40 812,587 17 December 2018
18 Dacember 2008 {unapproved®) 36 7,846,840 17 December 2018
25 September 2009 36 1,016,656 16 December 2018
10 December 2009 (approved”) 118 25,458 9 December 2019
10 December 2008 {unapproved*) 121 5,997,584 9 Decamber 2018
Total Executive Share Option Scheme options 15,699,125
Senior Management Share Option Plan
10 Dacembar 2009 {approved’) 18 2,820,073 9 December 2019
10 December 2009 unapproved*) 121 1,014,614 9 December 2019
Total Semor Management Share Option Plan options 3,834,687
Employee Share Option Plan
25 Apnl 2002 308 45,728 24 Apnl 2012
14 May 2004 387 451,337 13 May 2014
Total Employee Share Option Plan options 497,065
Savings-Related Share Option Scheme
3 February 2009 57 12,203,636 30 September 2012
30 March 2010 118 1,622,076 31 December 2013
29 March 201 105 1,477,393 31 December 2014
Total Savings-Related Share Option Scheme options 15,303,105
Total shara options 36,520,469
Long-Term Performance Plan
14 October 2010 - 6,516,830 -
Total Long-Term Performance Plan awards 6,516,830
Total 43,037,299

Tre Exacuive Sharne Optian Schemne and the Senar anagement Share Coton: Plan ane dinded o ty
and the e s [} y for sach Sub-sChema i Bseordance Wih the uiss of e sub-seheme

uncer the Income Tax (Eammgs and Pens:ons) Act 2003 and the o:her whch s nd,

The exercise prices and the number of shares under option wers adjusted following the Rights Issus n Novemnber 2009
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28, Share-based payments {continued)
¢) Outstanding cash-settled share-based payments

A1 30 June 2011, the following awards Issued tn accordance with the rules of the Senior Management Incentive Plan were outstanding

Award price 20m 2010
Date of grant pence Number Number
Sentor Management Incentive Flan
6 May 2009 57 7,850,718 8,009,282
Total Senior Management Incentive Plan 7,850,718 8,009,282
d) Number and weighted average exercise pnce of outstanding share-based payments
The number and weighted average exercise pnces of aptions 1ssued under the Exacutive Share Option Plan were as follows
Weighted Weghted
average average
exercise 20 EXSCISE 2010
price In Number of prceIn Number of
pence options pence options
Qutstanding at 1 July 328 1,290,193 493 1,062,210
Adustment for Rights Issue - - - 477715
Forferted dunng the year 276 {103,706) 399 (249 732)
Outstanding at 30 June 333 1,186,487 328 1,290,193
Exercisable at 30 June 333 1,186,487 328 1,290,193
The number and weighted average exercise pneces of options 1ssued under the Employee Share Option Plan were as follows
Weighted Wenghted
average average
exercise 201 eXErCISe 2010
pncein Number of price in Number of
pence options pence oplions
Quitstanding at 1 July 376 551,176 566 450,800
Adwstment for Rughts Issue - - - 236,598
Forfeited dunng the year 342 {54,111) 350 (136 222)
Cutstanding at 30 June 380 497,065 376 551,176
Exercisable at 30 Jung 380 497,065 376 551,176
The number and weighted average exercise prces of awards made under the Long-Term Performance Plan were as follows
Weighted Waghted
average average
exercise 20M1 axercise 2010
pricein Number of pree n Number of
pence award units pence award units
Quistanding at 1 July - 3,613,185 - 3,342,996
Adustment for Rights Issus - - - 1,309,086
Forfeted dunng the year - (3,935,185) - (1,038,897}
Granted dunng the ysar - 6,841,830 - -
Qutstanding at 30 June - 6,516,830 - 3.613,185

Exercisable at 30 June -
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28 Share-based payments (continued)

d) Number and weighted average exercise pnee of outstanding share-based payments (conbinued)
The number and weighted average exercise prices of options granted under the Executve Sharg Option Scheme were as follows

Weighted Wesghted
average average
exercise 201 axercise 2010
price in Number of price m Number of
pence optlons pence options
Quistandng at 1 July 68 16,917,153 56 6,666,667
Adustment for Rights Issue - - - 3,849,885
Forfeited dunng the year 59 (1,218,028) 70 (1.005.413)
Granted during the year - - 115 7.408,014
Qutstanding at 30 June 69 15,699,125 68 16,917,153
Exercisable at 30 June - - = -
The number and weighted average exercise pnces of options granted under the Senior Management Share Option Plan were as follows
Weighted Weghted
average average
exercise 201 EXEIISe 2010
price in Number of pfce in Number of
pence options pence, options
QOutstanding at 1 July 119 4,065,683 - -
Forfered dunng the year 119 {230,996) 119 (94,355}
Granted dunng the year - - 119 4,160,038
Qutstanding at 30 June 119 3,834,687 119 4,065,683
Exercisable at 30 Juns - - - -
The number and weighted average exercise pnces of options granted under the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme were as follows
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise 2m exercise 2010
pricein Number of PNCE N Number of
pence options pence options
Qutstanding at 1 July 65 15,350,256 87 9,690,675
Adustment for Rights Issue - - - 4,912,820
Forfeited dunng the year 78 (1,412,932 65 {1,319,495)
Granted dunng the year 105 1,491,892 116 2,144,435
Exercised dunng the year 57 {126,111} 61 (78,179)
Outstanding at 30 June 68 15,303,105 65 15,350,256
Exercisable at 30 June - - - =
The number and weighted average award pnce of awards mads under the Semior Management Incerdive Plan were as follows
Weighted Werghted
average average
exercise 2011 EeXBreise 200
pnce in Number of pnce n Number of
pence award units pence award unis
Qutstanging at 1 July 57 8,009,282 87 5,633,725
Adustment for Rights Issue - - - 2,957620
Forfeited dunng the year 57 {158,564} 57 {582,063)
Qutstanding at 30 June 57 7,850,718 57 B 009 282
Exercisable at 30 June - - - -
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28, Share-basetl payments (continued)
d) Number and weighted average exercise pnce of outstanding share-based payments (continued)
The nurmber and weighted average award pnce of awards made under the Co-rvestment Plan were as follows

Weighted Weghted
average average
exercise 2m EexBrCISe 200
pncain MNumber of price in Number of
pance award unitg pence award units
Quistanding at 1 July - 126,532 - 101,623
Adjustment for Rights Issue - - - 48,296
Lapsed dunng the year - (55,791) - (17.317)
Exarcised dunng the year - {70,741) - (6.,070)
Qutstanding at 30 June - = - 126,532
Exgrgisable at 30 June - - - -

The weighled average share price, at the date of exercise, of share options axercised dunng the ysar was 89 4p (2010 136 3p) The weighted
average Ife for all schemes outstanding at the end of the year was 4 6 years (2010 56 years)

&) Income statement charge
A charge to the ncome statement has been mads for the awards 1ssued on or after 7 Novermber 2002 that had not vested at 1 January 2005
In accordance with IFRS2 'Share-based Payments’

1) Executive Share Option Scheme
No awards were granted dunng 2011 The weighted average far vatue of the options granted dunng 2010 was 35p per award The awards have
been vaired using a Black-Scholes model

The waighted average nputs to the Black-Scholes model were as follows

Grants

2010

Average share pnce 17p
Avarage exercise prnce 115p
Expected volabiity 36 68%
Expected Iife 3 6 years
Risk free interest rate 176%
Expected dvidends 043%

Expected volatiity was determmed by refarence to the histoncal volatilty of the Group's shiare price over a penod consistent with the expected Ife
of the options The expected life used m the madels has been adjusted, based on the Directors’ best estirnate, for the effects of non-transferability
exercise restnictions and behavioural considerations

n) Savings-Retated Share Option Scheme
The weighted average farr value of the options granted dunng 2011 was 28p (2010 32p) per award The awards have been valued using
a Black-Scholes model

The weighted average inputs to the Black-Scholes model were as folows

Grants

2011 2010

Average share price 113p 125p
Average exercise pnce 105p 116p
Expected volatility 30 7% 307%
Expected life 30years 30vyears
Risk free nterest rate 133% 202%
Expacied dvidends - 0 47%

Expected volatlity was determined by reference to the histoncat volatility of the Group's share pnce over a penod consistent with the expected Ife
of the options The expected ffe used n the models has been adjusted, based on the Direciors' best estimate, for the effects of non-transferabilty,
exercise restnctions and behavioural considerations
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28. Share-based payments {continued)

e} Income statement charge {continued)

i) Senior Management Share Option Plan

No awards were granted dunng 2011 The weighted average far value of the options granted dunng 2010 was 24p per award The awards have
been valued using a Btack-Scholes model

The weighted average inputs 1o the Black-Scholes model were as follows

Grants

2010

Average share pnce 110p
Average exercise pnee 119p
Expectad volatiity 307%
Expected life 37 years
Risk free interest rate 169%
Expected dividends 047%

Expected volatity was determined by reference to the histoncal volatiity of the Group’s share pnce over a penod consistent with the expected Iife
of the options The expected kife used in the models has been adjusted, based on the Directors' best estmate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exaraisa restnctions and behaviourat considerations

) Long-Term Performance Plan
The weighted average far value of the options grented dunng 2011 was 51 2p No awands were grantsd dunng 2010

The awards have been valued usng a Black-Scholes model! for the EPS element of the scheme and a Monte Carlo model for the TSR element
of the scheme

The weighted average nputs to the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo models were as follows
Grants
2011

Average share price 8Bp
Average exercise prnce -
Expected volatiity 07%
Expected Ife 3 0 years
Risk free interest rate 108%
Expected dvidends =

29, Reserves

Hedging reserve

The hadging reserve represents the cumulative effectve portion of deferred far value gans or losses on dervatve financial nstruments that have
been designated as cash flow hedges by the Company, where the hedged cash fiows are still expected to occur

Transfers to the hedging reserve in the penod equate to losses of £23 6m (2010 £43 6m) This loss compnses losses of £15 4m {2010 £57 2m)
relating to interest rate swaps and losses of £8 2m (2010 gain of £13 Bm) on ¢ross currency interest rate swaps

Transfars from the hedgng reserve to the ncome staternent for the penod are gains of £58 3m (2010 £64 2m)

In the current year, an amount of £29 8m, relating to deferred losses on interest rate swaps that previously hedged fioating rate interest payments
{on £288m of debt that was repaid and not refinanced) which are no longer expected to occur, was recogmised in the ncorme staternent as an
exceptional tem The remaning transfers arose from continuing cash flow hedges of interest rate nsks and foreign exchange nsks where the
hedged nsk impacted profit or loss in the penod Ofthese, £21 5m relates to hedged nterest cash flows and £7 0m relates 10 gans on hedged
forergn currency cash flows

In the prior year, an amount of £50 1m, relating to deferred losses on interest rate swaps that previously hedged floatng rate interest payments

{on £285m of debt that was repaxd and not refinanced) which were no longer expected to ocour, was recogrised n the income statement as an
exceptonal item The remaning transfers arose from contmumg cash flow hedges of iInterest rate nsk and foreign exchange nsk where the hedged
nsk impacted profit or loss 0 the penod Of these, £26 Om related to hedged miterest cash flows and £11 9m related to losses on hedged foreign
currency cash flows
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29 Reserves (continued)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve compnses the non-statutory premaum arising on shares ssued as consideration for acquistion of subsidranes where
merger relief under section 612 of the Comparigs Act 2006 applies

Own shares
The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Barratt Developments PLC purchased m the market and hekd by the EBT on behalf
of the Company in order to satisfy optons and awards under the Company’s incentive schemes

Share-based payments reserve
The share-based payments reserve represents the obligation of the Group in relation to equity-settied share-based payment transactions

Parent Company income statement
in accordance with the provisions of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a separate ncome statement for the Parent Companty has not
been presentad The Company's loss for the year was £73 1m (2010 £143 6m)

30 Cash flows from operating activities

Group Company
201 2010 20nm 2010
{restated)’

Notes £m 3] £m £m
Loss for the year from continuing operations {13 8) (118 4) 731} (143 6)
Tax 23 {44 5) (25 4} 463
Finance income {18 0} {13 4} {401} {659)
Finance costs 156 9 2491 1306 2147
Shars of post-tax (profiflloss from joint ventures {0 1) 15 - -
Profit/{loss) from operations 1273 743 [(:X1)] @11
Amortisation of deferred loss on swaps 5 - Q2 - Q2
Depreciation 12 18 36 05 20
impairment of mventonegs - exceptional 17 - 48 - -
Impairment of mventonas — non exceptional 7 54 74 - -
Impairment of available for sale financial assets 15 163 61 - -

Shara-hased payments chargefcredit} 28 14 {06} {01) 01
Imputed interast on deferred term land payables 5 {276) (26 5) - -
Imputed interest on available for sale financial assets 5,15 136 70 - -
Amortisation of facilty fees 5 (6 2} 94 6 2) 24
Imputed interest on Kickstart equity funding 5 {09 ©2) - -
Wiitg-oHf of previous faciity unamortised fees 5 81 (310} &1) (310)
Finance costs related to employee benefils 5,26 {09 (16) {0 9) {16
Total non-cash items {52} {402) {14 8) (397}
Decrease In inventones 721 186 3 - -
Dacrease/increass) in trade and other recervables 25 (239 1577 N57
Increasefidecrease) i trade and other payables 232 198 2 (89) 62
Increasa in avalable for sale financial assets {46 7) {55 9) - -
Total movements in working capital 511 3047 148 8 400 5
Interest pard (77 5} {1012) 795 (93 4)
Tax receved 45 538 - -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1002 2914 46 5 2453

For conmmatency of prasentatnn of cash hows with the yeer ended 30 June 2011 £7 4m of non saceptonal rveniory imparment has been reciassdiad n the year sndec 30 me 2070 Non-cash aer1s have rersased by £7 4m from
an outfiow of £27 6m 1 £40.2m and the movemant n Mvertorss has reduced by £7.4m frovn £193 7m o £186.3m.

The balance shest movernents i land and avallable for sale financial assets include non-cash movements due to mputed interest Imputed interest
15 therefore included within non-cash items i the note above
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31. Operating lease obligations

a) The Group as lessee

At 30 June 2011, the Group had outstandng commitments for future minimum lease paymenis under non-canceliable operating leases, which fall
due as follows

Group
20m 2010
tand and Land and
buildings Other buikcfings Other
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 109 45 130 33
More than one year and no later than five years 202 57 1956 55
In five years or more 74 - 84 -
385 102 409 88
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain office properties and motor vehicles Motor vehicle leases have
an average term of 2 2 years (2010 2 5 years) to expry Property leases have an average tarm of 21 years (2010 20 years}) to expiry
At 30 June 2011, the Company had outstanding commitrments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall dus as follows
Company
20m 2010
Land and Land and
buildings Other buldings Cther
&m £m £m £m
Within one year 07 03 07 03
More than one year and no later than five years 20 04 21 05
In five years or more 04 ~ 08 —
31 07 36 o8

Operating tease payments represent rentals payable by the Company for centan office properties and motor vehicles Motor vehicle feases
have an average term of 2 2 years (2010 2 5 years) to expiry Property leases have an average term of 4 4 years (2010 5 4 years) to expiry

b) The Group as lessor
Property rental ncome eamed dunng the year was £4 1m (2010 £3 3m)

The Group has lease agreements with fhurd parties for certan commercial properties either in the process of development or which have been
developed by the Group and units on land o be subseguently developed for residential use It is intended that the commercial properties, with thewr
future rental ncome will be sold to third parties in the normal course of business and therefore they are classified as work in progress until the date
of sale At 30 June 2011, these properties had a carmying value of £18 4m (2010 £9 0m}, and land with rental units had a carrying vatue of £17 6m
(2010 £47 3m} At 30 June 2011, these rental agreements had an average term of 2 1 years (2010 2 6 years) to expry and total rental recenvables
over the remaning lease peniod are £7 4m (2010 £9 0m) with £2 8m (2010 £3 1m) within one year, £3 8m (2010 £4 8m) in more than one year and
ne later than five years and £0 8m (2010 £1 3m} i five years or more

32, Acquisthons
The Group acquired the entire 1Issued share capital of six entittes on 17 January 2611, being

VSM (Bentley Prory 1) Limited
VSM (Bentley Pnory 2) Limited
VSM (Bentley Pnory 3) Limited
VSM {Bentley Pricry 4) Limited
VSM (Bentley Priory 5) Liruted
VSM (Bentley Pnory 6) Limited

The total cash consideration was £11m Thess companies were solely acquired for the land that they hold The book value of land acquired was £317m
and the far value, after accounting policy adjustments of £2 7m, was £32 Om which was offset by a crecitor of £31 3m Deferred tax of £0 4m has been
recognised (note 16). No goodwill arose on these acquisiions. The acquistions did not contribute to the revenue or profit of the Group for the year and
would not have done had these companies been acquered on 1 July 2010
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33, Contingent liabilities
a) Contingent labilities related to subsidiaries
The Company has guaranteed cartain bank borrowings of s subsidiary undertakings

Certan subsidiary undertakings have commidments for the purchase of trading stock entered intoin the normal course of business

In the normat course of busmess the Group has given counter indemnities in respect of performance bonds and financial guarantees
Management estimate that the bonds and guarantees amount to £434 1m (2010 £399 Om), and confirm that at the date of these financial
staternents the possibility of cash outflow 1s considered minimal and no provision s required

b) Contingent liabilities related to joint ventures
At 30 June 2011, the Group has an obligation to repay £09m (2010 £0 9m) of grant monies receved by a jont venture upon certan future
disposals of land

The Group also has a number of performance guarantees in respect of its joint ventures, requinng the Group to complete development agreement
contractual obligatons in the event that the joint ventures do not perform their obligations under the terms o the related contracts

¢} Contingent habilies related to associates
Dunng the year, the Group prowded bank guarantees to the vatue of £3 1m {2010 £nil} to one of ts associates

d) Cortingent habiliies related to subsidianes, jont ventures and associates

Provision 15 made for the Directors’ best estimate of all known legal claims and all legal actions in progress  The Group takes legal advice as to
the hkelihood of success of claims, counterclams and al other achons and no provision is made where the Directors consider, based on that
advice, that the achion, clarm or counterclaim is unlkkely to succeed, or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the potential obligations cannot be made

i) incident at Battersea Park Road, London

One of the prncipal subsidianes within the Group s BDW Trading Lid ( BDW?} On 26 September 2006 at Battersea Park Road, London, a tower
crane supplied to BDW (with operator) by a third party contractor coliapsed The collapse of the crane was not cortaned within the boundanes of
the site and the crang operator and a member of the public were kiled In addition, significant damage was caused to a neighbounng block of flats
and shops which resulted in tha evacuztion of a number of local residents due to concems about structural stability There 1s an ongoing cnminat
nvestigaton by the London Metropolitan Police and the Health and Safety Executive to ascertam whether any of the parties involved are cnminally
liable for manstaughter or under relevant health and safety legislation Although no assurance can be given the Board has been advised that on

the information avallable as at 12 Seplember 2011, baing the last practicable date pnor to the publcation of this Annual Report and Accounts, the
nsk of a finding of cnminal labity aganst BDW appears kw A number of cvil claims brought agamst BDW in connection with the same ncident
have now been settled All such claims are covered by the Group's nsurance, o the extent not recoverabile from the third party contractor’s insurers

h} Incident at Bedfont Azure Lakes

On 28 Fabruary 2008, a resident was found dead and another senously iInured n housing association accommodation at the Bedfont Azure Lakes
site that was developed by BDW It s believed that the cause of both the death and the senocus inury was dus to carbon monaxide poisoning
Followmng mvestigations by the Police and the Health and Safety Executive, cnmmal proceedings are being pursued aganst the plumbing and
heating sub-contractor selected by BDW for the devetopment and agamnst an indvidual registered gas engneer The cnminal charges are
understood to include alleged manslaughter caused by gross neghgence and breach of gas safety legistation It s also understood that the cnminal
inal aganst these defendants 1s now scheduled for March 2012 Meanwhite the Police and Health and Safety Executive investigations are sti
ongoing Cwvil claims have been made aganst BOW by both the housing association and by vanous residents on the estate where the incident
occurred A number of claims have been settled by the Group's nsurers but the remander are still outstanding and are being dealt with by the
Group's insurers, glthough the extent to which these are covered by the Group's insurance or the msurance of other parties cannot, at present,

be clearly ascertaned
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34 Related party transachions

a) Remuneration of key personnel

Disclosures related to the remuneration of key personnel as defined in 1AS24 'Related Party Disclosures’ are gven in note 8 There 1s no difference
between transactions with key management personnel of the Company and the Group

b) Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes

The Company has entered into transactions with its subsidiary undertakings n respect of funding and Group services (which nclude management
accounting and audit, sales and markseting, [T, company secretanal, architects and purchasing) Recharges are made to the subsidianes based on
utiisation of these services

The amount outstanding to the Company from subsdiary undertakings at 30 June 2011 totatled £780 7m {2010 £888 5m)

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2011, the Company mads management charges to subsidianes of £31 8m (2010 £24 2m) and recenved net interest
on Group loans from subsidianes of £28 8rm (2010 £55 5m)

The Company and Group have entered into counter-indemnibes in the nermal course of business N respect of perfymance bonds

¢) Transactions between the Group and its joint ventures

The Group has entered into transactions with its jomt venturas m respeact of funding and development management services (with charges made
based on the utiisation of these services} These transactions totalled £2 4m (2010 £19m) and £0 3m {2010 £03m) In addition, one of the Group's
subskiianes, BDW Trading Limited, contracts with a number of the Group's joint ventures to provide construction services

The amount of cutstanding loans and interest due to the Group from its joint ventures at 30 June 2011 1s disclosed n note 13 The amoun! of other
outstanding payables 1o the Group from its joint ventures at 30 June 2011 totalled £nil (2010 £ril} The Group provided bank guarantees to the value
of £nil 2010 £26 Om) to its joint ventura partners dunng the year

d) Transactions between the Group and its associates
The Group has not entered into any transactions with its associates in the year

The Group provided bank guarantees to the value of £3 1m o one of its associates dunng the year

The Group dd not have any associates in the year ended 30 June 2010
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OTHER INFORMATION

FIVE-YEAR RECORD, FINANCIAL CALENDAR, GROUP ADVISERS,
COMPANY INFORMATION AND LIFE PRESIDENT

Five-year record

2008 2007
20m 2010 2000 f{estalad’)  (restated)

Group revenus (Em) 2,0354 20352 22852 35547 30461

{Lossyprofit before tax (Em) (115 (1629) (6789 1373 4248

Share capital and equity £m) 29301 29002 23316 28678 29076

Per ordinary share

Baskc fossyeamnings per share (pence?} (14) (14 5) 891) 164 756

Drvidend paid (pence) - - - 3653 3207

1 The resuits lor the yeers ended 30 June 2008 and 2007 have been restated &3 disciosed i previcus Annual Reports.
2 Eprrangs per shere br the years ended 30 June 2000 2008 and 2007 has been adisted (o rehect the Fights kssts on 22 Sertember 2000 &s requred by LASAS Earangs per Share

Financial calendar
The following dates have been announced or are ndicative of future dates

Announcement

2011 Annual General Mesting and Intenm Management Staternent 16 November 2011

2011/12 intenrrvhalf year results February 2012

Intenm Managament Statement May 2012

2011/12 Annual Results Announcement September 2012

Group advisers
Registrars

Capita Ragistrars
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 47U

Registered Auditor
Deloitte LLP
London

Solicttors
Slaughter and May

Brokers and Investment Bankers
Credit Suisse Secunties (Europe) Limited
UBS Investment Bank

Company information
Registered in England and Wales Company number 604574
Regstared address Barratt House Cartwnight Way, Forest Business Park, Bardon Hill, Coatville, Lecestarshire LES7 1UF

Life President
Sir Lawrence Barratt founded the first Barratt company in 1958 and was krighted for his services to the industry n 1982
He retired as Non-Exgcutve Chairman n November 1997 assuming the role of Life President




Barratt Developments PLC
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